
 

Area 1 

Mickey Thayer 

Area 2 

Mary Gonzales-Gomez 

Area 3 

Tawny Robinson  

Area 4 

Adam T. Medeiros 

Area 5 

Alicia Ramirez 

 

Election Filing Dates: July 18, 2022 – August 12, 2022 

 

Kings County Board of Education 

Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, June 22, 2022 

Kings County Office of Education, 1144 W. Lacey Blvd., Hanford, CA 93230 

4:00 p.m. 
 

 
1. Call to Order ~ President Robinson 

2. Pledge of Allegiance ~ President Robinson 

3. Recognition of Retirees ~ Lisa Horne 
RECEPTION 

 
COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 

Public comment on any item of interest to the public that is within the Board’s jurisdiction will be heard. 
The Board may limit comment to no more than 3 minutes and the total time for public input 

on an agenda item shall not exceed 20 minutes. 
 
ACTION: 
 
4. Approve Minutes of June 8 2022, Regular Meeting ~ President Robinson (Pgs.1-4) 

5. Approve 2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) ~ Joy Santos (Pgs. 5-87 ) 

6. Approve 2022-23 Kings County Office of Education Budget ~ Jamie Dial (Pgs. 88-276 ) 

7. Approve Local Control Accountability Plan Federal Addendum ~ Joy Santos (Pgs.277-299 ) 

8. Approve The Kings County Office of Education Annual System of Support Report ~ Joy Santos (Pgs. 300-
308) 

9. Approve Board Bylaw 9240 Board Development (2nd Reading) ~ President Robinson (Pg.309) 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
1. Review of 2022 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection ~ Joy Santos (Pgs. 310-324) 

2. Review of Program Self-Evaluation Annual Report ~ Joy Santos (Pgs. 325-332)  

3. Superintendent’s Report ~ Todd Barlow 
 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE BOARD 
 
 

Coming Events 

Next County Board Meeting: August 10, 2022  

CCBE Annual Conference: September 9-11, 2022, Monterey  



1



2



3



4



ACTION ITEM 
 

 

 

 
DATE: June 22, 2022 
 
 
TOPIC: Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) 
 
ISSUE: Regulation requires the Kings County Office of 
 Education LCAP be presented for approval.  
 
BACKGROUND: As part of the Local Control Funding Formula 

(LCFF), the state’s new school funding model, 
school districts and county offices of education are 
required to develop a Local Control Accountability 
Plan. This plan shall describe how we intend to 
spend funding generated from our Alternative 
Education program. This plan has been developed 
based on student, parent, staff, and community 
input. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Recommend that the Kings County Board of 

Education approve the Kings County Office of 
Education’s LCAP.   

  
 
RESOURCE: Joy Santos 

      Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services 

      joy.santos@kingscoe.org 

      559-589-7068 

 

5

mailto:joy.santos@kingscoe.org


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 1 of 82 
 

 
 

LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 
 

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name: Kings County Office of Education 
CDS Code: 1610165-1630102 
School Year: 2022-23 
LEA contact information: 
Joy Santos 
Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
Joy.Santos@kingscoe.org 
(559)589-7068 
School districts receive funding from different sources: state funds under the Local Control Funding Formula 
(LCFF), other state funds, local funds, and federal funds. LCFF funds include a base level of funding for all LEAs 
and extra funding - called "supplemental and concentration" grants - to LEAs based on the enrollment of high 
needs students (foster youth, English learners, and low-income students). 

Budget Overview for the 2022-23 School Year 

 
6



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 2 of 82 
 

This chart shows the total general purpose revenue Kings County Office of Education expects to receive in the 
coming year from all sources. 

 
The text description for the above chart is as follows: The total revenue projected for Kings County Office of 
Education is $45,339,505, of which $10,362,331.00 is Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF), $3,841,172.00 is 
other state funds, $24,357,823.00 is local funds, and $6,778,179.00 is federal funds.  Of the $10,362,331.00 in 
LCFF Funds, $217,080.00 is generated based on the enrollment of high needs students (foster youth, English 
learner, and low-income students). 
  

7



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 3 of 82 
 

LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 
 
The LCFF gives school districts more flexibility in deciding how to use state funds. In exchange, school districts 
must work with parents, educators, students, and the community to develop a Local Control and Accountability 
Plan (LCAP) that shows how they will use these funds to serve students. 
 

 
This chart provides a quick summary of how much Kings County Office of Education plans to spend for 2022-23. 

It shows how much of the total is tied to planned actions and services in the LCAP. 
 
The text description of the above chart is as follows: Kings County Office of Education plans to spend 
$42,646,823.00 for the 2022-23 school year. Of that amount, $693,216.00 is tied to actions/services in the LCAP 
and $41,953,607 is not included in the LCAP. The budgeted expenditures that are not included in the LCAP will 
be used for the following: 
 
Funds were not included, because they are funds generated for county operations, specific program services or 
grants, or other funds not designated for county-operated school programs. The budgeted expenditures that are 
not included in the LCAP will be used for the following: special education local plan area, information technology, 
business, human resources, payroll, credentialing, and maintenance and operations.        
 

Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in the 
LCAP for the 2022-23 School Year 

 
In 2022-23, Kings County Office of Education is projecting it will receive $217,080.00 based on the enrollment of 
foster youth, English learner, and low-income students. Kings County Office of Education must describe how it 
intends to increase or improve services for high needs students in the LCAP.  Kings County Office of Education 
plans to spend $217,080.00 towards meeting this requirement, as described in the LCAP. 
 
 
 
  

8



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 4 of 82 
 

LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 
 

Update on Increased or Improved Services for High Needs 
Students in 2021-22 

 
This chart compares what Kings County Office of Education budgeted last year in the LCAP for actions and 
services that contribute to increasing or improving services for high needs students with what  Kings County 
Office of Education estimates it has spent on actions and services that contribute to increasing or improving 

services for high needs students in the current year. 
 
The text description of the above chart is as follows: In 2021-22, Kings County Office of Education's LCAP 
budgeted $190,918.00 for planned actions to increase or improve services for high needs students. Kings County 
Office of Education actually spent $194,740.00 for actions to increase or improve services for high needs 
students in 2021-22. 
 
 
 

9



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 5 of 82 

 
 

Supplement to the Annual Update to the 2021–22 Local Control and 
Accountability Plan 
 

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 
Kings County Office of Education            Joy Santos           

Assistant Superintendent of Education Services 
joy.santos@kingscoe.org           
(559)589-7068 

 

California’s 2021–22 Budget Act, the federal American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, and other state and federal relief acts have provided local 
educational agencies (LEAs) with a significant increase in funding to support students, teachers, staff, and their communities in recovering 
from the COVID-19 pandemic and to address the impacts of distance learning on students. The following is a one-time mid-year report to the 
local governing board or body and educational partners related to engagement on, and implementation of, these Acts. 

 

A description of how and when the LEA engaged, or plans to engage, its educational partners on the use of funds provided through the 
Budget Act of 2021 that were not included in the 2020–21 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP). 
 

 
Following is a description of how and when the Kings County Office of Education engaged or plans to engage its educational partners on the 
use of funds provided through the Budget Act of 2021 that were not included in the 2021–22 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP). 
 
Kings County Office of Education has made continuous efforts to solicit educational partner feedback and is committed to the idea that 
meaningful feedback is an integral part of developing effective plans. As such, the Kings County Office of Education uses a variety of meetings 
and activities to involve educational partner voice in all plans including, but not limited to: 
1) Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant (current plan in place), 
2) Educator Effectiveness Block Grant (current plan in place), 
3) A-G Completion Improvement Grant Program: A-G Access Grant (anticipated plan), 
4) A-G Completion Improvement Grant Program: A-G Learning Loss Mitigation Grants (anticipated plan), 
5) Ethnic Studies Curricula Block Grant (anticipated plan), 
6) California Pre-kindergarten Planning and Implementation Grant Program (anticipated plan), 
 
Discussions and reviews of data, possible areas of focus, and proposed actions/services are all a part of our collaborative process. The 
following educational partners are actively involved in the development process: students, teachers, staff, parents, community, bargaining 
units (to include certificated and classified personnel), district administration, site principals, School Site Councils (including parents, 

10



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 6 of 82 

teachers/staff, and administration), site English learner representatives, and the Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA). Our School Site 
Council (SSC) functions as our Parent Advisory Council. All board meetings and School Site Council meetings are open to the public. 
Translations of documents and translators are available at each convening. 
 
J.C. Montgomery provides surveys in the Fall and Spring of each school year to parents, students, and staff. Surveys are provided 
electronically to staff and students. Surveys in English and Spanish for parents are also mailed home. Reminders are sent via Blackboard and 
social media in their system-identified languages. Follow-up calls are routinely made to parents to solicit further input verbally. Community 
input is also solicited during public hearings, School Site Council Meetings, and via website postings. Bargaining units meet in person to 
provide input. Kings County Office of Education district administration, the site principal, and the SELPA director collaborate virtually and in 
person.  As such, this feedback was also used to develop this plan. The School Site Council holds quarterly hybrid meetings (in-person and 
via Zoom) where attendees are provided the needs assessment data and asked to provide input. English Learner Representative feedback is 
obtained before or during School Site Council meetings. Kings County Office of Education is not required to establish an English Learner 
Advisory Committee (ELAC) or District English Learner Advisory Committee (DELAC) as the enrollment of English Learner students does not 
meet the minimum requirement. Educational partner feedback is consistently considered as we collaboratively review the most recent state 
and local data and identify possible root causes behind equitable access. Options are provided for remote participation in public meetings and 
public hearings surrounding the planning process include the opportunity for educational partners to join meetings via Zoom and telephone. 
Meeting conditions are based on current safe health practices as suggested by the local health department. 
 
Additionally, a survey was sent out to families, students, and staff to obtain feedback regarding the Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant. 
The Educator Effectiveness Block Grant was also submitted at a public meeting for feedback before board approval in a subsequent meeting. 
 
 
  

 

A description of how the LEA used, or plans to use, the additional concentration grant add-on funding it received to increase the number of 
staff who provide direct services to students on school campuses with an enrollment of students who are low-income, English learners, and/or 
foster youth that is greater than 55 percent. 
 

 
Kings County Office of Education did not receive the Concentration Grant Add-on funds. 
 
  

 

A description of how and when the LEA engaged its educational partners on the use of one-time federal funds received that are intended to 
support recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic and the impacts of distance learning on pupils. 
 

 
Following is a description of how and when Kings County Office of Education engaged its educational partners on the use of one-time federal 
funds received that are intended to support recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic and the impacts of distance learning on pupils. 

11



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 7 of 82 

 
Kings County Office of Education has made continuous efforts to solicit educational partner feedback and is committed to the idea that 
meaningful feedback is an integral part of developing effective plans. As such, the Kings County Office of Education uses a variety of meetings 
and activities to involve educational partner voice in all plans including, but not limited to: 
1) Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief (ESSER II) (no formal plan required), 
2) Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief (ESSER III) (current plan in place), 
 
Discussions and reviews of data, possible areas of focus, and proposed actions/services are all a part of our collaborative process. The 
following educational partners are actively involved in the development process: students, teachers, staff, parents, community, bargaining 
units (to include certificated and classified personnel), district administration, site principals, School Site Councils (including parents, 
teachers/staff, and administration), site English learner representatives, and the Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA). Our School Site 
Council (SSC) functions as our Parent Advisory Council. All board meetings and School Site Council meetings are open to the public. 
Translations of documents and translators are available at each convening. 
 
J.C. Montgomery provides surveys in the Fall and Spring of each school year to parents, students, and staff. Surveys are provided 
electronically to staff and students. Surveys in English and Spanish for parents are also mailed home. Reminders are sent via Blackboard and 
social media in their system-identified languages. Follow-up calls are routinely made to parents to solicit further input verbally. Community 
input is also solicited during public hearings, School Site Council Meetings, and via website postings. Bargaining units meet in person to 
provide input. Kings County Office of Education district administration, the site principal, and the SELPA director collaborate virtually and in 
person.  As such, this feedback was also used to develop this plan. The School Site Council holds quarterly hybrid meetings (in-person and 
via Zoom) where attendees are provided the needs assessment data and asked to provide input. English Learner Representative feedback is 
obtained prior to or during School Site Council meetings. Kings County Office of Education is not required to establish an English Learner 
Advisory Committee (ELAC) or District English Learner Advisory Committee (DELAC) as the enrollment of English Learner students does not 
meet the minimum requirement. Educational partner feedback is consistently considered as we collaboratively review the most recent state 
and local data and identify possible root causes behind equitable access. Options are provided for remote participation in public meetings and 
public hearings surrounding the planning process include the opportunity for educational partners to join meetings via Zoom and telephone. 
Meeting conditions are based on current safe health practices as suggested by the local health department. 
 
 
 
  

 

A description of how the LEA is implementing the federal American Rescue Plan Act and federal Elementary and Secondary School 
Emergency Relief expenditure plan, and the successes and challenges experienced during implementation. 
 

 
Following is a description of how Kings County Office of Education is implementing the federal American Rescue Plan Act and federal 
Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief expenditure plan, as well as the successes and challenges experienced during 
implementation. 

12



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 8 of 82 

 
In the first interim, the Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief (ESSER II) revised budget showed non-personnel expenses 
totaling approximately $14,000 and actuals through 11/30/2021 totaling approximately $13,000. These expenses include: Edgenuity software 
differentiation (rigorous instructional offerings & supplemental student materials) and Cengage. 
 
Next, included in the first interim, the Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief (ESSER III) revised budget showed personnel 
expenses totaling approximately $10,000 and actuals through 11/30/2021 totaling $0 as the extra days have not yet been completed. These 
expected expenses include increased days/time for the transitional specialist from 190 to 215 for 3 years. 
 
Successes regarding the implementation of the federal American Rescue Plan Act and federal Elementary and Secondary School Emergency 
Relief expenditure plan have included increased safety precautions to keep students and staff healthy and safe. Through this, we have also 
been able to support efforts to keep students and staff in school. An increase in technology and supplies have also supported health 
precautions. Funding to increase staff support to deliver rigorous instructional offerings and address learning loss was also key to supporting 
academic success. 
 
Challenges experienced regarding the implementation of the federal American Rescue Plan Act and federal Elementary and Secondary 
School Emergency Relief expenditure plan have been ongoing waves of COVID-related absences. Also, although we welcomed the idea of 
staff support, it has been extremely difficult to fill positions. 
 
 
  

 

A description of how the LEA is using its fiscal resources received for the 2021–22 school year in a manner that is consistent with the 
applicable plans and is aligned with the LEA’s 2021–22 LCAP and Annual Update. 
 
Following is a description of how Kings County Office of Education is using its fiscal resources received for the 2021–22 school year in a 
manner that is consistent with the applicable plans and is aligned with the LEA’s 2021–22 LCAP and Annual Update. 
 
Goal 1: Focus on student basic needs for engagement and maintain high expectations for student achievement. 
 
1.2 Support staff and instructional supplies to provide additional assistance in scaffolding academic content. Also included is professional 
development to train staff in appropriate instructional and social-emotional support strategies. Co-op contract to support plan administration 
and federal program review. 

• ESSER III: increased transitional specialist support 
• A-G Completion Improvement Grant Program (no expenses at the current time, however, professional development will be provided 

in the future and may utilize funds) 
• Educator Effectiveness Block Grant (no expenses at the current time, however, professional development will be provided in the 

future and may utilize funds) 
13



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 9 of 82 

 
1.3 Support staff and instructional supplies to provide additional assistance in scaffolding academic content. Also included is professional 
development to train staff in appropriate instructional/language acquisition strategies and social-emotional support for English Learners. Co-op 
contract to support plan administration and federal program review. 

• ESSER II: Technology 
• A-G Completion Improvement Grant Program (no expenses at the current time, however, professional development will be provided 

in the future and may utilize funds) 
• Educator Effectiveness Block Grant (no expenses at the current time, however, professional development will be provided in the 

future and may utilize funds) 
• Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant (instructional aide expenses to support scaffolding of academic content) 

 
1.4 Curriculum support to include, but not limited to: online licenses, KCOE MOU (memorandum of understanding) lesson design, curriculum 
adoption /replacement, Edgenuity, WASC renewal fees. 

• ESSER II: Edgenuity, Zoom 
• A-G Completion Improvement Grant Program (no expenses at the current time, however, professional development will be provided 

in the future and may utilize funds) 
 
1.5 Professional growth opportunities and data dissemination support to assist staff in meeting the academic and social-emotional needs of 
students. 

• Educator Effectiveness Block Grant (no expenses at the current time, however, professional development will be provided in the 
future and may utilize funds) 

 
1.6 Resource Specialist Program support contract (MOU) for training to assist students who have an Individualized Educational Plan (IEP) in 
place. 

• Educator Effectiveness Block Grant (no expenses at the current time, however, professional development will be provided in the 
future and may utilize funds) 

 
Goal 2: Provide a positive, safe, secure, and engaging learning environment that supports the social-emotional and mental health issues of 
our students. While strengthening parent engagement in the learning, rehabilitation, and success of students.  
 
2.1 Lesson creation assistance in the form of consulting to build an engaging curriculum to academically and emotionally support students. 

• Educator Effectiveness Block Grant (no expenses at the current time, however, professional development will be provided in the 
future and may utilize funds) 

• A-G Completion Improvement Grant Program (no expenses at the current time, however, professional development will be provided 
in the future and may utilize funds) 

• Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant (Movement Be MOU for writing expression lesson design expenses to support social-
emotional growth while connecting with core content) 

14



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 10 of 82 

 
2.2 Trauma-informed training is provided to support teachers in helping students build coping skills, self-efficacy and strengthen student-staff 
relationships. 

• Educator Effectiveness Block Grant (no expenses at the current time, however, professional development will be provided in the 
future and may utilize funds) 

 
2.3 Culturally Responsive Teaching training and activities will be provided for both teachers and parents to help them to recognize the 
importance of including students' cultural references in all aspects of learning. 

• Educator Effectiveness Block Grant (no expenses at the current time, however, professional development will be provided in the 
future and may utilize funds) 

• Ethnic Studies Curricula Block Grant (no expenses at the current time, however, professional development will be provided in the 
future and may utilize funds) 

 
Goals/Actions, not affected:  
1.1 Staff support to focus on student basic needs for engagement and maintain high expectations for student achievement. 
2.4 Parent engagement opportunities to strengthen communication with parents and provide support in the form of parent education and/or 
supplies for meetings. 
2.5 Homeless set aside to ensure that services are provided to students who are experiencing homelessness.  
 
Please note:  
1) Goal 3 is a county-wide goal to coordinate high-quality educational programs and services for Kings County Foster & Expelled youth and is 
not addressed here.  
2) California Pre-kindergarten Planning and Implementation Grant Program will not affect our LCAP as this will only be used to support the 
County Special Education school that is not represented in our LCAP.  
 
 
  

 

 

Instructions for the Supplement to the Annual Update for the 2021–22 Local 
Control and Accountability Plan Year 
 
For additional questions or technical assistance related to the completion of the Supplement to the Annual Update to the 2021–22 Local 
Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP), please contact the local county office of education (COE), or the California Department of Education’s 
(CDE’s) Local Agency Systems Support Office, by phone at 916-319-0809 or by email at lcff@cde.ca.gov. 
 

15

mailto:lcff@cde.ca.gov


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 11 of 82 

Introduction 
 
California’s 2021–22 Budget Act, the federal American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, and other state and federal relief acts have provided local 
educational agencies (LEAs) with a significant increase in funding to support students, teachers, staff, and their communities in recovering 
from the COVID-19 pandemic and to address the impacts of distance learning on students. Section 124(e) of Assembly Bill 130 requires LEAs 
to present an update on the Annual Update to the 2021–22 LCAP and Budget Overview for Parents on or before February 28, 2022, at a 
regularly scheduled meeting of the governing board or body of the LEA. At this meeting, the LEA must include all of the following: 

• The Supplement to the Annual Update for the 2021–22 LCAP (2021–22 Supplement); 
• All available mid-year outcome data related to metrics identified in the 2021–22 LCAP; and 
• Mid-year expenditure and implementation data on all actions identified in the 2021–22 LCAP. 

When reporting available mid-year outcome, expenditure, and implementation data, LEAs have flexibility to provide this information as best 
suits the local context, provided that it is succinct and contains a level of detail that is meaningful and accessible for the LEA’s educational 
partners. 
The 2021–22 Supplement is considered part of the 2022–23 LCAP for the purposes of adoption, review, and approval, and must be included 
with the LCAP as follows: 

• The 2022–23 Budget Overview for Parents 
• The 2021–22 Supplement 
• The 2022–23 LCAP 
• The Action Tables for the 2022–23 LCAP 
• The Instructions for the LCAP Template 

 
As such, the 2021–22 Supplement will be submitted for review and approval as part of the LEA’s 2022–23 LCAP. 
 

Instructions 
Respond to the following prompts, as required. In responding to these prompts, LEAs must, to the greatest extent practicable, provide succinct 
responses that contain a level of detail that will be meaningful and accessible for the LEA’s educational partners and the broader public and 
must, to the greatest extent practicable, use language that is understandable and accessible to parents. 
 
In responding to these prompts, the LEA has flexibility to reference information provided in other planning documents. An LEA that chooses to 
reference information provided in other planning documents must identify the plan(s) being referenced, where the plan(s) are located (such as 
a link to a web page), and where in the plan the information being referenced may be found. 
 
Prompt 1: “A description of how and when the LEA engaged, or plans to engage, its educational partners on the use of funds provided 
through the Budget Act of 2021 that were not included in the 2020–21 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP).” 
 

16



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 12 of 82 

In general, LEAs have flexibility in deciding what funds are included in the LCAP and to what extent those funds are included. If the LEA 
received funding through the Budget Act of 2021 that it would have typically included within its LCAP, identify the funds provided in the Budget 
Act of 2021 that were not included in the LCAP and provide a description of how the LEA has engaged its educational partners on the use of 
funds. If an LEA included the applicable funds in its adopted 2021–22 LCAP, provide this explanation. 
 
Prompt 2: “A description of how LEA used, or plans to use, the concentration grant add-on funding it received to increase the number of staff 
who provide direct services to students on school campuses with an enrollment of students who are low-income, English learners, and/or 
foster youth that is greater than 55 percent.” 
 
If LEA does not receive a concentration grant or the concentration grant add-on, provide this explanation. 
 
Describe how the LEA is using, or plans to use, the concentration grant add-on funds received consistent with California Education Code 
Section 42238.02, as amended, to increase the number of certificated staff, classified staff, or both, including custodial staff, who provide 
direct services to students on school campuses with greater than 55 percent unduplicated pupil enrollment, as compared to schools with an 
enrollment of unduplicated students that is equal to or less than 55 percent. 
 
In the event that the additional concentration grant add-on is not sufficient to increase the number of staff providing direct services to students 
at a school with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, describe how the LEA is using the funds to retain staff 
providing direct services to students at a school with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent. 
 
Prompt 3: “A description of how and when the LEA engaged its educational partners on the use of one-time federal funds received that are 
intended to support recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic and the impacts of distance learning on pupils.” 
 
If the LEA did not receive one-time federal funding to support recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic and the impacts of distance learning on 
students, provide this explanation. 
 
Describe how and when the LEA engaged its educational partners on the use of one-time federal funds it received that are intended to support 
recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic and the impacts of distance learning on students. See the COVID-19 Relief Funding Summary Sheet 
web page (https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/cr/relieffunds.asp) for a listing of COVID-19 relief funding and the Federal Stimulus Funding web page 
(https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/cr/) for additional information on these funds. The LEA is not required to describe engagement that has taken place 
related to state funds. 
 
Prompt 4: “A description of how the LEA is implementing the federal American Rescue Plan Act and federal Elementary and Secondary 
School Emergency Relief expenditure plan, and the successes and challenges experienced during implementation.” 
 
If an LEA does not receive ESSER III funding, provide this explanation. 
 
Describe the LEA’s implementation of its efforts to maintain the health and safety of students, educators, and other staff and ensure the 

17

https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/cr/relieffunds.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/cr/


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 13 of 82 

continuity of services, as required by the federal American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, and its implementation of the federal Elementary and 
Secondary School Emergency Relief (ESSER) expenditure plan to date, including successes and challenges. 
 
Prompt 5: “A description of how the LEA is using its fiscal resources received for the 2021–22 school year in a manner that is consistent with 
the applicable plans and is aligned with the LEA’s 2021–22 LCAP and Annual Update.” 
 
Summarize how the LEA is using its fiscal resources received for the 2021–22 school year to implement the requirements of applicable plans 
in a manner that is aligned with the LEA’s 2021–22 LCAP. For purposes of responding to this prompt, “applicable plans” include the Safe 
Return to In-Person Instruction and Continuity of Services Plan and the ESSER III Expenditure Plan. 
 
California Department of Education 
November 2021 
 

18



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 14 of 82 

 
 

Local Control Accountability Plan 
 
The instructions for completing the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) follow the template. 
 
Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 
Kings County Office of Education            Joy Santos           

Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
joy.santos@kingscoe.org           
(559)589-7068 

 

Plan Summary [2022-23] 
 
General Information 
 

A description of the LEA, its schools, and its students in grades transitional kindergarten–12, as applicable to the LEA. 
 

Kings County is a rural agricultural community, located in the San Joaquin Valley. The county's Census Day population was reported to be 
153,443 as of July 1, 2021, which was a 0.6% increase over 2020. Census data also reported the median household income to be $61,556 in 
2020.  It is home to three (3) state prison institutions, California State Prison - Corcoran, Avenal State Prison, and Pleasant Valley State 
Prison. The county-wide percentage of Unduplicated Pupil Count of Free/Reduced-Price Meals, including English Learners and Foster 
Youth, in 20-21 was 72.41%. Of these unduplicated students, students who received  Free/Reduced-Price Meals made up 70.8% (21,014 
students), English Learners made up 17.7% (5,261 students) and 232 (in 20-21) students were Foster Youth. Kings County educational 
institutions include one (1) County Office of Education, nine (9) Elementary School Districts, two (2) High School Districts, two (2) Unified 
School districts, and thirteen (13) charter schools. With a few exceptions, the typical district grade configurations in Kings County are 
elementary (K-8), high (9-12), and unified (K-12). The cumulative student enrollment of these schools for the 2020-21 school year was 
31,301. Of these students, 3,410 was the cumulative enrollment of students with disabilities in our county. 
 
Kings County Office of Education (KCOE) is located in Kings County in Hanford, California. Our county-run programs include two special 
population schools: Kings County Special Education/Shelly Baird School and J.C. Montgomery (JCM) School. Our special education site, 
Shelly Baird, is not only funded differently but their academic scores will no longer be reflected in our dashboard instead, these scores will 
return to their home school.  As such, you will not see Shelly Baird's school expenditures in this plan. J.C. Montgomery is a court school that 
serves incarcerated youth at the juvenile detention center and is the only school funded directly by the Local Control Funding Formula. With 

19

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#PlanSummary
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#generalinformation


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 15 of 82 

the health guidelines brought upon by the pandemic, our enrollment has seen a decline. The school-wide percentage of Unduplicated Pupil 
Count of Free/Reduced-Price Meals (including English Learners at 3 students (15.8 %), Foster Youth data was redacted due to the small 
number served) and overall was 100% in 20-21. It is important to understand the nature of our county's alternative education program as 
covered by this Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP), including the traumatic needs, academic challenges, and transiency of the 
student population served.  This LCAP was developed with an understanding and appreciation of the unique issues our students face, as 
well as the temporal nature of their time enrolled in our educational program. We will also be using the WASC Action Plan, educational 
partner feedback, and Local Indicators to guide our student improvement. Students at the court school come to us having been incarcerated 
pending their court proceedings or to serve their sentence for failure to successfully abide by judicial laws. Our students often come to us 
challenged with credit deficiencies, disengagement from school, local community and at times even their own families, from low-income or 
unemployed circumstances, struggling with drug use or abuse (either themselves or a family member), mental health issues, lack of both 
social coping skills, a mindset of educational despondence, and lack of self-discipline and/or esteem. Many of the students require intense 
intervention due to the lack of fundamental reading and/or math skills. Our program is key to providing students with a successfully engaging 
education and providing them the tools they need to become productive citizens in our community. 
         

 
 
Reflections: Successes 
 

A description of successes and/or progress based on a review of the California School Dashboard (Dashboard) and local data. 
 

Following is a description of successes and/or progress based on a review of the California School Dashboard (Dashboard) and local data: 
Local Indicator Priority #1: 

• Educational partners have provided feedback requesting that students continue to have access to 100% of standards-aligned 
materials, 100% fully credentialed teachers, and 100% appropriately assigned teachers. Educational partner feedback is a priority in 
all areas of the LCAP. 

• Facilities reviews continue to have exemplary results. 
Local Indicator Priority #2: 

• ELA iReady results show a 9.55% increase over last year 
• Continued status of Met on 2022 LCAP Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection, Priority 1 

State and Local Indicator self-assessment, based on educational partner feedback as well as state and local data: 
• Full Implementation and Sustainability in providing professional learning for teaching ELA – Common Core State Standards for ELA. 
• Full Implementation and Sustainability in making instructional materials that are aligned to the academic standards and/or curriculum 

frameworks for the following subject areas: ELA – Common Core State Standards for ELA, ELD (Aligned to ELA Standards), 
Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for Mathematics, Next Generation Science Standards. 

• Full Implementation and Sustainability in implementing policies or programs to support staff in identifying areas where they can 
improve in delivering instruction aligned to the academic standards and/or curriculum frameworks for the following subject areas: 
ELA – Common Core State Standards for ELA, ELD (Aligned to ELA Standards), Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for 
Mathematics, Next Generation Science Standards. 

20

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#ReflectionsSuccesses


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 16 of 82 

• Full Implementation and Sustainability in the LEA’s success at engaging in the following activities with teachers and school 
administrators during the prior school year (including the summer preceding the prior school year) 

Local Indicator Priority #3: 
• There was a 23.6% increase in parent participation in our Spring LCAP survey (all students are considered to be unduplicated at 

J.C. Montgomery) 
Local Indicator Priority #4: 

• ELA iReady results show a 9.55% increase over last year. This data point is used instead of CAASPP scores as we have 
consistently not had enough students to show reportable data (less than 11 students - data not displayed for privacy) 

• There was an increase of 4% in the number of students who completed A-G courses in Edgenuity (course completion and recovery) 
Local Indicator Priority #5: 

• High School dropout rates decreased by 40.85% 
• High School graduation rates increased by 12.29% 

Local Indicator Priority #6: 
• Suspension rates decreased by 2.4% 
• The sense of safety increased in the following areas: Pupils increased by 31.5%, Parents by 6.2%, and teachers maintained 100% 
• The sense of connection increased in the following areas: Pupils increased by 46.6% and Parents maintained at 93%. 

Local Indicator Priority #8: 
• Students participated in 19 more elective courses 

Local Indicator Priority #10: 
• There was an increase of 10.5% of Foster Youth who graduated county-wide 
• There was a decrease of 9.3% of Foster Youth that was suspended county-wide 
• 100% of district/site liaisons and child welfare services were trained on the Foster Focus Data System 

Following is our plan to maintain or build on the successes based on Local Indicator self-assessment data, educational feedback input, and 
state and local data: 
1) We would like to continue to improve the LEA’s progress in creating welcoming environments for all families in the community. Student 
stay duration is typically short and fluid which makes relationship building a challenge, but we will continue to reach out. With such a small 
population, communication makes pivots in current practices easier to manage. Parent survey completion was increased. We have moved to 
contacting parents individually to request feedback. This has proved to be a beneficial preactice that could only be had with this smaller 
population.  
2) For ELA, we have already planned to add a 3rd teacher for the 2022-23 school year. This will allow more individualized support and in-
person teaching.  
3) We would like to continue improving the graduation rate increase and drop-out decrease. To do this we will be engaging in CTE growth 
work over the 2022-23 school year.  
4) Although 100% of district/site liaisons and child welfare services were trained on the Foster Focus Data System, personnel are fluid, so we 
are constantly working to achieve our goal of 100%.  
 

 

21



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 17 of 82 

Reflections: Identified Need 
 

A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including any areas of low 
performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any steps taken to address those areas. 
 

Following is a description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including any 
areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any steps taken to address 
those areas:  
Local Indicator Priority #2: 

• Math iReady results show a 13.2% decrease over last year. We are working to add a 3rd teacher in 22-23 to provide in-person daily 
math instruction. 

Local Indicator Priority #4: 
• Math iReady results show a 13.2% decrease over last year. This data point is used instead of CAASPP scores as we have 

consistently not had enough students to show reportable data (less than 11 students - data not displayed for privacy). We are 
working to add a 3rd teacher in 22-23 to provide in-person daily math instruction. 

• We have been unable to adequately support the "percentage of pupils who have successfully completed courses that satisfy the 
requirements for career technical education sequences" and the "percentage of pupils who have successfully completed both types 
of courses" described in subparagraphs (B) and (C). As such we are leveraging Goal 1 to provide Career Technical Education 
(CTE) pathways. 

• English Learners: 
* There was a decrease of 0.73% in Designated ELD GPA.  
* We continue to have 0% redesignated ELs.  
* To support English language development and redesignation of students we will be working with our ELD coach to create units and work on 
strategies that will support English Learners. 
Local Indicator Priority #5: 

• School attendance rates have decreased by 8.7%. 
• Chronic Absenteeism rates were 58.3% for all students. The data source was changed this year as this was the most recent public-

facing data obtainable. 
• School attendance is not an option at juvenile court schools. As COVID health restrictions are relaxed, we expect these metrics to 

decrease. 
Local Indicator Priority #6: 

• The sense of connection decreased for teachers by 25%, however, we have changed the focus from teacher collaboration 
connections to student connections. 

Local Indicator Priority #9: 
• We are still in the Exploration and Research Phase. This was a part of the new 3-year plan for Expelled youth. We are looking to 

develop a memorandum of understanding (MOU) for partial credit with the districts to improve this metric. 
Local Indicator Priority #10: 

• There was an increase of 18.1% of Foster Youth who were chronically absent county-wide 

22

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#ReflectionsIdentifiedNeed


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 18 of 82 

Following is our plan to address areas of need based on Local Indicator self-assessment data, educational feedback input, and state and 
local data: 

• We will be adding a 3rd teacher during the 2022-23 school year. This will allow for daily, in-person math delivery and additional 
tutoring for students in need of additional assistance. 

• Regarding English Learner progress, although ELD grade point average continues to indicate this is within the "B" range, this 
continues to indicate a need. In the area of redesignations, again, although student enrollment is fluid, this continues to indicate 
need as well. To address this area, we have committed to working with our ELD coach to create units and work on strategies that 
will support English language development. 

• We would like to continue to focus on the LEA’s progress in providing all families with opportunities to provide input on policies and 
programs and implementing strategies to reach and seek input from any underrepresented groups in the school community. Our 
goal is to explore other ways to reach out to parents to attend engagement meetings. Tapping into community groups as a way to 
better reach out to families would be a way to explore and solicit feedback. 

• The Kings County Office of Education is eligible for DA for Low-Income students in the areas of Chronic absenteeism, Graduation 
Rate, and College/Career. As a district, we have analyzed local and state data completed a systems analysis and systems map, 
engaged in a root cause analysis, worked on a driver diagram, and have begun to develop plans for our PDSA cycle. Through state 
CISC leadership, we have learned of the forthcoming State Performance Plan Indicator (SPPI) Resource Guide being developed by 
the State System of Support SELPA leads and of the work to update the existing CCSESA Improving Performance of Students with 
Disabilities Handbook to better align with continuous improvement efforts in place. We intend to draw upon these resources for the 
development and implementation of steps to address the areas with the greatest need for improvement. 

 
 
LCAP Highlights 
 

A brief overview of the LCAP, including any key features that should be emphasized. 
 

Following is a brief overview of the LCAP, including any key features that should be emphasized: 
The overall focus of this new LCAP will be on social-emotional and mental well-being to support academic achievement and pupil 
engagement. Although our overall focus remains consistent, we will be adding our focus on Career Technical Education (CTE) development 
this year. Our CTE pathways have been non-existent for J.C. Montgomery, so this has been a major task we are working on to provide 
students with the accessibility they have lacked due to the fluid nature of the population.  We have experienced fluctuating enrollment for the 
past several years, however, we have continued to decline in enrollment, especially due to the health and safety concerns brought about by 
the pandemic. Due to the declining enrollment at J.C. Montgomery school, many of our state data points have not shown student information 
as "data not displayed for privacy." These missing data points include the CAASPP, ELPAC, and ELPI. To provide a comprehensive needs 
assessment, we have added local data sources, as much as possible, without exposing student information. Upon entry into our instructional 
programs, student transcripts are evaluated. Students are placed into courses based on their progress towards meeting graduation 
requirements. We continue to provide a variety of courses via our credit recovery program. This allows virtual access to a wide range of 
courses within a singular classroom. The in-person courses are taught by a limited number of teaching staff, which is based on student 
enrollment. The increase in course offerings through Edgenuity has allowed students to obtain more credits based on student achievement 
rather than a time-based model. We are also limited in our ability to offer a variety of physical education activities and science laboratories 

23

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#LCAPHighlights


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 19 of 82 

based on our facilities and access to physical space. We continue to work with our agency partners to provide opportunities for students that 
increase access to a broad course of study. 
 
Shelly Baird is the Kings County Special Education school. In the past, Shelly Baird's data was reported on the County Dashboard, however, 
now student achievement data will be returned to the student's school of origin, and as such, they are not reflected in our LCAP. 
         

 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement 
 

An LEA with a school or schools eligible for comprehensive support and improvement must respond to the following prompts. 
 

Schools Identified 
 

A list of the schools in the LEA that are eligible for comprehensive support and improvement. 
 

Kings County Office of Education does not have any schools that were identified as being eligible for comprehensive support and 
improvement.         

 

Support for Identified Schools 
 

A description of how the LEA has or will support its eligible schools in developing comprehensive support and improvement plans. 
 

Kings County Office of Education does not have any schools that were identified as being eligible for comprehensive support and 
improvement.         

 

Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness 
 

A description of how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the plan to support student and school improvement. 
 

Kings County Office of Education does not have any schools that were identified as being eligible for comprehensive support and 
improvement.         

 

24

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#SchoolsIdentified
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#SupportforIdentifiedSchools
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#MonitoringandEvaluatingEffectiveness


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 20 of 82 

Engaging Educational Partners 
 

A summary of the process used to engage educational partners and how this engagement was considered before finalizing the LCAP. 
 

Kings County Office of Education has made continuous efforts to solicit educational partner feedback and is committed to the idea that 
meaningful educational partner engagement is an integral part of developing effective plans. As such, the Kings County Office of Education 
used a variety of meetings and activities to involve educational partners in the 2022 Local Control and Accountability Plan process including 
the discussion and review of district data, possible areas of focus, and proposed actions and services. The following educational partners 
were actively involved in the development process: students, parents, teachers/staff, community, bargaining units (to include certificated and 
classified personnel), district administration/site principals, School Site Councils (SSC) (including parents, teachers/staff and administration), 
English learner representative input as part of SSC, and the Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA). Our School Site Council (SSC) 
functions as our Parent Advisory Council. 
 
J.C. Montgomery provided surveys in the Spring for parents, students, correctional staff, and educational staff. The survey was provided 
electronically to staff and students. Surveys in English and Spanish for parents were mailed home. Reminders were sent via Blackboard and 
social media in their system-identified languages. Follow-up calls were made to parents to solicit further input verbally. Community input was 
solicited during a public hearing. Bargaining units met in-person to provide input. Kings County Office of Education district administration, the 
site principal, and the SELPA director collaborated virtually and in person. As such, this feedback was also used to develop this plan. The 
collaboration continued monthly throughout the school year. The School Site Council held a hybrid meeting where attendees were able to 
provide input in person or via Zoom. English learner representative feedback was obtained through the School Site Council meetings. 
Educational partner input was considered as we collaboratively reviewed the most recent state and local data to identify the root causes 
behind equitable access. The options provided for remote participation in public meetings and public hearings surrounding the development 
process included the opportunity for educational partners to join meetings via Zoom and by telephone. In-person meeting conditions were all 
based on safe meeting practices as suggested by our county health department. The School Site Council meetings were scheduled quarterly 
(September, November, January, and May). J.C. Montgomery is not required to establish an English Learner Advisory Committee (ELAC) 
because the enrollment of English Learner students continues to fall well below the requirement of 21 and likewise the county office 
programs do not have a District English Learner Advisory Committee (DELAC) as we serve well below the threshold of 31 English Learner 
students. As such, English learner representatives are continuously invited to attend SSC meetings to provide input.  Translation services are 
provided to meet the needs of attendees. SSC meetings were hybrid (if health restrictions allow) so that attendees could participate virtually 
or in person. 
 
The Local Indicator self-assessment was also completed and reviewed to identify possible areas of growth that could be supported through 
the goals and actions of the Local Control and Accountability Plan. 
         

 
A summary of the feedback provided by specific educational partners. 
 

A summary of the feedback provided via discussions, surveys, and SSC meetings, by specific educational partner groups is listed below: 
 

25



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 21 of 82 

1) Students: 
Student survey data reveals that 94% of students feel connected to the school. 88% of students feel that the school provides social and 
emotional support. Students listed ideas to increase school engagement and academic success: more access to individualized assistance, 
more opportunities for hands-on activities, and access to music. 94% of students felt that being Western Association of Schools and College 
accredited is helpful to the school. Through discussions and surveys, students indicated they felt more motivated to complete classwork if 
they had access to music and incentives. They requested more time and opportunities to work on credit recovery. Students were provided 
with innovative academic opportunities such as Stories with Style, the Skateboard art project, hands-on social-emotional learning lessons, 
hands-on Science lessons, high-interest English and rock and roll units, CodeCombat access, and Break-free challenges. Student interest 
was high and they requested to continue these experiences. 
 
2) Educational Staff (includes Teachers) and Correctional Staff: 
Educational staff survey data revealed that 100% of staff surveyed feel that being Western Association of Schools and Colleges accredited is 
helpful to the school. 100% of staff feel that the site has high expectations of students and classes are academically challenging. 100% of 
staff members feel that communication between the school and parents or guardians is very or somewhat effective. 100% of staff believe it is 
important for their students to graduate from high school. Through discussions and surveys, staff indicated they would like a higher staff-to-
student ratio and continued support in the area of behavior tied to counseling services and Social-emotional lessons. 
Correctional Staff survey data revealed that 88% believe it important to support our student's social and emotional needs. 100% believe it is 
important for our students to graduate from high school. The overall consensus was to continue the high-engagement lessons and activities. 
 
3) Parents: 
Parent survey data revealed that 100% of parents report that the school has high expectations for students. 100% of parents feel that 
becoming Western Association of Schools and Colleges accredited is helpful to the school. 100% of parents feel the school is very 
supportive of students' social and emotional needs. 100% of parents feel that the communication from school to parents or guardians is very 
effective. The overall feedback from parents was very positive.  They often commented how they felt more connected, welcomed, and 
informed by J.C. Montgomery staff and how this exceeded experiences with their district of residence. 
 
4) Community: 
The 2022 Local Control and Accountability Plan was presented at a public hearing meeting. ________________________ public comments. 
The 2021 Local Control and Accountability Plan was also taken for input at J.C. Montgomery School Site Council. Educational partners were 
able to view a draft of the newly prepared LCAP.  Principal reviewed survey data with the SSC. Because goals for 23-24 were met in the 
areas of student safety, parent perception of school safety, and student connection to the school, these goals may be adjusted. Principal 
noted that while site benchmarks show that students are meeting the goal set for ELA, they are not meeting the goal for math. Because of 
this, the site plans to implement in person, direct instruction of math for the 22-23 school year.  Feedback recieved from parents included: 1) 
student incentives make students want to work and 2) they appreciate the way staff interact with the students, and how they are always 
willing to give help, and 3) the school should keep doing what they are doing and although there are not a lot of kids at JC Montgomery the 
changes being made keep the students happy.  A teacher also commented 1) that they appreciate staff from the outside (consultant support) 
coming in, 2) art projects should continue, and 3) impressed that the students are being taught to make businesses out of their talents. 
 

26



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 22 of 82 

5) Bargaining Unit: Representatives from both the Certificated and Classified County office units felt continued health and safety procedures 
regarding the COVID-19 pandemic were needed. They also indicated they would like a higher staff-to-student ratio and continued support in 
the area of behavior tied to counseling services and Social-emotional lessons. 
 
6) District Administration and Site Principal: 
During collaborative meetings, the importance of addressing the social-emotional needs of students, parents, and staff was stressed. Input 
from students, staff, community members, bargaining units, the School Site Council, the English learner committee, and the SELPA were 
discussed and utilized to determine the action items for this plan. District Administration and Site Principal agree, based on English learner 
reclassification and other associated data, that support strategies for English Learners will be included. They also determined an additional 
staff member is needed to increase engagement and services to students. The administration has also prioritized the development of a CTE 
pathway.  The funds listed in the LCAP are supplemental to the grants we have acquired to focus on this area. 
 
7) SELPA: 
Meetings were held between the district administration, the site principal, and the SELPA director to align the 2022 Local Control and 
Accountability Plan with special education requirements and expected outcomes. The SELPA director also held meetings and communicated 
through email with J.C. Montgomery's special education teaching staff to provide support for individual student needs. 
         

 
A description of the aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by specific input from educational partners. 
 

A description of the aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by specific educational partner input was as follows: 
• Goal 1, Action 1, contains staff support to focus on student basic needs for engagement and maintain high expectations for student 

achievement, as requested by parents, teachers/staff, students, District Administration, and Site Principal. 
• Goal 1, Action 2 & 3, contain support staff and instructional supplies to provide additional assistance in scaffolding academic 

content, as requested by parents, teachers/staff, students, District Administration, and Site Principal. 
• Goal 1, Action 4 contains the WASC, supplemental curriculum support, and CTE support requested by parents, staff, and students 

based on the importance of WASC and graduation. Although the funding through the LCAP is not especially notable, we have 
acquired grants to focus efforts. 

• Goal 1, Action 6, contains the special education support as suggested by the SELPA. 
• A focus on social-emotional support can be seen heavily throughout the plan and more specifically, Goal 1 (Action 4) and weaved 

within all of Goal 2, as requested by parents, teachers/staff, students, District Administration, and Site Principal. 
• Although the enhanced health and safety procedures were not funded through the Local Control and Accountability Plan, we will 

continue with these processes and procedures as needed and requested by the Bargaining Unit. 
 

 

27



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 23 of 82 

Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 
 

Goal # Description 
1 Focus on student basic needs for engagement and maintain high expectations for student achievement. 

 
State Priorities: Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning); Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning); Priority 4: 
Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes); Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement); Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions 
of Learning); Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes) 
         

 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
 

Kings County Office of Education has chosen to prioritize this goal based on the opportunity for growth in the following areas: 
1) Educational partner have provided feedback requesting that Students have had access to 100% of standards-aligned materials, 100% fully 
credentialed teachers, and 100% appropriately assigned teachers. 
2) We are seeking to increase local iReady benchmarks in both ELA and Math. 
3) We are seeking to decrease high school dropout rates. 
4) We are seeking to increase high school graduation rates. 
5) We are seeking to increase the access to electives. 
6) We are seeking to maintain - Full Implementation and Sustainability in implementing policies or programs to support staff in identifying 
areas where they can improve in delivering instruction aligned to the academic standards and/or curriculum frameworks for the following 
subject areas: ELA – Common Core State Standards for ELA, ELD (Aligned to ELA Standards), Mathematics – Common Core State 
Standards for Mathematics, Next Generation Science Standards. As well as increase History-Social Science from Full Implementation to Full 
Implementation and Sustainability. 
Educational partners have participated in surveys and meetings where they have been asked to provide input to both solidify initial findings 
and thoughts regarding areas of importance. 
The following State Priorities: Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning); Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning); Priority 4: Pupil 
Achievement (Pupil Outcomes); Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement); Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning); Priority 8: 
Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes) and outlined actions have been selected to support the six outlined objectives above. Outlined 
objectives will be monitored and adjusted through the execution of these actions and data obtained from these metrics. 
         

 

Measuring and Reporting Results 
 

28

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 24 of 82 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

Priority 1: Basic 
Services (Conditions 
of Learning) 
A. Appropriately 
Assigned & 
Credentialed 
Teachers 
 
B. Instructional 
Materials 
 
C. School Repairs 
        

A1. 100% of teachers 
are appropriately 
assigned 
A2. 100% of teachers 
are fully credentialed 
 
B. 100% sufficient 
access to standards-
aligned materials 
 
C. Exemplary rating 
on the FIT 
 
(SARC 2019-2020) 
 

A1. 100% of teachers 
are appropriately 
assigned 
A2. 100% of teachers 
are fully credentialed 
 
B. 100% sufficient 
access to standards-
aligned materials 
 
C. Exemplary rating 
on the FIT 
 
(SARC 2021-2022) 
 

  A1. 100% of teachers 
are appropriately 
assigned 
A2. 100% of teachers 
are fully credentialed 
 
B. 100% sufficient 
access to standards-
aligned materials 
 
C. Exemplary rating 
on the FIT 
 

Priority 2: State 
Standards (Conditions 
of Learning) 
A. Implementation of 
academic content and 
performance 
standards 
 
B. How the programs 
and services will 
enable English 
learners to access the 
CCSS and the ELD 
standards for 
purposes of gaining 
academic content 
knowledge and 
English language 
proficiency 
        

A. local benchmarks: 
(iReady 2020) 
1) ELA: 45% of 
students showing 
growth 
2) Math: 35.8% of 
students showing 
growth 
3) Status of Met on 
2021 LCAP Local 
Performance Indicator 
Self-Reflection, 
Priority 1 
 
B. English Learner 
Progress Indicator 
(ELPI): 
1) Kings County Office 
of Education: 11.1% 
making progress 

A. local benchmarks: 
(iReady 2020) 
1) ELA: 54.55% of 
students showing 
growth 
2) Math: 22.60% of 
students showing 
growth 
*Please note: data 
represents students 
that took the 
benchmark more than 
once so they have an 
initial score and at 
least one additional 
score to determine 
growth/decline 
3) Status of Met on 
2022 LCAP Local 
Performance Indicator 

  A. Local benchmarks: 
(iReady) 
1) ELA: Increase to 
55% of students will 
show growth 
2) Math: Increase to 
45% of students will 
show growth 
3) Status of Met on 
2021 LCAP Local 
Performance Indicator 
Self-Reflection, 
Priority 1 
 
B. English Learner 
Progress Indicator 
(ELPI): 
1) Kings County Office 
of Education: *All 
Shelly Baird student 

29



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 25 of 82 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

towards English 
language proficiency 
2) J.C. Montgomery: 
Less than 11 students 
- data not displayed 
for privacy.  As such, 
we will be using 
Designated ELD class 
enrollment: 100% of 
EL students enrolled 
(CA Dashboard 2019) 
 

Self-Reflection, 
Priority 1 
 
B. English Learner 
Progress Indicator 
(ELPI): 
1) Kings County Office 
of Education:  *All 
Shelly Baird student 
data will return to the 
school of origin 
2) J.C. Montgomery: 
Less than 11 students 
- data not displayed 
for privacy.  As such, 
we will be using 
Designated ELD class 
enrollment: 100% of 
EL students enrolled 
 

data will return to the 
school of origin 
2) J.C. Montgomery: 
Designated ELD class 
enrollment: 100% of 
EL students enrolled 
 

Priority 4: Pupil 
Achievement (Pupil 
Outcomes) 
A. Statewide 
assessments 
 
B. The percentage of 
pupils who have 
successfully 
completed courses 
that satisfy the 
requirements for 
entrance to the 
University of California 

A. CAASPP: (CA 
Dashboard 2019) 
1) ELA: Less than 11 
students - data not 
displayed for privacy 
1) Math: Less than 11 
students - data not 
displayed for privacy 
As such, we will be 
using iReady data: 
1) ELA: 45% of 
students showing 
growth 

A. CAASPP: (CA 
Dashboard 2020) 
1) ELA: Less than 11 
students - data not 
displayed for privacy 
1) Math: Less than 11 
students - data not 
displayed for privacy 
As such, we will be 
using iReady data: 
1) ELA: 54.55% of 
students showing 
growth 

  A. CAASPP: 
1) ELA: Less than 11 
students - data not 
displayed for privacy 
2) Math: Less than 11 
students - data not 
displayed for privacy 
As such, we will be 
using iReady data: 
1) ELA: Increase to 
55% of students 
showing growth 
2) Math: Increase to 
45% of students 
showing growth 

30



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 26 of 82 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

and the California 
State University 
 
C. The percentage of 
pupils who have 
successfully 
completed courses 
that satisfy the 
requirements for 
career technical 
education sequences 
or programs of study 
that align with SBE-
approved career 
technical education 
standards and 
frameworks 
 
D. The percentage of 
pupils who have 
successfully 
completed both types 
of courses described 
in subparagraphs (B) 
and (C) 
 
E. Percentage of 
English learners who 
make progress toward 
English proficiency as 
measured by the 
ELPAC 
 
F. The English learner 
reclassification rate 

2) Math: 35.8% of 
students showing 
growth 
 
B. Less than 11 
students - data not 
displayed for privacy 
(CA Dashboard 2019 - 
CCI Indicator) 
As such, we will be 
using Edgenuity data: 
20% of students 
completed A-G 
Courses 
 
C. 0% of pupils have 
successfully 
completed courses 
that satisfy the 
requirements for 
career technical 
education sequences. 
This is not in place yet 
 
D. 0% percentage of 
pupils who have 
successfully 
completed both (B) 
and (C) 
 
E. ELPAC (DataQuest 
2018-19) 
In order to protect 
student privacy, data 
is suppressed 

2) Math: 22.60% of 
students showing 
growth 
 
B. Less than 11 
students - data not 
displayed for privacy 
(CA Dashboard 2019 - 
CCI Indicator) 
As such, we will be 
using Edgenuity data: 
24% of students 
completed A-G 
Courses 
 
C. 0% of pupils have 
successfully 
completed courses 
that satisfy the 
requirements for 
career technical 
education sequences. 
This is not in place yet 
 
D. 0% percentage of 
pupils who have 
successfully 
completed both (B) 
and (C) 
 
E. ELPAC (DataQuest 
2020-21) 
In order to protect 
student privacy, data 
is suppressed 

 
B. 40% of students 
who will complete A-G 
Courses 
 
C. 5% of pupils will 
successfully complete 
courses that satisfy 
the requirements for 
career technical 
education sequences 
 
D. 5% percentage of 
pupils will successfully 
complete both (B) and 
(C) 
 
E. Designated ELD 
GPA: 3.66/A- 
 
F. Reclassification 
Rate: (DataQuest 
2020-21) 
1) Kings County Office 
of Education: *All 
Shelly Baird student 
data will return to the 
school of origin 
2) J.C. Montgomery: 
10% 
 
G. 0% of pupils who 
have passed an 
advanced placement 

31



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 27 of 82 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

 
G. The percentage of 
pupils who have 
passed an advanced 
placement exam with 
a score of “3” or 
higher 
 
H. The percentage of 
pupils who participate 
in, and demonstrate 
college preparedness 
pursuant to the Early 
Assessment Program 
 
        

because 10 or fewer 
students tested 
As such, we will use 
Designated ELD GPA: 
3.33/ B+ 
 
F. Reclassification 
Rate: (DataQuest 
2020-21) 
1) Kings County Office 
of Education: 27 (56.2 
%) 
2) J.C. Montgomery: 0 
(0.0 %) (Total # of 
Enrolled ELs=3) 
 
G. 0% of pupils who 
have passed an 
advanced placement 
exam with a score of 
“3” or higher 
(DataQuest 2018-19) 
 
H. 0% demonstrate 
college preparedness 
pursuant to the Early 
Assessment Program 
(EAP) 
(DataQuest 2018-19) 
 

because 10 or fewer 
students tested 
As such, we used 
Designated ELD GPA: 
2.6/ B- 
 
F. Reclassification 
Rate: (DataQuest 
2021-22) 
1) Kings County Office 
of Education: *All 
Shelly Baird student 
data will return to the 
school of origin 
2) J.C. Montgomery: 0 
(0.0 %) (Total # of 
Enrolled ELs=6) 
 
G. 0% of pupils who 
have passed an 
advanced placement 
exam with a score of 
“3” or higher 
(DataQuest 2020-21) 
 
H. 0% demonstrate 
college preparedness 
pursuant to the Early 
Assessment Program 
(EAP) (DataQuest 
2020-21) 
 

exam with a score of 
“3” or higher 
 
H. 0% demonstrate 
college preparedness 
pursuant to the Early 
Assessment Program 
students do not have 
access to EAP 
 

Priority 5: Pupil 
Engagement 
(Engagement) 

A. School attendance 
rates: (Aeries) 
JCM: 95.07% from 

A. School attendance 
rates: (Aeries) 
JCM: 86.37% 

  A. School attendance 
rates:  
JCM: 97% 

32



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 28 of 82 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

A. School attendance 
rates 
 
B. Chronic 
Absenteeism rates 
 
C. Middle school 
dropout rates 
 
D. High school 
dropout rates 
 
E. High school 
graduation rates 
        

7/1/2019-2/7/2020 
 
B. Chronic 
Absenteeism rates 
(CA Dashboard 2019-
20) 
1) Kings County Office 
of Education: 

• All students: 
Red, 51.2% 
Chronically 
absent, 
increased by 
4.1%, Very 
High 

• Low-income: 
Red, 50% 
Chronically 
absent, 
increased by 
2.4%, Very 
High 

• students with 
Disabilities: 
Red, 51.6% 
Chronically 
absent, 
increased by 
3.4%, Very 
High 

2) J.C. Montgomery: 
• All students: 

Less than 11 
students - 
data not 

 
B. Chronic 
Absenteeism rates 
(CA Dashboard) 
1) Kings County Office 
of Education: *All 
Shelly Baird student 
data will return to the 
school of origin  
2) J.C. Montgomery: 
(changed to 
DataQuest 20-21, 
otherwise there would 
be no reportable data) 

• All students: 
58.3% 

• Low-income: 
58.3% 

• Students with 
Disabilities: 
57.1% 

 
C. Middle school 
dropout rate 
J.C. Montgomery: 
0/0Total Served = 0% 
 
D. High School 
dropout rates: 
(CALPADS) 
J.C. Montgomery: 
11/91 Total Served = 
12.09% 
 
E. High School 

 
B. Chronic 
Absenteeism rates  
1) Kings County Office 
of Education: *All 
Shelly Baird student 
data will return to the 
school of origin  
2) J.C. Montgomery: 

• All students: 
Less than 11 
students - 
data not 
displayed 
due to 
privacy 

• Low-income: 
Less than 11 
students - 
data not 
displayed 
due to 
privacy 

• students with 
Disabilities: 
Less than 11 
students - 
data not 
displayed 
due to 
privacy 

*students who are 
incarcerated are 
required to attend 
school 

33



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 29 of 82 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

displayed 
due to 
privacy 

• Low-income: 
Less than 11 
students - 
data not 
displayed 
due to 
privacy 

• students with 
Disabilities: 
Less than 11 
students - 
data not 
displayed 
due to 
privacy 

 
C. Middle school 
dropout rate 
J.C. Montgomery: 0/1 
Total Served = 0% 
 
D. High School 
dropout rates: 
(CALPADS) 
J.C. Montgomery: 
9/17 Total Served = 
52.94% 
 
E. High School 
graduation rates: 
(CBEDS) 
1) Kings County Office 

graduation rates:  
1) Kings County Office 
of Education: Shelly 
Baird student data will 
return to the school of 
origin  
2) J.C. Montgomery: 
#/# Seniors on 
CBEDS = 41.7% 
(4-year cohort via 
Dataquest) 
 
*All data through 
5/1/2022 
 

 
C. Middle school 
dropout rate: 
J.C. Montgomery: #/# 
Total Served = 0% 
 
D. High School 
dropout rates:  
J.C. Montgomery: #/# 
Total Served = 45% 
 
E. High School 
graduation rates: 
(CBEDS) 
J.C. Montgomery: #/# 
Seniors on CBEDS = 
40% 
 

34



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 30 of 82 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

of Education: 6/35 
Seniors on CBEDS = 
17.14% 
2) J.C. Montgomery: 
5/17 Seniors on 
CBEDS = 29.41% 
 

Priority 7: Course 
Access (Conditions of 
Learning): 
The extent to which 
pupils have access to 
and are enrolled in: 
A. A broad course of 
study 
B. Programs and 
services developed 
and provided to 
unduplicated pupils 
C. Programs and 
services developed 
and provided to 
students with 
disabilities 
        

A. 100% of students 
have course access 
 
B. 100% of 
unduplicated pupils 
have course access 
and access to 
services 
 
C. 100% of students 
with disabilities have 
course access and 
access to services 
 
(Local Indicators 
2020-21) 
 

A. 100% of students 
have course access 
 
B. 100% of 
unduplicated pupils 
have course access 
and access to 
services 
 
C. 100% of students 
with disabilities have 
course access and 
access to services 
 
(Local Indicators 
2021-22) 
 

  A. 100% of students 
will have course 
access 
 
B. 100% of 
unduplicated pupils 
will have course 
access and access to 
services 
 
C) 100% of individuals 
students with 
disabilities will have 
course access and 
access to services 
 

Priority 8: Other Pupil 
Outcomes 
Course completion: 
Foreign Language, 
Applied Arts, Career 
Technical Education 
        

students participated 
in 12 elective courses 
from 7/2020 through 
5/2021 

students participated 
in 31 elective courses 
from 7/2021 through 
5/2022 

  students will 
participate in 15 
elective courses from 
7/2023 through 
5/2024 

 

Actions 
35

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#actions


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 31 of 82 

 
Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 

1.1 Staff Support        Staff support to focus on student basic needs for engagement and 
maintain high expectations for student achievement. Included in this 
activity are indirect costs totaling $9,729. 
Priority 1: Basic Services (Conditions of Learning) 
Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning) 
Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes) 
 
 
 

$129,991.00 Yes     
X 
 

1.2 Support Staff and 
Instructional Supplies 
(Title I N & D)        

Support staff and instructional supplies to provide additional 
assistance in scaffolding academic content. Also included is 
professional development to train staff in appropriate instructional and 
social-emotional support strategies. Co-op contract to support plan 
administration and federal program review. Included in this activity are 
indirect costs totaling $10,567. (Title 1 N & D) 
Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning) 
Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes) 
Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement) 
 
 
 

$141,190.00 No      
Low-income 

 

1.3 Support Staff and 
Instructional Supplies 
(Title I Part A)        

Support staff and instructional supplies to provide additional 
assistance in scaffolding academic content. Also included is 
professional development to train staff in appropriate 
instructional/language acquisition strategies and social-emotional 
support for English Learners. Co-op contract to support plan 
administration and federal program review.  Included in this activity are 
indirect costs totaling $681. (Title 1 Part A) 
Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning) 
Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes) 
Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement) 
 
 
 

$9,100.00 No      
English Learner 

 

1.4 Curriculum Support        Curriculum Support to include, but not limited to: $18,594.00 Yes     
36



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 32 of 82 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
• Online Licenses 
• KCOE MOU Lesson Design 
• Curriculum adoption/replacement 
• Edgenuity 
• WASC Renewal Fees 
• Video materials 
• CTE support 

Included in this activity are indirect costs totaling $1,392. 
Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)  
Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes) 
Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement) 
Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning) 
Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes  
 
 
 

X 
 

1.5 Professional Growth 
and Data 
Dissemination 
Support        

Professional growth opportunities and data dissemination support to 
assist staff in meeting the academic and social-emotional needs of 
students.  Included in this activity are indirect costs totaling $40. 
Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning) 
Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes) 
Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement) 
 
 
 

$540.00 Yes     
X 
 

1.6 RSP Support        Resource Specialist Program support contract (MOU) for training to 
assist students who have an Individualized Educational Plan (IEP) in 
place. Included in this activity are indirect costs totaling $243. 
Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning) 
Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes) 
 
 
 

$3,243.00 No      
X 
 

 

37



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 33 of 82 

Goal Analysis [2021-22] 
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 
 

The overall intent of this goal was to focus on students' basic needs for engagement and maintain high expectations for student 
achievement. To meet this objective, our actions included providing staff and curriculum support as well as ongoing time and dedicated 
opportunities for not only data dissemination but for staff to attend professional development sessions. All actions were carried out and there 
were no substantive differences in planned actions and implementation of these actions. 
Challenges: 
It was difficult hiring for our Instructional aide position as qualified candidate choices were limited. As there was a reduction in Title funds to 
supplement actions in this goal, we need to prioritize needs that had been previously agreed upon. The fluidity of student enrollment make it 
difficult to put longtern plans into place.  The low & fluid enrollment also makes it difficult to effectively track and share data with educational 
partners as we want to ensure student privacy. 
Successes: 
As the year progressed, we were able to quickly pivot regarding the types of professional development to provide for current student needs. 
The program student enrollment is fluid and requires constant reevaluation of the current student needs to make sure we are prepared to 
equitably serve our unduplicated population in an effective manner.  One pivot in particular was the addition of professional development for 
Math. We were also able to purchase novels for students. 
        

 
An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 
 

Our planned budget was $320,816.00, however, our total estimated actual expenditures were $329,647.63.  Budgeted costs were exceeded 
due to: 1) additional costs incurred by salary increases, 2) additional staff needed to serve students, and 3) a decrease in title funding.  
Although our overall daily numbers in our facility are relatively low, J.C. Montgomery has 3 units (grouped cohorts of students).  These 
students are separated in a manner that they are not a danger to themselves or others.  This proves to be a challenge as the amount of staff 
that is required for this task is not always easily attainable.        

 
An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 
 

ELA we are within less than a 0.5% towards meeting our 23-24 goal. Math declined about 13% and is at 22.6%. We require a 22.4% growth 
to meet our 23-24 goal. CAASPP data is not displayed for privacy as such we used the previously mentioned iReady data. There was a 4% 
increase of students completing A-G Courses. For ELPAC, in order to protect student privacy, data is suppressed because 10 or fewer 
students tested. As such, we used Designated ELD GPA to track progress which was 2.6/ B-. High School dropout rates have decreased 
greatly from 52.94% to 12.09%.  J.C. Montgomery attributes this to the communication and follow-up from our Transition Specialist who 
works to make sure students continue their school enrollment once they are released from our program. We have seen this same success as 
we look at the increase in our graduation rate from 29.41% to 41.7%. This also goes along with the increase of students who participated in 
elective courses which has increased from 12 to 31. Again, we recognize the support from our Transition Specialist, as well as the 

38

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 34 of 82 

opportunities our students have been afforded to access credit recovery. It is also worth mentioning the innovative student engagement units 
we are proud to have implemented to keep students motivated to participate and ultimately graduate. Overall, we were effective in making 
progress toward our goal.        

 
A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from 
reflections on prior practice. 
 

Due to the pandemic, we have seen an increase in attendance and absenteeism rates. As restrictions and conditions improve we expect 
these metrics will improve as well.  We are working to add a 3rd teacher in 22-23 to provide in-person daily math instruction. Also in 22-23, 
we have committed to working with our ELD coach to create units and work on strategies that will support English language development. 
Our main focus for this goal will be to strengthen our CTE courses and continue to work on engaging and innovative ways to reach our at-
promise students.        

 
A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 
 

39



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 35 of 82 

Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 
 

Goal # Description 
2 Provide a positive, safe, secure, and engaging learning environment that supports the social-emotional and mental health 

issues of our students. Strengthen parent engagement in the learning, rehabilitation, and success of students. 
 
State Priorities: Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement) & Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement) 
         

 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
 

Kings County Office of Education has chosen to prioritize this goal based on the opportunity for growth in the following areas: 
1) We are seeking to increase parent feedback and participation. 
2) We are seeking to decrease student suspension for all students and low-income students. 
3) We are seeking to increase and/or maintain (where 100% is indicated) survey feedback. 
Educational partners have participated in surveys and meetings where they have been asked to provide input to both solidify initial findings 
and thoughts regarding areas of importance. 
The following State Priorities: State Priorities: Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement) & Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement) and 
outlined actions have been selected to support the three outlined objectives above. Outlined objectives will be monitored and adjusted 
through the execution of these actions and data obtained from these metrics. 
         

 

Measuring and Reporting Results 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

State Priorities: 
Priority 3: Parental 
Involvement 
(Engagement) 
A. The efforts the 
school district makes 
to seek parent input in 
making decisions for 
the school district and 

A. 44.4% participation 
by all 
Parent/Guardians on 
the 2020 Spring LCAP 
Survey 
 
B. 44.4% participation 
by Parent/Guardian of 
unduplicated pupils on 

A. 68% participation 
by all 
Parent/Guardians on 
the 2022 Spring LCAP 
Survey 
 
B. 68% participation 
by Parent/Guardian of 
unduplicated pupils on 

  A. 65% participation 
by all 
Parent/Guardians on 
the LCAP Survey 
 
B. 65% participation 
by Parent/Guardian of 
unduplicated pupils on 
LCAP Survey 

40

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 36 of 82 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

each individual school 
site 
 
B. How the school 
district will promote 
parental participation 
in programs for 
unduplicated pupils 
 
C. How the school 
district will promote 
parental participation 
in programs for 
students with 
disabilities 
        

2020 Spring LCAP 
Survey 
 
C. 100% 
Parent/Guardian 
participation in IEPs 
 
A. B. and C. Status of 
Met on 2021 LCAP 
Local Performance 
Indicator Self-
Reflection, Priority 3 
 

2022 Spring LCAP 
Survey 
 
C. 100% 
Parent/Guardian 
participation in IEPs 
 
A. B. and C. Status of 
Met on 2022 LCAP 
Local Performance 
Indicator Self-
Reflection, Priority 3 
 

 
C. 100% of 
Parent/Guardian will 
participate in IEPs 
 
A. B. and C. Status of 
Met on 2021 LCAP 
Local Performance 
Indicator Self-
Reflection, Priority 3 
 

Priority 6: School 
Climate (Engagement) 
A. Pupil Suspension 
rate 
 
B. Pupil Expulsion 
rate 
 
C. Other local 
measures, including 
surveys of pupils, 
parents, and teachers 
on the sense of safety 
and school 
connectedness 
        

A. % Suspended (CA 
Dashboard 2019) 
1) Kings County Office 
of Education: 

• All Students: 
Red, 9.3% 
suspended at 
least once, 
maintained 
0.2%, Very 
High 

• Hispanic: 
Orange, 
7.4% 
suspended at 
least once, 
maintained 
0.2%, Very 
High 

A. % Suspended (* No 
dashboard info 
available, will use 
DataQuest for current 
needs and return to 
Dashboard for the 22-
23 school year) 
1) Kings County Office 
of Education: 

• All Students: 
0.6% 

• Hispanic: N/A 
• Low Income: 

N/A 
• English 

Learner: 0% 
• Students with 

Disabilities: 
N/A 

  A. % Suspended  
1) Kings County Office 
of Education: 
*All Shelly Baird data 
will return to the 
school of origin. 
2) J.C.Montgomery: 

• All Students: 
6% 
suspended at 
least once 

• Hispanic: 
3.5% 
suspended at 
least once 

• Low Income: 
6% 
suspended at 
least once 

41



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 37 of 82 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

• Low Income: 
Orange, 
9.6% 
suspended at 
least once, 
declined 
1.3%, Very 
High 

• English 
Learner: 
Green, 3.4% 
suspended at 
least once, 
declined 
1.2%, Low 

• Students with 
Disabilities: 
Orange, 9% 
suspended at 
least once, 
declined 
0.4%, Very 
High 

2) J.C.Montgomery: 
• All Students: 

Red, 10.1% 
suspended at 
least once, 
increased 
0.3%, Very 
High 

• Hispanic: 
Orange, 
9.8% 
suspended at 

• Foster: N/A 
*NOTE: To protect 
student privacy, the 
report filtering 
capability for 
“Students with 
Disabilities” and 
“Program Subgroups” 
filters is disabled  
2) J.C.Montgomery: 

• All Students: 
7.7% 

• Hispanic: N/A 
• Low Income: 

7.7% 
• English 

Learner: 0% 
• Students with 

Disabilities: 
16.7% 

• Foster: 0% 
*NOTE: Data source 
changed to 
DataQuest, otherwise 
there would be no 
reportable data 
 
B. % Expelled 
(DataQuest 2020-21) 
1) Kings County Office 
of Education: 0% 
2) J.C. Montgomery: 
0% 
 
C. Sense of Safety 

• English 
Learner: 3% 
suspended at 
least once 

• Students with 
Disabilities: 
6% 
suspended at 
least once 

 
B. % Expelled  
1) Kings County Office 
of Education: 0% 
2) J.C. Montgomery: 
0% 
 
C. Sense of Safety 
and School 
Connectedness 
1) Pupils:  
75% Feel Safe 
65% Feel Connected 
2) Parents:  
95% Feel Safe 
95% Feel Connected 
3) Teachers: 
100% Feel School 
Safe 
100% Feel Connected 
via collaboration 
(DISCONTINUED)  
100% Feel Connected 
to students (NEW)  
 

42



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 38 of 82 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

least once, 
increased 
0.8%, High 

• Low Income: 
Red, 10.1% 
suspended at 
least once, 
increased 
0.3%, Very 
High 

• English 
Learner: 
Yellow, 9.4% 
suspended at 
least once, 
increased 
2.4%, High 

• Students with 
Disabilities: 
Yellow, 9.4% 
suspended at 
least once, 
declined 
6.8%, High 

 
B. % Expelled 
(DataQuest 2019-20) 
1) Kings County Office 
of Education: 0% 
2) J.C. Montgomery: 
0% 
 
C. Sense of Safety 
and School 
Connectedness 

and School 
Connectedness 
1) Pupils:  
100% Feel Safe 
 94% Feel Connected 
2) Parents:  
100% Feel Safe 
 93% Feel Connected 
3) Teachers: 
100% Feel School 
Safe 
75% Feel Connected 
to Students (changed 
from collaboration to 
student focus - new 
baseline) 
 

43



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 39 of 82 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

1) Pupils:  
68.5% Feel Safe 
47.4% Feel 
Connected 
2) Parents:  
93.8% Feel Safe 
93.8% Feel 
Connected 
3) Teachers: 
100% Feel School 
Safe 
100% Feel Connected 
via collaboration 
 

 

Actions 
 
Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 

2.1 Social-Emotional 
Support        

Lesson creation assistance in the form of consulting to build an 
engaging curriculum to academically and emotionally support 
students. This action includes student incentives and instructional 
supplies. Included in this activity are indirect costs totaling $4,746. 
Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement) 
 
 
 

$63,414.00 Yes     
X 
 

2.2 Trauma-Informed 
Training (Title II Part 
A)        

Trauma-informed training is provided to support teachers in helping 
students build coping skills, self-efficacy and strengthen student-staff 
relationships. Supplies are built into the memorandum of 
understanding (MOU). (Title II Part A) Included in this activity are 
indirect costs totaling $52. 
Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement) 
 
 

$690.00 No      
XIncluding English Learners, 

Low-Income, and Foster Youth 
 

44

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#actions


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 40 of 82 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
 

2.3 Culturally Responsive 
Teaching (Title I N & 
D)        

Culturally Responsive Teaching training and activities will be provided 
for both teachers and parents to help them to recognize the 
importance of including students' cultural references in all aspects of 
learning. (Title I N & D)  - THIS HAS BEEN DISCONTINUED FOR 
THE 2022-23 SCHOOL YEAR 
Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement) & Priority 6: School 
Climate (Engagement) 
 
 
 

$0.00 No      
X 
 

2.4 Parent Engagement        Parent engagement opportunities to strengthen communication with 
parents and provide support in the form of parent education and/or 
supplies for meetings. Included in this activity are indirect costs 
totaling $97. 
Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement) & Priority 6: School 
Climate (Engagement) 
 
 
 

$1,297.00 Yes     
X 
 

2.5 Homeless Set Aside 
(Title I Part A)        

Homeless set aside to ensure that services are provided to students 
who are experiencing homelessness. (Title I Part A) 
Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement) 
 
 
 

$200.00 No      
Students Experiencing 

Homelessness 
 

 

Goal Analysis [2021-22] 
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 
 

The overall intent of this goal was to provide a positive, safe, secure, and engaging learning environment that supports the social-emotional 
and mental health issues of our students and to strengthen parent engagement in the learning, rehabilitation, and success of students. Many 
of our students are with us for a short amount of time which makes it challenging to build relationships with parents. To meet this objective, 
our actions included providing social-emotional support, trauma-informed training, and culturally responsive teaching strategies for students, 

45

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 41 of 82 

teachers, and families. Also included were supplies for implementation and a homeless set-aside. All actions were carried out, except for the 
purchase of parent engagement supplies, which was the only substantive difference in planned actions. 
Challenges: 
A parent engagement night was scheduled but no families signed up.  We will continue to communicate with families to find ways to engage 
with them at J.C. Montgomery. The fluidity of student enrollment makes it difficult to put long-term plans into place.  The low & fluid 
enrollment also makes it difficult to effectively track and share data with educational partners as we want to ensure student privacy. 
Success: 
The low enrollment numbers provide for quick pivots based on student needs. Student, staff, and parent surveys shared positive praise 
regarding the social-emotional supports we have put into place. We will continue to grow these supports for students, families, and staff. 
        

 
An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 
 

Our planned budget was $49,356.00, however, our total estimated actual expenditures were $56,762.51. Budgeted costs were exceeded due 
to additional costs charged to Supplemental and Concentration funds.  Additional costs were a result of a decrease in Title funding.  After 
receiving feedback from educational partners, it was determined the social-emotional supports were a necessary cost.  As such, we opted to 
continue the course without the original Title I funding.        

 
An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 
 

State Priorities: Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement) has been met. As the student population is so fluid we will continue to 
reinforce and build engagement strategies to prioritize student learning and well-being. Suspension rates for all subgroups, except for 
Students with Disabilities have decreased. Expulsions have remained at zero. Pupil results for safety (100%) and connectedness (94%) have 
exceeded our expectations. Parent results for safety have reached 100%, which exceeded expectations.  Connectedness results for parents 
maintained at 93%. Staff safety results were maintained at 100%.  The connectedness results declined however, the measurement of this 
metric has changed from collaboration to connectedness to students. It is also worth noting that 4 staff members were surveyed. Overall, we 
deem these activities successful in making progress toward our goal.        

 
A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from 
reflections on prior practice. 
 

There are only minor changes to the activities planned: 1) Some data points reported this year were different from the original reporting 
source due to the inability to garner the most up-to-date data, 2) The culturally responsive training has moved to an in-situation coaching 
model. Educational Partners have provided input to support continuance of the goal.  Overall, the goal has been deemed effective by the 
metrics and as such will remain the same.        

 

46



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 42 of 82 

A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 
 

47



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 43 of 82 

Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 
 

Goal # Description 
3 Coordinate high-quality educational programs and services for Kings County Foster & Expelled youth 

 
State Priorities: Priority 9: Expelled Pupils (Conditions of Learning) & Priority 10: Foster Youth (Conditions of Learning) 
         

 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
 

Kings County Foster Youth Coordinating Services Program (FYSCP) assists district and county health and human services agencies in  
ensuring that foster youth receive the necessary support and information to graduate and obtain and complete post-secondary education.  
The high mobility of foster youth makes it imperative that the FYSCP establish county-wide policies and procedures that address school  
stability and the immediate enrollment of foster youth. There is a need to share information, coordinate the transfer of health and education  
records between districts and other county agencies, and respond to the needs of the juvenile court system. Kings County supports the  
district through the coordinator of services for expelled youth in the county. Data shows that the three greatest areas of need for foster youth  
in Kings County are to increase the operational capacity of LEA site liaisons, improve academic engagement and school conditions and  
climate, and increase graduation rates and college and career readiness for foster youth students. Kings County supports districts through  
the coordination of services for expelled youth in the county.         

 

Measuring and Reporting Results 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

Priority 9: Expelled 
Pupils (Conditions of 
Learning) Addresses 
how the county 
superintendent of 
schools will coordinate 
instruction of expelled 
pupils        

Status of Met on 2021 
LCAP Local 
Performance Indicator 
Self-Reflection, 
Priority 9: 
Developing a 
memorandum of 
understanding 
regarding the 
coordination of partial 
credit policies 

Status of Met on 2021 
LCAP Local 
Performance Indicator 
Self-Reflection, 
Priority 9: 
Developing a 
memorandum of 
understanding 
regarding the 
coordination of partial 
credit policies 

  Status of Met on 2021 
LCAP Local 
Performance Indicator 
Self-Reflection, 
Priority 9: 
Developing a 
memorandum of 
understanding 
regarding the 
coordination of partial 
credit policies 

48

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 44 of 82 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

between the district of 
residence and the 
county office of 
education. 
1 – Exploration and 
Research Phase 
 

between the district of 
residence and the 
county office of 
education. 
2 – Beginning 
Development 
 

between the district of 
residence and the 
county office of 
education. 
3 – Initial 
Implementation 
 

Priority 10: Foster 
Youth (Conditions of 
Learning) 
A.and C.  FYSCP will 
work alongside the 
county child welfare 
agency and juvenile 
court to minimize the 
changes in school 
placement, delivery, 
and coordination of 
educational services. 
 
B and D.  Provide 
educational-related 
information to county 
child welfare agency 
to assist in the 
delivery of services 
utilizing the Foster 
Focus Data System 
as the efficient and 
expeditious 
mechanism for the 
transfer of health and 
education records 
        

A.and C. 
1) 21.9% of Foster 
Youth were 
chronically absent in 
2019-2020 
2) 47.8% of Foster 
Youth graduated in 
2019-2020 
3)12.3% of Foster 
Youth were 
suspended in 2019-
2020 
 
B and D. 
85% of district/site 
liaisons and child 
welfare services are 
trained on the Foster 
Focus Data System. 
 

A.and C. 
1) 40% of Foster 
Youth were 
chronically absent in 
2020-2021 
2) 58.3% of Foster 
Youth graduated in 
2020-2021 
3) 3% of Foster Youth 
were suspended in 
2020-2021 
 
B and D. 
100% of district/site 
liaisons and child 
welfare services are 
trained on the Foster 
Focus Data System. 
 

  A.and C. 
1) Decrease the 
chronic absenteeism 
rate of Foster Youth 
by 8% 
2) Increase the 
graduation rate of 
Foster Youth by 10%. 
3) Decrease the 
suspension rate of 
Foster Youth by 5%. 
 
B and D. 
100% of district/site 
liaisons and child 
welfare services will 
be trained on the 
Foster Focus Data 
System. 
 

 

49



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 45 of 82 

Actions 
 
Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 

3.1 Transfer of 
Educational Records, 
Case Management, 
and School Stability        

Foster Youth Liaison and Educational Learning Advisors will evaluate 
academic credit completion and review transcripts for transitional-aged 
Foster Youth students. The Advisors will work with the Independent 
Living Program (ILP) to review credits, present information, assist with 
financial aid applications, and records for student transfers. The 
Advisors will work directly with JC Montgomery in order to provide 
transitional services for district Foster Youth. This position also serves 
as the contact for questions regarding Foster Youth for Kings County 
school districts and; school sites, and; assisted with student records 
requests and; transmittals. The Liaison will connect Educational 
resources for Foster Youth of all ages through programs to all LEA’s 
within the County. Ensure school stability, immediate enrollment, and 
transfer of credits received for newly enrolled students. Provide 
technical assistance to LEA’s and Health and Human Services on 
reading and analyzing transcripts for AB490/AB167 credit reduction 
requirements. Assist students in completing the FAFSA by the March 
2 deadline by conducting two student workshops, following up with 
individual students to ensure the process is complete and facilitating 
the development of a mechanism for tracking FAFSA completions. 
Included in this activity are indirect costs totaling $17,612. 
 
 

$235,312.00 No      
County-Wide Foster Youth 

 

3.2 Foster Focus        The FYSCP will continue to utilize the Foster Focus system for the 
data management of Foster Youth. Weekly updates taken from the 
CalPads 5.7 report provide the Kings County Foster Focus system a 
means to further the benefits of the Foster Focus system. The FYSCP 
will maintain an MOU with 6 districts currently linked and Health and 
Human Services. FYSCP will reach out to districts that are not linked 
and provide support to enable those LEA’s to link to the Foster Focus 
System. Included in this activity are indirect costs totaling $1,527. 
 
 

$20,397.00 No      
County-Wide Foster Youth 

 

3.3 Ongoing 
collaboration with all 

Ensure the coordination of educational services for foster youth by 
facilitating quarterly Kings County Executive Advisory Council which 

$2,481.00 No      
County-Wide Foster Youth 

 

50

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#actions


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 46 of 82 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
educational partners 
(stakeholders - 
previously used term) 
and Facilitation of 
Education Advisory 
Council        

includes LEA’s, Department of Social Services, Probation, and other 
educational partners (stakeholders - previously used term) for the 
planning and development of capacity building and training 
opportunities. Included in this activity are indirect costs totaling $186. 
 
 

3.4 Build Capacity with 
LEA’s, Health and 
Human Services, and 
FYSCP Staff.        

Build capacity with LEA, probation, child welfare, and other 
organizations by providing professional learning opportunities for the 
purposes of implementing school-based support systems for foster 
youth intended to improve educational outcomes. Training could 
include Trauma-informed practices, alternatives to suspension, 
student re-engagement, and legislative updates. FYSCP staff will 
participate in professional learning provided by local, regional, state, 
and national organizations to build their capacity to better serve LEA’s 
and Health and Human Services. Included in this activity are indirect 
costs totaling $3,908. 
 
 

$55,652.00 No      
County-Wide Foster Youth 

 

3.5 Expelled Youth Plan 
Administrator        

5% Administrative costs to implement and update countywide plans 
for providing educational services to all expelled pupils. No indirect 
costs are included in this activity. 
 
 

$11,114.00 No      
County-Wide Expelled Youth 

 

 

Goal Analysis [2021-22] 
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 
 

1) Priority 10 - Foster Youth:  
Challenges: 

• Across the county, 58.3% of our foster students graduated from High school, this is a significant decrease, due to the COVID 19 
pandemic and school engagement. 

• There were 148 or 0.47% of students expelled throughout the county. We continue to work to support districts with school climate 
measures. 

• We planned on holding more in-person events for our adult supporters, but due to COVID restrictions, we were limited to what we 
could share due to low zoom engagement and attendance. 

51

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 47 of 82 

• Lack of quality data due to the COVID 19 pandemic proved challenging to make proactive interventions for students. 
 
Successes: 

• All actions used to support Foster Youth and to implement and update County-Wide Plan to Serve Expelled Youth were 
accomplished despite the effects of the COVID-19 health restrictions. 

• We added 37 users to Foster Focus during the 2021-22 school year and provided 17 training sessions. 
• 71% of Foster youth HS Seniors Attended & Completed FAFSA application, In conjunction with Kings County ILP and West Hills 

College Lemoore we held 3 workshops during the 2021-22 year. All other FAFSA applications were done by KCOE FYSCP staff 
with students in a one-on-one setting. 

• 100% of District/Site Coordinators Trained on Educational Reports in Foster Focus and Dataquest 
• 15 Transitional Conferences (ages 17-21) were held and attended by FYSCP staff. 
• Signed AB 2083 MOU 
• Development of a County-Wide Foster Youth Transportation Plan being executed between the Kings County FYSCP, Kings County 

Human Services, and all thirteen school districts in Kings County. 
 
Overall the Kings County Foster Youth Coordinating Services Program (FYSCP) assisted districts and county health and human services 
agencies in ensuring that foster youth receive the necessary support by providing 358 hours of case management during the 2021-22 school 
year. Stability reports shared by the CDE this year were used to inform CWS and LEAs about the high mobility of foster youth. With the 
absence of a 2021 Dashboard, we have relied on DataQuest to provide data to all educational partners on the Chronic Absenteeism and 
Suspension of Foster Youth in Kings County. KCOE FYSCP continues to build capacity and relationships with Kings County Child Welfare 
Services by providing training on case management, Foster Youth Educational RIghts as well as Foster Focus onboarding for all new social 
workers, Furthermore the FYSCP has partnered with Kings County ILP to provide opportunities for students to access community events and 
college tours utilizing the AB 130 funds provided by the legislature.  
 
2) Priority 9 - Expelled Youth:  
 
Challenge: This is a county-wide action, which requires some shared expectations from multiple educational partners. This alone proves 
challenging at times as each LEA has multiple factors at play they need to consider.  
 
Success: Although difficult at times, all LEAs are committed to supporting expelled youth and are committed to developing a memorandum of 
understanding regarding the coordination of partial credit policies between the district of residence and the county office of education. 
 

 
An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 
 

1 ) Priority 10 - Foster Youth:  
Material differences between budgeted expenditures and estimated actuals are described below by action. 

52



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 48 of 82 

• Action 3.1: Transfer of Educational Records, Case Management, and School Stability: There was no substantive difference in 
expenditures for action 3.1 

• Action 3.2: Foster Focus: There was a difference of $13,411 not spent due to the Sacramento County Office of Education which runs 
Foster Focus not wanting to link any district with under 35 foster youth enrolled. Kings County has multiple districts that were 
previously allowed to link their student information system to Foster Focus which enabled the district, FYSCP staff, and Human 
services to have access to the most up-to-date attendance and grades for foster students. The remainder of funds will be carried 
over into the 2022-23 school year and will be used to provide post-secondary transition information and services to foster youth 
students as well as support the districts in utilizing Foster Focus. 

• Action 3.3: Ongoing Collaboration with all Educational Partners and Facilitation of Education Advisory Council: There was a 
difference of $357 not spent due to a decrease in anticipated costs to hold Advisory Council meetings. Due to the Pandemic, we 
held all meetings via zoom. The money instead was spent on mileage for Education Learning Advisors providing one on one 
assistance on the FAFSA. 

• Action 3.4: Build Capacity with LEAs, Health and Human Services Staff, and FYSCP Staff: There was no substantive difference in 
expenditures for action 3.4 

 
2) Priority 9 - Expelled Youth: 

• Action 3.5: Expelled Youth Plan Administrator: There was $1,154 additional expenditure for this action due to an increase in the 
salary schedule with the increase in the state COLA. 

 
 
An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 
 

1) Priority 10 - Foster Youth: 
• Action 3.1: Transfer of Educational Records, Case Management, and School Stability 

* 358 hours of case management were provided to districts to meet the educational needs of foster youth.  
* School Stability was addressed through conversation at the Education Advisory Council. Each school of origin recommendation made by 
the FYSCP takes school stability into consideration. 

• Action 3.2: Foster Focus 
* FYSCP staff held 17 Foster Focus Trainings for Human Services, School Districts, and Internal Staff. The use of the Foster Focus data 
system allows up-to-date attendance and academic achievement data for both the school districts and Child Welfare. It provides a system to 
ensure CWS reports and CALPADS records are matching. Which in turn provides easily accessible records for all educational adult 
supporters. 

• Action 3.3: Ongoing Collaboration with all Educational Partners and Facilitation of Education Advisory Council 
* Number of Meeting with HSA 
* FYSCP staff attended 27 Child Family Team Meetings that were requested by Child Welfare. 
* 60 Champions for Success meetings were held to provide foster youth a voice in their education while providing them with the tools to be 
successful. 
* FYSCP attended 3 Children's System of Care meetings to prepare for AB 2083 meetings. 

53



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 49 of 82 

* FYSCP participated in 14 meetings in the collaborative effort to develop the AB 2083 MOU. 
* FYSCP attended 21 Interagency Placement Committee meetings with one of them being on policy review. 
* FYSCP facilitated 7 meetings with Health and Human Services to develop a Kings County Transportation Plan. 
* FYSCP staff held 3 collaboration meetings with local Post Secondary Institutions. 
* FYSCP Liaison attended 2 Interagency Leadership Team meetings to collaborate on an interagency system of care. 
* Kings FYSCP held 4 Kings County Executive Advisory Council Meetings: October 7, 2021, December 7, 2021, February 22, 2022, May 19, 
2022 

• Action 3.4: Build Capacity with LEAs, Health and Human Services Staff, and FYSCP Staff. 
* Training for Adult Supporters 
* Kings County FYSCP partnered with the Central Valley Truancy Summit to provide keynote speakers and breakout sessions for adult 
supporters of Foster Youth. Dr. Julia Garcia spoke about engaging foster youth in the educational process by providing them with a voice. 
 
2) Priority 9 - Expelled Youth: 

• Action 3.5: Expelled Youth Plan Administrator 
* We are leveraging this position to help support the movement of the following metric: Developing a memorandum of understanding 
regarding the coordination of partial credit policies between the district of residence and the county office of education. We surveyed the 
districts and found out if and how they were assigning partial credit. The next step is to develop an MOU for partial credit with the districts. 
 

 
A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from 
reflections on prior practice. 
 

1) Priority 10 - Foster Youth: 
The Foster Youth support staff, collaboration, and supplies, as well as the Administrator for the County-wide, Expelled Youth Plan, were all 
instrumental in providing support for Foster Youth and Neglected Youth and effective in meeting the individual needs of Students.  Based on 
Educational Partner input Action 1.1 Transfer of Educational Records, Case Management, and School Stability will become more focused 
around the areas of case management as it relates to Chronic Absenteeism and School Suspension. 
Furthermore AB 130 funds have allowed the FYSCP to offer direct service to Foster Youth students especially in the area of PostSecondary 
Transition.  FYSCP will work closely with Kings County Health and Human Services Social Workers to ensure a smooth transition from the 
K12 system to the community college, university or vocational institutions. 
 
2) Priority 9 - Expelled Youth: 
No changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections on prior 
practice. 
        

 

54



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 50 of 82 

A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 
 

55



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 51 of 82 

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students [2022-23] 
 
Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants Projected Additional LCFF Concentration Grant (15 percent) 
$217,080.00 $0.00 
 
Required Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the LCAP Year 
Projected Percentage to Increase 
or Improve Services for the 
Coming School Year 

LCFF Carryover — Percentage LCFF Carryover — Dollar 
Total Percentage to Increase or 
Improve Services for the Coming 
School Year 

52.50% 0% $0.00 52.50% 
 
The Budgeted Expenditures for Actions identified as Contributing may be found in the Contributing Actions Table. 
 
Required Descriptions 
 

For each action being provided to an entire school, or across the entire school district or county office of education (COE), an explanation of 
(1) how the needs of foster youth, English learners, and low-income students were considered first, and (2) how these actions are effective in 
meeting the goals for these students. 
 

Following is a description of how actions included as contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement is principally 
directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils: 
 
Goal 1, Action 1: After assessing the needs, conditions, and circumstances of our low-income students (100% of students), we learned, 1) 
Year 1 Local iReady benchmarks show 54.55% of unduplicated students have shown growth in ELA and 22.60% of unduplicated students 
have shown growth in Math, 2) High School dropout rates for unduplicated students show 12.09%, and 3) High School graduation rates show 
41.7% for unduplicated students. In order to address this condition of our low-income students, we will provide staff support to focus on 
student basic needs for engagement and maintain high expectations for student achievement. We will use this staff to target and monitor 
individual needs in ELA and Math, to increased Graduation rates, and decrease dropout rates. Measurement for effectiveness will be based 
on: 1) 3% growth on iReady Math and ELA benchmarks, 2) 3% decrease of our dropout rate, 3) 3% increase of our graduation rate. 
 
 

56

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#IncreasedImprovedServices
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#IncreasedImprovedServices
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/22LCAP/Instructions/22LCAPInstructions.htm#RequiredDescriptions


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 52 of 82 

Goal 1, Action 4: After assessing the needs, conditions, and circumstances of our low-income students (100% of students), we learned, 1) 
Educational partners have provided feedback requesting that Students have had access to 100% of standards-aligned materials, 100% fully 
credentialed teachers, 100% effective teachers, 2) Year 1 Local iReady benchmarks show 54.55% of unduplicated students have shown 
growth in ELA and 22.60% of unduplicated students have shown growth in Math, 3) High School dropout rates for unduplicated students 
show 12.09%, and 4) High School graduation rates show 41.7% for unduplicated students. In order to address this condition of our low-
income students, we will provide engaging and rigorous curriculum support to include, but not limited to Online Licenses, KCOE 
memorandum of understanding (MOU) Lesson Design, Curriculum adoption/replacement, Edgenuity, and WASC Renewal Fees. 
Measurement for effectiveness will be based on: 1) Maintain 100% baseline for Priority 1 metrics, 2) 3% increase on iReady Math and ELA 
benchmarks,  3) 3% decrease of our dropout rate, 4) 3% increase of our graduation rate. 
 
Goal 1, Action 5: After assessing the needs, conditions, and circumstances of our low-income students (100% of students), we learned, 1) 
Educational partners have provided feedback requesting that students have had access to 100% of standards-aligned materials and 100% 
fully credentialed teachers, and 2)2) Year 1 Local iReady benchmarks show 54.55% of unduplicated students have shown growth in ELA and 
22.60% of unduplicated students have shown growth in Math. In order to address this condition of our low-income students, we will provide 
professional growth opportunities and data dissemination support to assist staff in meeting the academic and social-emotional needs of 
students. Measurement for effectiveness will be based on: 1) Maintain 100% baseline for Priority 1 metrics, 2) 3% increase on iReady Math 
and ELA benchmarks. 
 
Goal 2, Action 1:  After assessing the needs, conditions, and circumstances of our low-income students (100% of students), we learned, 1) 
student suspension was 0.6%. 2) survey feedback results were as follows: Sense of Safety and School Connectedness a) Pupils: 100% Feel 
Safe and 94% Feel Connected; b) Parents: 100% Feel Safe  93% Feel Connected. In order to address this condition and continue areas of 
success for our low-income students, we will provide Social-Emotional Support to include lesson creation assistance in the form of consulting 
to build an engaging curriculum to academically and emotionally support students. This action includes student incentives and instructional 
supplies. Measurement for effectiveness will be based on: 1) decrease of student suspension by 0.3%, 2) survey feedback results: Sense of 
Safety and School Connectedness a) Pupils: maintain 100% safety and 3% increase of connectedness; b) Parents: maintain 100% safety 
and 3% increase of connectedness. 
 
Goal 2, Action 4: After assessing the needs, conditions, and circumstances of our low-income students (100% of students) (includes English 
Learners at 3 students (15.8 %), Foster Youth data was redacted due to the small number served), we learned, 1) parent feedback and 
participation as seen in the following baseline metric: 68% participation by all Parent/Guardians on the 2022 Spring LCAP Survey. 2) survey 
feedback results: Sense of Safety and School Connectedness  a) Pupils: 100% Feel Safe and 94% Feel Connected; b) Parents: 100% Feel 
Safe  93% Feel Connected. In order to address this condition for our foster youth, English Learners, and low-income students, we will provide 
Parent engagement opportunities to strengthen communication with parents and provide support in the form of parent education and/or 
supplies for meetings. Measurement for effectiveness will be based on: 1) increase participation by all Parent/Guardians on the 2023 Spring 

57



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 53 of 82 

LCAP Survey by 5%, 2) survey feedback results: Sense of Safety and School Connectedness a) Pupils: maintain 100% safety and 3% 
increase of connectedness; b) Parents: maintain 100% safety and 3% increase of connectedness. 
 
Please note: J. C. Montgomery school consistently has a limited number of Foster Youth and English Learner students on an ongoing basis. 
Ultimately, this does not allow for state-wide data collection due to groups of less than 10/11 students at one time.  As such, we continue to 
provide designated services for English Learners through Title Funding. For Foster Youth, we provide designated services through Foster 
Youth designated state funding as the County-Wide Lead Administrators. 
         
 

 
A description of how services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students are being increased or improved by the percentage 
required. 
 

The Kings County Office of Education (KCOE) Alternative Education program has calculated supplemental and concentration funds to be 
$162,970, based on the number of Low Income, Foster Youth, and English Learners per 5CCR 15496(a)(5). The percentage of students that 
are identifiable as unduplicated at J.C. Montgomery school is 100%. Using the above identified actions and services supported by the 
contributing expenditure table, this shows how we met the MPP.         

 
A description of the plan for how the additional concentration grant add-on funding identified above will be used to increase the number of staff 
providing direct services to students at schools that have a high concentration (above 55 percent) of foster youth, English learners, and low-
income students, as applicable. 
 

Kings County Office of Education did not receive the additional concentration grant add-on funding.         
 
Staff-to-student ratios by 
type of school and 
concentration of 
unduplicated students 

Schools with a student concentration of 55 percent or 
less 

Schools with a student concentration of greater than 55 
percent 

Staff-to-student ratio of 
classified staff providing 
direct services to students 

N/A         N/A         

Staff-to-student ratio of 
certificated staff providing 
direct services to students 

N/A         N/A         

 

58



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 54 of 82 

 
2022-23 Total Expenditures Table 
 

Totals LCFF Funds Other State 
Funds Local Funds Federal Funds Total Funds Total Personnel Total Non-

personnel 
Totals          $217,079.00         $324,956.00  $151,180.00 $693,215.00 $490,267.00 $202,948.00 

 
Goal Action # Action Title Student Group(s) LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal Funds Total Funds 

1 1.1 Staff Support        XEnglish Learners        
XFoster Youth        
XLow Income        
 

$129,991.00 
   

$129,991.00 

1 1.2 Support Staff and 
Instructional Supplies 
(Title I N & D)        

Low-income 
   

$141,190.00 $141,190.00 

1 1.3 Support Staff and 
Instructional Supplies 
(Title I Part A)        

English Learner 
   

$9,100.00 $9,100.00 

1 1.4 Curriculum Support        XEnglish Learners        
XFoster Youth        
XLow Income        
 

$18,594.00 
   

$18,594.00 

1 1.5 Professional Growth 
and Data 
Dissemination 
Support        

XEnglish Learners        
XFoster Youth        
XLow Income        
 

$540.00 
   

$540.00 

1 1.6 RSP Support        XStudents with 
Disabilities        
 

$3,243.00 
   

$3,243.00 

2 2.1 Social-Emotional 
Support        

XEnglish Learners        
XFoster Youth        
XLow Income         

$63,414.00 
   

$63,414.00 

2 2.2 Trauma-Informed 
Training (Title II Part 
A)        

Including English 
Learners, Low-
Income, and Foster 
YouthXAll         

   
$690.00 $690.00 

2 2.3 Culturally Responsive 
Teaching (Title I N & 
D)        

XAll         
    

$0.00 

2 2.4 Parent Engagement        XEnglish Learners        
XFoster Youth        

$1,297.00 
   

$1,297.00 

59



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 55 of 82 

Goal Action # Action Title Student Group(s) LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal Funds Total Funds 
XLow Income         

2 2.5 Homeless Set Aside 
(Title I Part A)        

Students 
Experiencing 
Homelessness 

   
$200.00 $200.00 

3 3.1 Transfer of 
Educational Records, 
Case Management, 
and School Stability        

County-Wide Foster 
Youth 

 
$235,312.00 

  
$235,312.00 

3 3.2 Foster Focus        County-Wide Foster 
Youth 

 
$20,397.00 

  
$20,397.00 

3 3.3 Ongoing collaboration 
with all educational 
partners 
(stakeholders - 
previously used term) 
and Facilitation of 
Education Advisory 
Council        

County-Wide Foster 
Youth 

 
$2,481.00 

  
$2,481.00 

3 3.4 Build Capacity with 
LEA’s, Health and 
Human Services, and 
FYSCP Staff.        

County-Wide Foster 
Youth 

 
$55,652.00 

  
$55,652.00 

3 3.5 Expelled Youth Plan 
Administrator        

County-Wide 
Expelled Youth 

 
$11,114.00 

  
$11,114.00 

 

60



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 56 of 82 

 
2022-23 Contributing Actions Table 
 

1. Projected 
LCFF Base 

Grant 

2. Projected 
LCFF 

Supplemental 
and/or 

Concentration 
Grants 

3. Projected 
Percentage to 

Increase or 
Improve 

Services for 
the Coming 
School Year 
(2 divided by 

1) 

LCFF 
Carryover —  
Percentage 
(Percentage 
from Prior 

Year) 

Total 
Percentage to 

Increase or 
Improve 

Services for 
the Coming 
School Year 

(3 + Carryover 
%) 

4. Total 
Planned 

Contributing 
Expenditures  
(LCFF Funds) 

5. Total 
Planned 

Percentage of 
Improved 
Services  

(%) 

Planned 
Percentage to 

Increase or 
Improve 

Services for 
the Coming 
School Year 
(4 divided by 

1, plus 5) 

Totals by 
Type 

Total LCFF 
Funds 

$413,490.00 $217,080.00 52.50% 0% 52.50% $213,836.00 0.00% 51.71 % Total:         $213,836.00 
        LEA-wide 

Total:         $0.00 

        Limited Total:         $0.00 
        Schoolwide 

Total:         $213,836.00 
 

Goal Action # Action Title 
Contributing to 

Increased or 
Improved 
Services? 

Scope Unduplicated 
Student Group(s) Location 

Planned 
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions (LCFF 

Funds) 

Planned 
Percentage of 

Improved 
Services (%) 

1 1.1 Staff Support XYes     
 

XSchoolwide         XEnglish Learners        
XFoster Youth        
XLow Income         

Specific Schools: 
J.C. Montgomery         

$129,991.00 
 

1 1.4 Curriculum Support XYes     
 

XSchoolwide         XEnglish Learners        
XFoster Youth        
XLow Income         

Specific Schools: 
J.C. Montgomery         

$18,594.00 
 

1 1.5 Professional Growth and 
Data Dissemination Support 

XYes     
 

XSchoolwide         XEnglish Learners        
XFoster Youth        
XLow Income         

Specific Schools: 
J.C. Montgomery         

$540.00 
 

2 2.1 Social-Emotional Support XYes     
 

XSchoolwide         XEnglish Learners        
XFoster Youth        
XLow Income         

Specific Schools: 
J.C. Montgomery         

$63,414.00 
 

2 2.4 Parent Engagement XYes     
 

XSchoolwide         XEnglish Learners        
XFoster Youth        
XLow Income         

Specific Schools: 
J.C. Montgomery         

$1,297.00 
 

 

61



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 57 of 82 

 
2021-22 Annual Update Table 
 

Totals 
Last Year's 

Total Planned 
Expenditures 
(Total Funds) 

Total Estimated  
Expenditures 
(Total Funds) 

Totals          $692,152.00 $659,778.00 

 
Last Year's 

Goal # 
Last Year's Action 

# 
Prior Action/Service Title Contributed to Increased 

or Improved Services? 
Last Year's Planned 

Expenditures 
(Total Funds) 

Estimated Actual 
Expenditures 

(Input Total Funds) 
1 1.1 Staff Support        Yes     

X 
 

$134,644.00 $138,354.00 

1 1.2 Support Staff and Instructional 
Supplies (Title I N & D)        

No      
Low-income 

 

$173,466.00 $155,745.00 

1 1.3 Support Staff and Instructional 
Supplies (Title I Part A)        

No      
English Learner 

 

$13,504.00 $14,210.00 

1 1.4 Curriculum Support        Yes     
X 
 

$15,966.00 $14,883.00 

1 1.5 Professional Growth and Data 
Dissemination Support        

Yes     
X 
 

$3,565.00 $1,055.00 

1 1.6 RSP Support        No      
X 
 

$5,401.00 $5,401.00 

2 2.1 Social-Emotional Support        Yes     
X 
 

$35,447.00 $40,448.00 

2 2.2 Trauma-Informed Training (Title II 
Part A)        

No      
XIncluding English Learners, 

Low-Income, and Foster 
Youth 

 

$1,233.00 $992.00 

2 2.3 Culturally Responsive Teaching 
(Title I N & D)        

No      
X 
 

$15,123.00 $15,123.00 

62



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 58 of 82 

Last Year's 
Goal # 

Last Year's Action 
# 

Prior Action/Service Title Contributed to Increased 
or Improved Services? 

Last Year's Planned 
Expenditures 
(Total Funds) 

Estimated Actual 
Expenditures 

(Input Total Funds) 
2 2.4 Parent Engagement        Yes     

X 
 

$1,296.00 $0.00 

2 2.5 Homeless Set Aside (Title I Part A)        No      
Students Experiencing 

Homelessness 
 

$200.00 $200.00 

3 3.1 Transfer of Educational Records, 
Case Management, and School 
Stability        

No      
County-Wide Foster Youth 

 

$211,568.00 $213,284.00 

3 3.2 Foster Focus        No      
County-Wide Foster Youth 

 

$21,604.00 $6,589.00 

3 3.3 Ongoing collaboration with all 
stakeholders and Facilitation of 
Education Advisory Council        

No      
County-Wide Foster Youth 

 

$2,484.00 $1,943.00 

3 3.4 Build Capacity with LEA’s, Health 
and Human Services, and FYSCP 
Staff.        

No      
County-Wide Foster Youth 

 

$47,087.00 $41,543.00 

3 3.5 Expelled Youth Plan Administrator        No      
County-Wide Expelled Youth 

 

$9,564.00 $10,008.00 

 

63



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 59 of 82 

 
2021-22 Contributing Actions Annual Update Table 
 

6. Estimated  
LCFF 

Supplemental 
and/or 

Concentration 
Grants 

(Input Dollar 
Amount) 

4. Total Planned 
Contributing 
Expenditures  
(LCFF Funds) 

7. Total Estimated  
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions  

(LCFF Funds) 

Difference 
Between Planned 

and Estimated  
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions 

(Subtract 7 from 
4) 

5. Total Planned 
Percentage of 

Improved 
Services (%) 

8. Total Estimated  
Percentage of 

Improved 
Services  

(%) 

Difference 
Between Planned 

and Estimated  
Percentage of 

Improved 
Services 

(Subtract 5 from 
8) 

$162,970.00         $190,918.00         $194,740.00         ($3,822.00)         0.00%         0.00%         0.00%         
 

Last 
Year's 
Goal # 

Last 
Year's 

Action # 
Prior Action/Service Title 

Contributing to 
Increased or 

Improved Services? 

Last Year's Planned 
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions (LCFF 

Funds) 

Estimated Actual 
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions  

(Input LCFF Funds) 

Planned Percentage 
of Improved 

Services 

Estimated Actual 
Percentage of 

Improved Services 
(Input Percentage) 

1 1.1 Staff Support XYes     
 

$134,644.00 $138,354.00  
 

1 1.4 Curriculum Support XYes     
 

$15,966.00 $14,883.00  
 

1 1.5 Professional Growth and Data 
Dissemination Support 

XYes     
 

$3,565.00 $1,055.00  
 

2 2.1 Social-Emotional Support XYes     
 

$35,447.00 $40,448.00  
 

2 2.4 Parent Engagement XYes     
 

$1,296.00 $0.00  
 

 

64



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 60 of 82 

 
2021-22 LCFF Carryover Table 
 

9. Estimated 
Actual LCFF 
Base Grant 
(Input Dollar 

Amount) 

6. Estimated 
Actual LCFF 

Supplemental 
and/or 

Concentration 
Grants 

LCFF 
Carryover —  
Percentage 
(Percentage 
from Prior 

Year) 

10. Total 
Percentage to 

Increase or 
Improve 

Services for 
the Current 
School Year 

(6 divided by 9 
+ Carryover 

%) 

7. Total 
Estimated 

Actual 
Expenditures 

for 
Contributing 

Actions  
(LCFF Funds) 

8. Total 
Estimated 

Actual 
Percentage of 

Improved 
Services  

(%) 

11. Estimated 
Actual 

Percentage of 
Increased or 

Improved 
Services 

(7 divided by 
9, plus 8) 

12. LCFF 
Carryover — 

Dollar Amount 
(Subtract 11 
from 10 and 

multiply by 9) 

13. LCFF 
Carryover —  
Percentage 

(12 divided by 
9) 

$310,419.00 $162,970.00 0% 52.50% $194,740.00 0.00% 62.73% $0.00 0.00% 
 

65



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 61 of 82 

Instructions 
Plan Summary 

Engaging Educational Partners 

Goals and Actions 

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students  

For additional questions or technical assistance related to the completion of the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) template, 
please contact the local county office of education (COE), or the California Department of Education’s (CDE’s) Local Agency Systems Support 
Office, by phone at 916-319-0809 or by email at lcff@cde.ca.gov. 

Introduction and Instructions 
The Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) requires local educational agencies (LEAs) to engage their local educational partners in an annual 
planning process to evaluate their progress within eight state priority areas encompassing all statutory metrics (COEs have 10 state priorities). 
LEAs document the results of this planning process in the LCAP using the template adopted by the State Board of Education.  

The LCAP development process serves three distinct, but related functions:  

• Comprehensive Strategic Planning: The process of developing and annually updating the LCAP supports comprehensive strategic planning 
(California Education Code [EC] Section 52064[e][1]). Strategic planning that is comprehensive connects budgetary decisions to teaching and 
learning performance data. LEAs should continually evaluate the hard choices they make about the use of limited resources to meet student and 
community needs to ensure opportunities and outcomes are improved for all students. 

• Meaningful Engagement of Educational Partners: The LCAP development process should result in an LCAP that reflects decisions made 
through meaningful engagement (EC Section 52064[e][1]). Local educational partners possess valuable perspectives and insights about an LEA's 
programs and services. Effective strategic planning will incorporate these perspectives and insights in order to identify potential goals and actions to 
be included in the LCAP. 

• Accountability and Compliance: The LCAP serves an important accountability function because aspects of the LCAP template require LEAs to 
show that they have complied with various requirements specified in the LCFF statutes and regulations, most notably: 

o Demonstrating that LEAs are increasing or improving services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students in proportion to 
the amount of additional funding those students generate under LCFF (EC Section 52064[b][4-6]). 

o Establishing goals, supported by actions and related expenditures, that address the statutory priority areas and statutory metrics (EC 
sections 52064[b][1] and [2]).  

o Annually reviewing and updating the LCAP to reflect progress toward the goals (EC Section 52064[b][7]). 
66

mailto:lcff@cde.ca.gov


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 62 of 82 

The LCAP template, like each LEA’s final adopted LCAP, is a document, not a process. LEAs must use the template to memorialize the 
outcome of their LCAP development process, which should: (a) reflect comprehensive strategic planning (b) through meaningful engagement 
with educational partners that (c) meets legal requirements, as reflected in the final adopted LCAP. The sections included within the LCAP 
template do not and cannot reflect the full development process, just as the LCAP template itself is not intended as a tool for engaging 
educational partners.  

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, the county board of education and the governing board of 
the school district may adopt and file for review and approval a single LCAP consistent with the requirements in EC sections 52060, 52062, 
52066, 52068, and 52070. The LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or county superintendent of schools) all 
budgeted and actual expenditures are aligned. 

The revised LCAP template for the 2021–22, 2022–23, and 2023–24 school years reflects statutory changes made through Assembly Bill 
1840 (Committee on Budget), Chapter 243, Statutes of 2018. These statutory changes enhance transparency regarding expenditures on 
actions included in the LCAP, including actions that contribute to meeting the requirement to increase or improve services for foster youth, 
English learners, and low-income students, and to streamline the information presented within the LCAP to make adopted LCAPs more 
accessible for educational partners and the public. 

At its most basic, the adopted LCAP should attempt to distill not just what the LEA is doing for students in transitional kindergarten through 
grade twelve (TK–12), but also allow educational partners to understand why, and whether those strategies are leading to improved 
opportunities and outcomes for students. LEAs are strongly encouraged to use language and a level of detail in their adopted LCAPs intended 
to be meaningful and accessible for the LEA’s diverse educational partners and the broader public. 

In developing and finalizing the LCAP for adoption, LEAs are encouraged to keep the following overarching frame at the forefront of the 
strategic planning and educational partner engagement functions:  

Given present performance across the state priorities and on indicators in the California School Dashboard (Dashboard), how is the 
LEA using its budgetary resources to respond to TK–12 student and community needs, and address any performance gaps, including 
by meeting its obligation to increase or improve services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students? 

LEAs are encouraged to focus on a set of metrics and actions that the LEA believes, based on input gathered from educational partners, 
research, and experience, will have the biggest impact on behalf of its TK–12 students.  

These instructions address the requirements for each section of the LCAP, but may include information about effective practices when 
developing the LCAP and completing the LCAP itself. Additionally, information is included at the beginning of each section emphasizing the 
purpose that each section serves. 

Plan Summary 
Purpose 

67



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 63 of 82 

A well-developed Plan Summary section provides a meaningful context for the LCAP. This section provides information about an LEA’s 
community as well as relevant information about student needs and performance. In order to provide a meaningful context for the rest of the 
LCAP, the content of this section should be clearly and meaningfully related to the content included in the subsequent sections of the LCAP. 

Requirements and Instructions 
General Information – Briefly describe the LEA, its schools, and its students in grades TK–12, as applicable to the LEA. For example, 
information about an LEA in terms of geography, enrollment, or employment, the number and size of specific schools, recent community 
challenges, and other such information as an LEA wishes to include can enable a reader to more fully understand an LEA’s LCAP. 

Reflections: Successes – Based on a review of performance on the state indicators and local performance indicators included in the 
Dashboard, progress toward LCAP goals, local self-assessment tools, input from educational partners, and any other information, what 
progress is the LEA most proud of and how does the LEA plan to maintain or build upon that success? This may include identifying specific 
examples of how past increases or improvements in services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students have led to improved 
performance for these students. 

Reflections: Identified Need – Referring to the Dashboard, identify: (a) any state indicator for which overall performance was in the “Red” or 
“Orange” performance category or any local indicator where the LEA received a “Not Met” or “Not Met for Two or More Years” rating AND (b) 
any state indicator for which performance for any student group was two or more performance levels below the “all student” performance. 
What steps is the LEA planning to take to address these areas of low performance and performance gaps? An LEA that is required to include 
a goal to address one or more consistently low-performing student groups or low-performing schools must identify that it is required to include 
this goal and must also identify the applicable student group(s) and/or school(s). Other needs may be identified using locally collected data 
including data collected to inform the self-reflection tools and reporting local indicators on the Dashboard. 

LCAP Highlights – Identify and briefly summarize the key features of this year’s LCAP. 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement – An LEA with a school or schools identified for comprehensive support and improvement (CSI) 
under the Every Student Succeeds Act must respond to the following prompts: 

● Schools Identified: Identify the schools within the LEA that have been identified for CSI.  

● Support for Identified Schools: Describe how the LEA has or will support the identified schools in developing CSI plans that included 
a school-level needs assessment, evidence-based interventions, and the identification of any resource inequities to be addressed 
through the implementation of the CSI plan. 

● Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness: Describe how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the implementation and effectiveness of 
the CSI plan to support student and school improvement. 

Engaging Educational Partners 
68



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 64 of 82 

Purpose 
Significant and purposeful engagement of parents, students, educators, and other educational partners, including those representing the 
student groups identified by LCFF, is critical to the development of the LCAP and the budget process. Consistent with statute, such 
engagement should support comprehensive strategic planning, accountability, and improvement across the state priorities and locally 
identified priorities (EC Section 52064[e][1]). Engagement of educational partners is an ongoing, annual process.  

This section is designed to reflect how the engagement of educational partners influenced the decisions reflected in the adopted LCAP. The 
goal is to allow educational partners that participated in the LCAP development process and the broader public understand how the LEA 
engaged educational partners and the impact of that engagement. LEAs are encouraged to keep this goal in the forefront when completing 
this section.  

Statute and regulations specify the educational partners that school districts and COEs must consult when developing the LCAP: teachers, 
principals, administrators, other school personnel, local bargaining units of the LEA, parents, and students. Before adopting the LCAP, school 
districts and COEs must share it with the Parent Advisory Committee and, if applicable, to its English Learner Parent Advisory Committee. The 
superintendent is required by statute to respond in writing to the comments received from these committees. School districts and COEs must 
also consult with the special education local plan area administrator(s) when developing the LCAP.  

Statute requires charter schools to consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, and students in 
developing the LCAP. The LCAP should also be shared with, and LEAs should request input from, schoolsite-level advisory groups, as 
applicable (e.g., schoolsite councils, English Learner Advisory Councils, student advisory groups, etc.), to facilitate alignment between 
schoolsite and district-level goals and actions.  

Information and resources that support effective engagement, define student consultation, and provide the requirements for advisory group 
composition, can be found under Resources on the following web page of the CDE’s website: https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/. 

Requirements and Instructions 
Below is an excerpt from the 2018–19 Guide for Annual Audits of K–12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, which is 
provided to highlight the legal requirements for engagement of educational partners in the LCAP development process: 

Local Control and Accountability Plan: 
For county offices of education and school districts only, verify the LEA: 

a) Presented the local control and accountability plan to the parent advisory committee in accordance with Education Code section 
52062(a)(1) or 52068(a)(1), as appropriate. 

b) If applicable, presented the local control and accountability plan to the English learner parent advisory committee, in accordance 
with Education Code section 52062(a)(2) or 52068(a)(2), as appropriate. 

69

https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 65 of 82 

c) Notified members of the public of the opportunity to submit comments regarding specific actions and expenditures proposed to 
be included in the local control and accountability plan in accordance with Education Code section 52062(a)(3) or 52068(a)(3), 
as appropriate. 

d) Held at least one public hearing in accordance with Education Code section 52062(b)(1) or 52068(b)(1), as appropriate. 

e) Adopted the local control and accountability plan in a public meeting in accordance with Education Code section 52062(b)(2) or 
52068(b)(2), as appropriate. 

Prompt 1: “A summary of the process used to engage educational partners and how this engagement was considered before finalizing the 
LCAP.” 

Describe the engagement process used by the LEA to involve educational partners in the development of the LCAP, including, at a minimum, 
describing how the LEA met its obligation to consult with all statutorily required educational partners as applicable to the type of LEA. A 
sufficient response to this prompt must include general information about the timeline of the process and meetings or other engagement 
strategies with educational partners. A response may also include information about an LEA’s philosophical approach to engaging its 
educational partners.  

Prompt 2: “A summary of the feedback provided by specific educational partners.” 

Describe and summarize the feedback provided by specific educational partners. A sufficient response to this prompt will indicate ideas, 
trends, or inputs that emerged from an analysis of the feedback received from educational partners. 

Prompt 3: “A description of the aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by specific input from educational partners.” 

A sufficient response to this prompt will provide educational partners and the public with clear, specific information about how the engagement 
process influenced the development of the LCAP. The response must describe aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by or developed in 
response to the educational partner feedback described in response to Prompt 2. This may include a description of how the LEA prioritized 
requests of educational partners within the context of the budgetary resources available or otherwise prioritized areas of focus within the 
LCAP. For the purposes of this prompt, “aspects” of an LCAP that may have been influenced by educational partner input can include, but are 
not necessarily limited to: 

• Inclusion of a goal or decision to pursue a Focus Goal (as described below) 
• Inclusion of metrics other than the statutorily required metrics 
• Determination of the desired outcome on one or more metrics 
• Inclusion of performance by one or more student groups in the Measuring and Reporting Results subsection 
• Inclusion of action(s) or a group of actions 
• Elimination of action(s) or group of actions  
• Changes to the level of proposed expenditures for one or more actions 

70



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 66 of 82 

• Inclusion of action(s) as contributing to increased or improved services for unduplicated services 
• Determination of effectiveness of the specific actions to achieve the goal 
• Determination of material differences in expenditures 
• Determination of changes made to a goal for the ensuing LCAP year based on the annual update process 
• Determination of challenges or successes in the implementation of actions 

Goals and Actions 
Purpose 
Well-developed goals will clearly communicate to educational partners what the LEA plans to accomplish, what the LEA plans to do in order to 
accomplish the goal, and how the LEA will know when it has accomplished the goal. A goal statement, associated metrics and expected 
outcomes, and the actions included in the goal should be in alignment. The explanation for why the LEA included a goal is an opportunity for 
LEAs to clearly communicate to educational partners and the public why, among the various strengths and areas for improvement highlighted 
by performance data and strategies and actions that could be pursued, the LEA decided to pursue this goal, and the related metrics, expected 
outcomes, actions, and expenditures. 

A well-developed goal can be focused on the performance relative to a metric or metrics for all students, a specific student group(s), narrowing 
performance gaps, or implementing programs or strategies expected to impact outcomes. LEAs should assess the performance of their 
student groups when developing goals and the related actions to achieve such goals. 

Requirements and Instructions 
LEAs should prioritize the goals, specific actions, and related expenditures included within the LCAP within one or more state priorities. LEAs 
should consider performance on the state and local indicators, including their locally collected and reported data for the local indicators that 
are included in the Dashboard in determining whether and how to prioritize its goals within the LCAP. 

In order to support prioritization of goals, the LCAP template provides LEAs with the option of developing three different kinds of goals: 

• Focus Goal: A Focus Goal is relatively more concentrated in scope and may focus on a fewer number of metrics to measure improvement. A Focus 
Goal statement will be time bound and make clear how the goal is to be measured. 

• Broad Goal: A Broad Goal is relatively less concentrated in its scope and may focus on improving performance across a wide range of metrics. 

• Maintenance of Progress Goal: A Maintenance of Progress Goal includes actions that may be ongoing without significant changes and allows an 
LEA to track performance on any metrics not addressed in the other goals of the LCAP. 

At a minimum, the LCAP must address all LCFF priorities and associated metrics. 

71



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 67 of 82 

Focus Goal(s) 
Goal Description: The description provided for a Focus Goal must be specific, measurable, and time bound. An LEA develops a Focus Goal 
to address areas of need that may require or benefit from a more specific and data intensive approach. The Focus Goal can explicitly 
reference the metric(s) by which achievement of the goal will be measured and the time frame according to which the LEA expects to achieve 
the goal. 

Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain why the LEA has chosen to prioritize this goal. An explanation must be 
based on Dashboard data or other locally collected data. LEAs must describe how the LEA identified this goal for focused attention, including 
relevant consultation with educational partners. LEAs are encouraged to promote transparency and understanding around the decision to 
pursue a focus goal. 

Broad Goal 
Goal Description: Describe what the LEA plans to achieve through the actions included in the goal. The description of a broad goal will be 
clearly aligned with the expected measurable outcomes included for the goal. The goal description organizes the actions and expected 
outcomes in a cohesive and consistent manner. A goal description is specific enough to be measurable in either quantitative or qualitative 
terms. A broad goal is not as specific as a focus goal. While it is specific enough to be measurable, there are many different metrics for 
measuring progress toward the goal. 

Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain why the LEA developed this goal and how the actions and metrics grouped 
together will help achieve the goal. 

Maintenance of Progress Goal 
Goal Description: Describe how the LEA intends to maintain the progress made in the LCFF State Priorities not addressed by the other goals 
in the LCAP. Use this type of goal to address the state priorities and applicable metrics not addressed within the other goals in the LCAP. The 
state priorities and metrics to be addressed in this section are those for which the LEA, in consultation with educational partners, has 
determined to maintain actions and monitor progress while focusing implementation efforts on the actions covered by other goals in the LCAP. 

Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain how the actions will sustain the progress exemplified by the related metrics. 

Required Goals 
In general, LEAs have flexibility in determining what goals to include in the LCAP and what those goals will address; however, beginning with 
the development of the 2022–23 LCAP, LEAs that meet certain criteria are required to include a specific goal in their LCAP. 

Consistently low-performing student group(s) criteria: An LEA is eligible for Differentiated Assistance for three or more consecutive years 
based on the performance of the same student group or groups in the Dashboard. A list of the LEAs required to include a goal in the LCAP 
based on student group performance, and the student group(s) that lead to identification, may be found on the CDE’s Local Control Funding 
Formula web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/.  

• Consistently low-performing student group(s) goal requirement: An LEA meeting the consistently low-performing student group(s) criteria must 
include a goal in its LCAP focused on improving the performance of the student group or groups that led to the LEA’s eligibility for Differentiated 72

https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 68 of 82 

Assistance. This goal must include metrics, outcomes, actions, and expenditures specific to addressing the needs of, and improving outcomes for, 
this student group or groups. An LEA required to address multiple student groups is not required to have a goal to address each student group; 
however, each student group must be specifically addressed in the goal. This requirement may not be met by combining this required goal with 
another goal. 

• Goal Description: Describe the outcomes the LEA plans to achieve to address the needs of, and improve outcomes for, the student group or 
groups that led to the LEA’s eligibility for Differentiated Assistance. 

• Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain why the LEA is required to develop this goal, including identifying the student 
group(s) that lead to the LEA being required to develop this goal, how the actions and associated metrics included in this goal differ from previous 
efforts to improve outcomes for the student group(s), and why the LEA believes the actions, metrics, and expenditures included in this goal will help 
achieve the outcomes identified in the goal description. 

Low-performing school(s) criteria: The following criteria only applies to a school district or COE with two or more schools; it does not apply 
to a single-school district. A school district or COE has one or more schools that, for two consecutive years, received the two lowest 
performance levels on all but one of the state indicators for which the school(s) receive performance levels in the Dashboard and the 
performance of the “All Students” student group for the LEA is at least one performance level higher in all of those indicators. A list of the LEAs 
required to include a goal in the LCAP based on school performance, and the school(s) that lead to identification, may be found on the CDE’s 
Local Control Funding Formula web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/. 

• Low-performing school(s) goal requirement: A school district or COE meeting the low-performing school(s) criteria must include a goal in its 
LCAP focusing on addressing the disparities in performance between the school(s) and the LEA as a whole. This goal must include metrics, 
outcomes, actions, and expenditures specific to addressing the needs of, and improving outcomes for, the students enrolled at the low-performing 
school or schools. An LEA required to address multiple schools is not required to have a goal to address each school; however, each school must 
be specifically addressed in the goal. This requirement may not be met by combining this goal with another goal. 

• Goal Description: Describe what outcomes the LEA plans to achieve to address the disparities in performance between the students enrolled at 
the low-performing school(s) and the students enrolled at the LEA as a whole.  

• Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain why the LEA is required to develop this goal, including identifying the schools(s) 
that lead to the LEA being required to develop this goal; how the actions and associated metrics included in this goal differ from previous efforts to 
improve outcomes for the school(s); and why the LEA believes the actions, metrics, and expenditures included in this goal will help achieve the 
outcomes for students enrolled at the low-performing school or schools identified in the goal description. 

Measuring and Reporting Results: 
For each LCAP year, identify the metric(s) that the LEA will use to track progress toward the expected outcomes. LEAs are encouraged to 
identify metrics for specific student groups, as appropriate, including expected outcomes that would reflect narrowing of any existing 
performance gaps.  

73

https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/


 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 69 of 82 

Include in the baseline column the most recent data associated with this metric available at the time of adoption of the LCAP for the first year 
of the three-year plan. LEAs may use data as reported on the 2019 Dashboard for the baseline of a metric only if that data represents the 
most recent available (e.g., high school graduation rate). 

Using the most recent data available may involve reviewing data the LEA is preparing for submission to the California Longitudinal Pupil 
Achievement Data System (CALPADS) or data that the LEA has recently submitted to CALPADS. Because final 2020–21 outcomes on some 
metrics may not be computable at the time the 2021–24 LCAP is adopted (e.g., graduation rate, suspension rate), the most recent data 
available may include a point in time calculation taken each year on the same date for comparability purposes. 

The baseline data shall remain unchanged throughout the three-year LCAP. 

Complete the table as follows: 

● Metric: Indicate how progress is being measured using a metric. 

● Baseline: Enter the baseline when completing the LCAP for 2021–22. As described above, the baseline is the most recent data 
associated with a metric. Indicate the school year to which the data applies, consistent with the instructions above. 

● Year 1 Outcome: When completing the LCAP for 2022–23, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the 
data applies, consistent with the instructions above. 

● Year 2 Outcome: When completing the LCAP for 2023–24, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the 
data applies, consistent with the instructions above. 

● Year 3 Outcome: When completing the LCAP for 2024–25, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the 
data applies, consistent with the instructions above. The 2024–25 LCAP will be the first year in the next three-year cycle. Completing 
this column will be part of the Annual Update for that year. 

● Desired Outcome for 2023–24: When completing the first year of the LCAP, enter the desired outcome for the relevant metric the LEA 
expects to achieve by the end of the 2023–24 LCAP year. 

Timeline for completing the “Measuring and Reporting Results” part of the Goal. 

74



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 70 of 82 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome 

for Year 3 
(2023–24) 

Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2021–
22. 

Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2021–
22. 

Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2022–
23. Leave blank 
until then. 

Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2023–
24. Leave blank 
until then. 

Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2024–
25. Leave blank 
until then. 

Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2021–
22 or when 
adding a new 
metric. 

The metrics may be quantitative or qualitative; but at minimum, an LEA’s LCAP must include goals that are measured using all of the 
applicable metrics for the related state priorities, in each LCAP year as applicable to the type of LEA. To the extent a state priority does not 
specify one or more metrics (e.g., implementation of state academic content and performance standards), the LEA must identify a metric to 
use within the LCAP. For these state priorities, LEAs are encouraged to use metrics based on or reported through the relevant self-reflection 
tool for local indicators within the Dashboard. 

Actions: Enter the action number. Provide a short title for the action. This title will also appear in the action tables. Provide a description of the 
action. Enter the total amount of expenditures associated with this action. Budgeted expenditures from specific fund sources will be provided 
in the summary tables. Indicate whether the action contributes to meeting the increase or improved services requirement as described in the 
Increased or Improved Services section using a “Y” for Yes or an “N” for No. (Note: for each such action offered on an LEA-wide or 
schoolwide basis, the LEA will need to provide additional information in the Increased or Improved Summary Section to address the 
requirements in California Code of Regulations, Title 5 [5 CCR] Section 15496(b) in the Increased or Improved Services Section of the LCAP). 

Actions for English Learners: School districts, COEs, and charter schools that have a numerically significant English learner student 
subgroup must include specific actions in the LCAP related to, at a minimum, the language acquisition programs, as defined in EC 
Section 306, provided to students and professional development activities specific to English learners. 

Actions for Foster Youth: School districts, COEs, and charter schools that have a numerically significant Foster Youth student 
subgroup are encouraged to include specific actions in the LCAP designed to meet needs specific to Foster Youth students. 

Goal Analysis: 

Enter the LCAP Year. 

75



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 71 of 82 

Using actual annual measurable outcome data, including data from the Dashboard, analyze whether the planned actions were effective in 
achieving the goal. Respond to the prompts as instructed. 

● Describe the overall implementation of the actions to achieve the articulated goal. Include a discussion of relevant challenges and 
successes experienced with the implementation process. This must include any instance where the LEA did not implement a planned 
action or implemented a planned action in a manner that differs substantively from how it was described in the adopted LCAP.  

● Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and between the Planned 
Percentages of Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services, as applicable. Minor variances in 
expenditures or percentages do not need to be addressed, and a dollar-for-dollar accounting is not required. 

● Describe the effectiveness of the specific actions to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. In some cases, not all 
actions in a goal will be intended to improve performance on all of the metrics associated with the goal. When responding to this 
prompt, LEAs may assess the effectiveness of a single action or group of actions within the goal in the context of performance on a 
single metric or group of specific metrics within the goal that are applicable to the action(s). Grouping actions with metrics will allow for 
more robust analysis of whether the strategy the LEA is using to impact a specified set of metrics is working and increase transparency 
for educational partners. LEAs are encouraged to use such an approach when goals include multiple actions and metrics that are not 
closely associated. 

● Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the data provided in the Dashboard or other local data, as applicable. 

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students  
Purpose 
A well-written Increased or Improved Services section provides educational partners with a comprehensive description, within a single 
dedicated section, of how an LEA plans to increase or improve services for its unduplicated students in grades TK–12 as compared to all 
students in grades TK–12, as applicable, and how LEA-wide or schoolwide actions identified for this purpose meet regulatory requirements. 
Descriptions provided should include sufficient detail yet be sufficiently succinct to promote a broader understanding of educational partners to 
facilitate their ability to provide input. An LEA’s description in this section must align with the actions included in the Goals and Actions section 
as contributing.  

Requirements and Instructions 
Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants: Specify the amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration grant funds the 
LEA estimates it will receive in the coming year based on the number and concentration of low income, foster youth, and English learner 
students. 

76



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 72 of 82 

Projected Additional LCFF Concentration Grant (15 percent): Specify the amount of additional LCFF concentration grant add-on funding, 
as described in EC Section 42238.02, that the LEA estimates it will receive in the coming year. 

Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year: Specify the estimated percentage by which services 
for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as compared to the services provided to all students in the LCAP year as calculated 
pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(7). 

LCFF Carryover — Percentage: Specify the LCFF Carryover — Percentage identified in the LCFF Carryover Table. If a carryover 
percentage is not identified in the LCFF Carryover Table, specify a percentage of zero (0.00%). 

LCFF Carryover — Dollar: Specify the LCFF Carryover — Dollar amount identified in the LCFF Carryover Table. If a carryover amount is not 
identified in the LCFF Carryover Table, specify an amount of zero ($0). 

Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year: Add the Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve 
Services for the Coming School Year and the Proportional LCFF Required Carryover Percentage and specify the percentage. This is the LEAs 
percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as compared to the services provided to all students in 
the LCAP year, as calculated pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(7). 

Required Descriptions: 

For each action being provided to an entire school, or across the entire school district or COE, an explanation of (1) how the needs 
of foster youth, English learners, and low-income students were considered first, and (2) how these actions are effective in meeting 
the goals for these students. 

For each action included in the Goals and Actions section as contributing to the increased or improved services requirement for unduplicated 
pupils and provided on an LEA-wide or schoolwide basis, the LEA must include an explanation consistent with 5 CCR Section 15496(b). For 
any such actions continued into the 2021–24 LCAP from the 2017–2020 LCAP, the LEA must determine whether or not the action was 
effective as expected, and this determination must reflect evidence of outcome data or actual implementation to date. 

Principally Directed and Effective: An LEA demonstrates how an action is principally directed towards and effective in meeting the LEA’s 
goals for unduplicated students when the LEA explains how: 

● It considers the needs, conditions, or circumstances of its unduplicated pupils; 

● The action, or aspect(s) of the action (including, for example, its design, content, methods, or location), is based on these 
considerations; and 

● The action is intended to help achieve an expected measurable outcome of the associated goal. 

As such, the response provided in this section may rely on a needs assessment of unduplicated students. 
77



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 73 of 82 

Conclusory statements that a service will help achieve an expected outcome for the goal, without an explicit connection or further explanation 
as to how, are not sufficient. Further, simply stating that an LEA has a high enrollment percentage of a specific student group or groups does 
not meet the increase or improve services standard because enrolling students is not the same as serving students. 

For example, if an LEA determines that low-income students have a significantly lower attendance rate than the attendance rate for all 
students, it might justify LEA-wide or schoolwide actions to address this area of need in the following way: 

After assessing the needs, conditions, and circumstances of our low-income students, we learned that the attendance rate of our low-
income students is 7 percent lower than the attendance rate for all students. (Needs, Conditions, Circumstances [Principally Directed]) 

In order to address this condition of our low-income students, we will develop and implement a new attendance program that is 
designed to address some of the major causes of absenteeism, including lack of reliable transportation and food, as well as a school 
climate that does not emphasize the importance of attendance. Goal N, Actions X, Y, and Z provide additional transportation and 
nutritional resources as well as a districtwide educational campaign on the benefits of high attendance rates. (Contributing Action[s]) 

These actions are being provided on an LEA-wide basis and we expect/hope that all students with less than a 100 percent attendance 
rate will benefit. However, because of the significantly lower attendance rate of low-income students, and because the actions meet 
needs most associated with the chronic stresses and experiences of a socio-economically disadvantaged status, we expect that the 
attendance rate for our low-income students will increase significantly more than the average attendance rate of all other students. 
(Measurable Outcomes [Effective In]) 

COEs and Charter Schools: Describe how actions included as contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement on an 
LEA-wide basis are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities as 
described above. In the case of COEs and charter schools, schoolwide and LEA-wide are considered to be synonymous. 

For School Districts Only: 

Actions Provided on an LEA-Wide Basis: 

Unduplicated Percentage > 55 percent: For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of 55 percent or more, describe how 
these actions are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities as 
described above. 

Unduplicated Percentage < 55 percent: For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of less than 55 percent, describe how 
these actions are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities. Also 
describe how the actions are the most effective use of the funds to meet these goals for its unduplicated pupils. Provide the basis for this 
determination, including any alternatives considered, supporting research, experience, or educational theory. 

Actions Provided on a Schoolwide Basis: 
78



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 74 of 82 

School Districts must identify in the description those actions being funded and provided on a schoolwide basis, and include the required 
description supporting the use of the funds on a schoolwide basis. 

For schools with 40 percent or more enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these actions are principally directed to and 
effective in meeting its goals for its unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities. 

For school districts expending funds on a schoolwide basis at a school with less than 40 percent enrollment of unduplicated pupils: 
Describe how these actions are principally directed to and how the actions are the most effective use of the funds to meet its goals for foster 
youth, English learners, and low-income students in the state and any local priorities. 

A description of how services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students are being increased or improved by the 
percentage required. 

Consistent with the requirements of 5 CCR Section 15496, describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved 
by at least the percentage calculated as compared to the services provided for all students in the LCAP year. To improve services means to 
grow services in quality and to increase services means to grow services in quantity. Services are increased or improved by those actions in 
the LCAP that are included in the Goals and Actions section as contributing to the increased or improved services requirement, whether they 
are provided on an LEA-wide or schoolwide basis or provided on a limited basis to unduplicated students. A limited action is an action that 
only serves foster youth, English learners, and/or low-income students. This description must address how these action(s) are expected to 
result in the required proportional increase or improvement in services for unduplicated pupils as compared to the services the LEA provides 
to all students for the relevant LCAP year. 

For any action contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement that is associated with a Planned Percentage of 
Improved Services in the Contributing Summary Table rather than an expenditure of LCFF funds, describe the methodology that was used to 
determine the contribution of the action towards the proportional percentage. See the instructions for determining the Planned Percentage of 
Improved Services for information on calculating the Percentage of Improved Services. 

A description of the plan for how the additional concentration grant add-on funding identified above will be used to increase the 
number of staff providing direct services to students at schools that have a high concentration (above 55 percent) of foster youth, 
English learners, and low-income students, as applicable. 
An LEA that receives the additional concentration grant add-on described in EC Section 42238.02 is required to demonstrate how it is using 
these funds to increase the number of staff who provide direct services to students at schools with an enrollment of unduplicated students that 
is greater than 55 percent as compared to the number of staff who provide direct services to students at schools with an enrollment of 
unduplicated students that is equal to or less than 55 percent. The staff who provide direct services to students must be certificated staff 
and/or classified staff employed by the LEA; classified staff includes custodial staff.  

Provide the following descriptions, as applicable to the LEA: 

79



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 75 of 82 

An LEA that does not receive a concentration grant or the concentration grant add-on must indicate that a response to this prompt is not 
applicable. 

Identify the goal and action numbers of the actions in the LCAP that the LEA is implementing to meet the requirement to increase the number 
of staff who provide direct services to students at schools with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent.  

An LEA that does not have comparison schools from which to describe how it is using the concentration grant add-on funds, such as an LEA 
that only has schools with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, must describe how it is using the funds to 
increase the number of credentialed staff, classified staff, or both, including custodial staff, who provide direct services to students at selected 
schools and the criteria used to determine which schools require additional staffing support. 

In the event that an additional concentration grant add-on is not sufficient to increase staff providing direct services to students at a school with 
an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, the LEA must describe how it is using the funds to retain staff providing 
direct services to students at a school with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent. 

Complete the table as follows:  

• Provide the staff-to-student ratio of classified staff providing direct services to students with a concentration of unduplicated students that is 55 
percent or less and the staff-to-student ratio of classified staff providing direct services to students at schools with a concentration of unduplicated 
students that is greater than 55 percent, as applicable to the LEA. The LEA may group its schools by grade span (Elementary, Middle/Junior High, 
and High Schools), as applicable to the LEA. The staff-to-student ratio must be based on the number of full time equivalent (FTE) staff and the 
number of enrolled students as counted on the first Wednesday in October of each year.  

• Provide the staff-to-student ratio of certificated staff providing direct services to students at schools with a concentration of unduplicated students 
that is 55 percent or less and the staff-to-student ratio of certificated staff providing direct services to students at schools with a concentration of 
unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, as applicable to the LEA. The LEA may group its schools by grade span (Elementary, 
Middle/Junior High, and High Schools), as applicable to the LEA. The staff-to-student ratio must be based on the number of FTE staff and the 
number of enrolled students as counted on the first Wednesday in October of each year. 

Action Tables 
Complete the Data Entry Table for each action in the LCAP. The information entered into this table will automatically populate the other Action 
Tables. Information is only entered into the Data Entry Table, the Annual Update Table, the Contributing Actions Annual Update Table, and 
the LCFF Carryover Table. With the exception of the Data Entry Table, the word “input” has been added to column headers to aid in identifying 
the column(s) where information will be entered. Information is not entered on the remaining Action tables.  

The following tables are required to be included as part of the LCAP adopted by the local governing board or governing body: 

• Table 1: Total Planned Expenditures Table (for the coming LCAP Year) 

80



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 76 of 82 

• Table 2: Contributing Actions Table (for the coming LCAP Year) 

• Table 3: Annual Update Table (for the current LCAP Year) 

• Table 4: Contributing Actions Annual Update Table (for the current LCAP Year) 

• Table 5: LCFF Carryover Table (for the current LCAP Year) 

Note: The coming LCAP Year is the year that is being planned for, while the current LCAP year is the current year of implementation. For 
example, when developing the 2022–23 LCAP, 2022–23 will be the coming LCAP Year and 2021–22 will be the current LCAP Year. 

Data Entry Table 
The Data Entry Table may be included in the LCAP as adopted by the local governing board or governing body, but is not required to be 
included. In the Data Entry Table, input the following information for each action in the LCAP for that applicable LCAP year: 

• LCAP Year: Identify the applicable LCAP Year. 

• 1. Projected LCFF Base Grant: Provide the total amount of LCFF funding the LEA estimates it will receive for the coming school year, 
excluding the supplemental and concentration grants and the add-ons for the Targeted Instructional Improvement Grant Program and 
the Home to School Transportation Program, pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(8).  

See EC sections 2574 (for COEs) and 42238.02 (for school districts and charter schools), as applicable, for LCFF apportionment 
calculations.  

• 2. Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants: Provide the total amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration 
grants the LEA estimates it will receive on the basis of the number and concentration of unduplicated students for the coming school 
year. 

• 3. Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year: This percentage will not be entered; it is 
calculated based on the Projected LCFF Base Grant and the Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants, pursuant to 5 
CCR Section 15496(a)(8). This is the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as 
compared to the services provided to all students in the coming LCAP year. 

• LCFF Carryover — Percentage: Specify the LCFF Carryover — Percentage identified in the LCFF Carryover Table from the prior 
LCAP year. If a carryover percentage is not identified in the LCFF Carryover Table, specify a percentage of zero (0.00%). 

• Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year: This percentage will not be entered; it is calculated 
based on the Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year and the LCFF Carryover — 

81



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 77 of 82 

Percentage. This is the percentage by which the LEA must increase or improve services for unduplicated pupils as compared to the 
services provided to all students in the coming LCAP year. 

• Goal #: Enter the LCAP Goal number for the action. 

• Action #: Enter the action’s number as indicated in the LCAP Goal. 

• Action Title: Provide a title of the action.  

• Student Group(s): Indicate the student group or groups who will be the primary beneficiary of the action by entering “All,” or by 
entering a specific student group or groups. 

• Contributing to Increased or Improved Services?: Type “Yes” if the action is included as contributing to meeting the increased or 
improved services; OR, type “No” if the action is not included as contributing to meeting the increased or improved services. 

• If “Yes” is entered into the Contributing column, then complete the following columns: 

o Scope: The scope of an action may be LEA-wide (i.e., districtwide, countywide, or charterwide), schoolwide, or limited. An action 
that is LEA-wide in scope upgrades the entire educational program of the LEA. An action that is schoolwide in scope upgrades 
the entire educational program of a single school. An action that is limited in its scope is an action that serves only one or more 
unduplicated student groups.  

o Unduplicated Student Group(s): Regardless of scope, contributing actions serve one or more unduplicated student groups. 
Indicate one or more unduplicated student groups for whom services are being increased or improved as compared to what all 
students receive. 

o Location: Identify the location where the action will be provided. If the action is provided to all schools within the LEA, the LEA 
must indicate “All Schools.” If the action is provided to specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must 
enter “Specific Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans.” Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or grade spans (e.g., all 
high schools or grades transitional kindergarten through grade five), as appropriate. 

• Time Span: Enter “ongoing” if the action will be implemented for an indeterminate period of time. Otherwise, indicate the span of time 
for which the action will be implemented. For example, an LEA might enter “1 Year,” or “2 Years,” or “6 Months.” 

• Total Personnel: Enter the total amount of personnel expenditures utilized to implement this action.  

• Total Non-Personnel: This amount will be automatically calculated based on information provided in the Total Personnel column and 
the Total Funds column. 

82



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 78 of 82 

• LCFF Funds: Enter the total amount of LCFF funds utilized to implement this action, if any. LCFF funds include all funds that make up 
an LEA’s total LCFF target (i.e., base grant, grade span adjustment, supplemental grant, concentration grant, Targeted Instructional 
Improvement Block Grant, and Home-To-School Transportation). 

o Note: For an action to contribute towards meeting the increased or improved services requirement it must include some 
measure of LCFF funding. The action may also include funding from other sources, however the extent to which an action 
contributes to meeting the increased or improved services requirement is based on the LCFF funding being used to implement 
the action. 

• Other State Funds: Enter the total amount of Other State Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 

• Local Funds: Enter the total amount of Local Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 

• Federal Funds: Enter the total amount of Federal Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 

• Total Funds: This amount is automatically calculated based on amounts entered in the previous four columns. 

• Planned Percentage of Improved Services: For any action identified as contributing, being provided on a Limited basis to 
unduplicated students, and that does not have funding associated with the action, enter the planned quality improvement anticipated for 
the action as a percentage rounded to the nearest hundredth (0.00%). A limited action is an action that only serves foster youth, English 
learners, and/or low-income students. 

o As noted in the instructions for the Increased or Improved Services section, when identifying a Planned Percentage of Improved 
Services, the LEA must describe the methodology that it used to determine the contribution of the action towards the proportional 
percentage. The percentage of improved services for an action corresponds to the amount of LCFF funding that the LEA 
estimates it would expend to implement the action if it were funded. 

For example, an LEA determines that there is a need to analyze data to ensure that instructional aides and expanded learning 
providers know what targeted supports to provide to students who are foster youth. The LEA could implement this action by 
hiring additional staff to collect and analyze data and to coordinate supports for students, which the LEA estimates would cost 
$165,000. Instead, the LEA chooses to utilize a portion of existing staff time to analyze data relating to students who are foster 
youth. This analysis will then be shared with site principals who will use the data to coordinate services provided by instructional 
assistants and expanded learning providers to target support to students. In this example, the LEA would divide the estimated 
cost of $165,000 by the amount of LCFF Funding identified in the Data Entry Table and then convert the quotient to a 
percentage. This percentage is the Planned Percentage of Improved Service for the action. 

Contributing Actions Table 

83



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 79 of 82 

As noted above, information will not be entered in the Contributing Actions Table; however, the ‘Contributing to Increased or Improved 
Services?’ column will need to be checked to ensure that only actions with a “Yes” are displaying. If actions with a “No” are displayed or if 
actions that are contributing are not displaying in the column, use the drop-down menu in the column header to filter only the “Yes” responses.   

Annual Update Table 
In the Annual Update Table, provide the following information for each action in the LCAP for the relevant LCAP year: 

• Estimated Actual Expenditures: Enter the total estimated actual expenditures to implement this action, if any. 

Contributing Actions Annual Update Table 
In the Contributing Actions Annual Update Table, check the ‘Contributing to Increased or Improved Services?’ column to ensure that only 
actions with a “Yes” are displaying. If actions with a “No” are displayed or if actions that are contributing are not displaying in the column, use 
the drop-down menu in the column header to filter only the “Yes” responses. Provide the following information for each contributing action in 
the LCAP for the relevant LCAP year: 

• 6. Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants: Provide the total amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration 
grants the LEA estimates it will actually receive based on of the number and concentration of unduplicated students in the current school year. 

• Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions: Enter the total estimated actual expenditure of LCFF funds used to implement this 
action, if any. 

• Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services: For any action identified as contributing, being provided on a Limited basis only to 
unduplicated students, and that does not have funding associated with the action, enter the total estimated actual quality improvement anticipated 
for the action as a percentage rounded to the nearest hundredth (0.00%). 

o Building on the example provided above for calculating the Planned Percentage of Improved Services, the LEA in the example implements 
the action. As part of the annual update process, the LEA reviews implementation and student outcome data and determines that the action 
was implemented with fidelity and that outcomes for foster youth students improved. The LEA reviews the original estimated cost for the 
action and determines that had it hired additional staff to collect and analyze data and to coordinate supports for students that estimated 
actual cost would have been $169,500 due to a cost of living adjustment. The LEA would divide the estimated actual cost of $169,500 by the 
amount of LCFF Funding identified in the Data Entry Table and then convert the quotient to a percentage. This percentage is the Estimated 
Actual Percentage of Improved Services for the action. 

LCFF Carryover Table 
• 9. Estimated Actual LCFF Base Grant: Provide the total amount of LCFF funding the LEA estimates it will receive for the current 

school year, excluding the supplemental and concentration grants and the add-ons for the Targeted Instructional Improvement Grant 
Program and the Home to School Transportation Program, pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(8).  

84



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 80 of 82 

• 10. Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Current School Year: This percentage will not be entered. The 
percentage is calculated based on the amounts of the Estimated Actual LCFF Base Grant (9) and the Estimated Actual LCFF 
Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants (6), pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(8), plus the LCFF Carryover – Percentage from 
the prior year. This is the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as compared to the 
services provided to all students in the current LCAP year. 

Calculations in the Action Tables 
To reduce the duplication of effort of LEAs, the Action Tables include functionality such as pre-population of fields and cells based on the 
information provided in the Data Entry Table, the Annual Update Summary Table, and the Contributing Actions Table. For transparency, the 
functionality and calculations used are provided below. 

Contributing Actions Table 
• 4. Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (LCFF Funds) 

o This amount is the total of the Planned Expenditures for Contributing Actions (LCFF Funds) column 

• 5. Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services 

o This percentage is the total of the Planned Percentage of Improved Services column 

• Planned Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the coming school year (4 divided by 1, plus 5) 

o This percentage is calculated by dividing the Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (4) by the Projected LCFF Base Grant (1), converting 
the quotient to a percentage, and adding it to the Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services (5). 

Contributing Actions Annual Update Table 
Pursuant to EC Section 42238.07(c)(2), if the Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (4) is less than the Estimated Actual LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration Grants (6), the LEA is required to calculate the difference between the Total Planned Percentage of 
Improved Services (5) and the Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (7). If the Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (4) 
is equal to or greater than the Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and Concentration Grants (6), the Difference Between Planned and 
Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services will display “Not Required.” 

• 6. Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and Concentration Grants 

o This is the total amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration grants the LEA estimates it will actually receive based on of the number 
and concentration of unduplicated students in the current school year. 

• 4. Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (LCFF Funds) 

o This amount is the total of the Last Year's Planned Expenditures for Contributing Actions (LCFF Funds) 
85



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 81 of 82 

• 7. Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions 

o This amount is the total of the Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (LCFF Funds) 

• Difference Between Planned and Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (Subtract 7 from 4) 

o This amount is the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (7) subtracted from the Total Planned Contributing 
Expenditures (4) 

• 5. Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services (%) 

o This amount is the total of the Planned Percentage of Improved Services column 

• 8. Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (%) 

o This amount is the total of the Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services column 

• Difference Between Planned and Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (Subtract 5 from 8) 

o This amount is the Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services (5) subtracted from the Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved 
Services (8) 

LCFF Carryover Table 
• 10. Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Current School Year (6 divided by 9 + Carryover %) 

o This percentage is the Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants (6) divided by the Estimated Actual LCFF Base 
Grant (9) plus the LCFF Carryover – Percentage from the prior year.  

• 11. Estimated Actual Percentage of Increased or Improved Services (7 divided by 9, plus 8) 

o This percentage is the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (7) divided by the LCFF Funding (9), then converting the 
quotient to a percentage and adding the Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (8). 

• 12. LCFF Carryover — Dollar Amount LCFF Carryover (Subtract 11 from 10 and multiply by 9) 

o If the Estimated Actual Percentage of Increased or Improved Services (11) is less than the Estimated Actual Percentage to Increase or 
Improve Services (10), the LEA is required to carry over LCFF funds.  

The amount of LCFF funds is calculated by subtracting the Estimated Actual Percentage to Increase or Improve Services (11) from the 
Estimated Actual Percentage of Increased or Improved Services (10) and then multiplying by the Estimated Actual LCFF Base Grant (9). 
This amount is the amount of LCFF funds that is required to be carried over to the coming year. 

86



 
 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Kings County Office of Education Page 82 of 82 

• 13. LCFF Carryover — Percentage (12 divided by 9) 

o This percentage is the unmet portion of the Percentage to Increase or Improve Services that the LEA must carry over into the coming LCAP 
year. The percentage is calculated by dividing the LCFF Carryover (12) by the LCFF Funding (9). 

California Department of Education 
January 2022 
 

87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



258



259



260



261



262



263



264



265



266



267



268



269



270



271



272



273



274



275



276



 

ACTION ITEM 
 
 
 

DATE: June 22, 2022 
 

TOPIC: Local Control Accountability Plan Federal Addendum 
 

ISSUE: The LCAP Federal Addendum must be 
board approved prior to online application 
submission in order to apply for federal 
funds. We have updated the addendum to 
include the new educator equity 
definitions (Title I Part A Educator Equity 
Provision) and included all responses to 
the Title I Part A provisions in response to 
the new funding at JC Montgomery and 
Special Education Schools. 

 

BACKGROUND: The LCAP Federal Addendum is meant to 
supplement the LCAP to ensure that eligible LEAs 
and COEs have the opportunity to meet the Local 
Educational Agency (LEA) Plan provisions of 
ESSA. The LCAP Federal Addendum Template 
must be approved annually by the local governing 
board to apply for ESSA funding. 

 
RESOURCE: Joy Santos 

Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
joy.santos@kingscoe.org 
559-589-7068 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Recommend that the Kings County Board of  
 Education review and approve the LCAP Federal  
 Addendum. 

277

mailto:joy.santos@kingscoe.org


Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) 
Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA)  
Federal Addendum Template 
 

LEA Name 
Kings County Office of Education         

 

CDS Code: 
1610165-1630102         

 

Link to the LCAP: 
(optional) 
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1ONnQ
2n0ganQZu1dZMIoaRhpli9g-
8rIt?usp=sharing 

 
 

For which ESSA programs apply to your 
LEA? 
 
Choose From: 
 
X TITLE I, PART A 

Improving Basic Programs Operated by  
State and Local Educational Agencies        

X TITLE I, PART D  
Prevention and Intervention Programs for Children 
and Youth Who Are Neglected, Delinquent, or At-Risk        

X TITLE II, PART A 
Supporting Effective Instruction        

 
(note: This list only includes ESSA programs with LEA plan 
requirements; not all ESSA programs.) 
 

 
• Title I, Part A: Improving Basic Programs Operated by State and Local Educational Agencies 
• Title I, Part D: Prevention and Intervention Programs for Children and Youth Who Are Neglected, Delinquent, 

or At-Risk 
• Title II, Part A: Supporting Effective Instruction 

 
 
 

In the following pages, ONLY complete the sections for the corresponding programs. 
 

278

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1ONnQ2n0ganQZu1dZMIoaRhpli9g-8rIt?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1ONnQ2n0ganQZu1dZMIoaRhpli9g-8rIt?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1ONnQ2n0ganQZu1dZMIoaRhpli9g-8rIt?usp=sharing


 
Instructions 
 
The LCAP Federal Addendum is meant to supplement the LCAP to ensure that eligible LEAs have the 
opportunity to meet the Local Educational Agency (LEA) Plan provisions of the ESSA.  

The LCAP Federal Addendum Template must be completed and submitted to the California 
Department of Education (CDE) to apply for ESSA funding. LEAs are encouraged to review the LCAP 
Federal Addendum annually with their LCAP, as ESSA funding should be considered in yearly strategic 
planning.  

The LEA must address the Strategy and Alignment prompts provided on the following page.  

Each provision for each program must be addressed, unless the provision is not applicable to the LEA.  

In addressing these provisions, LEAs must provide a narrative that addresses the provision within the 
LCAP Federal Addendum Template.  

Under State Priority Alignment, state priority numbers are provided to demonstrate where an ESSA 
provision aligns with state priorities. This is meant to assist LEAs in determining where ESSA provisions 
may already be addressed in the LEA’s LCAP, as it demonstrates the LEA’s efforts to support the state 
priorities. 

The CDE emphasizes that the LCAP Federal Addendum should not drive LCAP development. ESSA 
funds are supplemental to state funds, just as the LCAP Federal Addendum supplements your LCAP. LEAs 
are encouraged to integrate their ESSA funds into their LCAP development as much as possible to promote 
strategic planning of all resources; however, this is not a requirement. In reviewing the LCAP Federal 
Addendum, staff will evaluate the LEA’s responses to the ESSA plan provisions. There is no standard length 
for the responses. LEAs will be asked to clarify insufficient responses during the review process. 
 

California’s ESSA State Plan significantly shifts the state’s approach to the utilization of federal resources in 
support of underserved student groups. This LCAP Federal Addendum provides LEAs with the opportunity 
to document their approach to maximizing the impact of federal investments in support of underserved 
students. 

The implementation of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for LEAs to innovate with their federally-
funded programs and align them with the priority goals they are realizing under the state’s Local Control 
Funding Formula (LCFF).  

LCFF provides LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the needs of students in 
order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The LCAP planning process supports 
continuous cycles of action, reflection, and improvement.  

Please respond to the prompts below, and in the pages that follow, to describe the LEA’s plan for making 
the best use of federal ESEA resources in alignment with other federal, state, and local programs as 
described in the LEA’s LCAP. 

279



 

Strategy 
 
Explain the LEA’s strategy for using federal funds to supplement and enhance local priorities or initiatives funded with 
state funds, as reflected in the LEA’s LCAP. This shall include describing the rationale/evidence for the selected use(s) of 
federal funds within the context of the LEA’s broader strategy reflected in the LCAP. 
 
The Kings County Office of Education has worked to align goals, expected outcomes, actions, and funds to support 
improving the performance and growth of its students. We have three (3) district LCAP Goals. They are: 

• Goal 1: Focus on student basic needs for engagement and maintain high expectations for student 
achievement. 

State Priorities: Priority 1: Basic; Priority 2: State Standards; Priority 4: Pupil Achievement; Priority 5: Pupil Engagement; 
Priority 7: Course Access; Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes 

• Goal 2: Provide a positive, safe, secure, and engaging learning environment that supports the social-emotional 
and mental health issues of our students. Strengthen parent engagement in the learning, rehabilitation, and 
success of students. 

State Priorities: Priority 3: Parental Involvement & Priority 6: School Climate 
• Goal 3: Coordinate high-quality educational programs and services for Kings County Foster & Expelled youth 

State Priorities: Priority 9: Expelled Pupils & Priority 10: Foster Youth  
We aligned district goals, state priorities, and associated metrics to federally funded actions. This connection has 
facilitated the inclusion of funds into our local planning process. We included all federally funded actions in the 
connected goal. We also aligned associated metrics to evaluate the effectiveness of actions on student outcomes and 
future planning. We are able to clearly articulate how supplemental programs support the district's broader strategy. Our 
county office was determined to be eligible for Differentiated Assistance (DA) during the 2019-20 academic year in the 
areas of college/career readiness, chronic absenteeism, graduation rates, and suspension rates for all students. We 
have been unable to move out of DA due to conditions brought about by the Pandemic. We continue to use 
improvement science to complete local and state data analysis, root cause analysis, systems mapping, educational 
partner input, driver diagrams, and PDSA plans. We completed a fiscal analysis to ensure that our federal funds will be 
targeted toward meeting the determined areas of need.  
 
 
 

 
Alignment 
 
Describe the efforts that the LEA will take to align use of federal funds with activities funded by state and local funds and, 
as applicable, across different federal grant programs. 
 

280



We have two school sites. Our special education school, Shelly Baird, has a main campus, and several satellite 
classrooms. The satellite classes are located throughout the county on school district campuses. Title funding for Shelly 
Baird is monitored through the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) process and reviewed by the School Site 
Council (SSC) for effectiveness. 
We also have one court school, J.C. Montgomery (JCM). During the 2021-22 school year, the school staff worked 
alongside educational partners to review our WASC self-study. The self-study was an internal reflection that included 
programmatic components, systems reviews, and an analysis of data. We had an onsite WASC accreditation visit that 
reviewed the components we included in our plan. This strategic plan includes expected outcomes and actions that will 
be utilized to achieve better outcomes for students. Title funding for J.C. Montgomery is monitored through the Local 
Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) process and reviewed by the School Site Council (SSC) for effectiveness. 
Each year we review the services and programs offered to students that are supported with federal funds. During this 
process, we plan federal funds to support the areas of identified need. 
1) We will apply for Title I Part A funds to support our school-wide academic programs. These funds are used to support 
instruction for the implementation of challenging academic standards. 
2) We will apply for Title II Part A funds to be used to support professional development for both schools. Our special 
education program uses their portion to support new teacher induction programs. The juvenile court school will use these 
funds to support professional development for teaching staff and the Transition Specialist. The 2022-23 focus 
professional development areas for JCM will be allocated for Trauma Informed training. 
3) We will also apply for Title I Part D (Neglected & Delinquent) federal funds to support students enrolled in our juvenile 
court school. Title I Part D is being used to support student transitions, professional development, county co-operative 
support services, and family engagement activities. 
All actions and services are included in our SPSA or district LCAP and are evaluated annually. This alignment between 
state, local, and federal funds is evident by the coordination of associated activities. 
 
 
 

 
 
ESSA Provisions Addressed Within the LCAP 
 
Within the LCAP an LEA is required to describe its goals, and the specific actions to achieve those goals, for each of the 
LCFF state priorities. In an approvable LCAP it will be apparent from the descriptions of the goals, actions, and services 
how an LEA is acting to address the following ESSA provisions through the aligned LCFF state priorities and/or the state 
accountability system. 
 
TITLE I, PART A 
 
Monitoring Student Progress Towards Meeting Challenging State Academic Standards 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

1112(b)(1) (A–D) 1, 2, 4, 7, 8 (as applicable) 
 
Describe how the LEA will monitor students’ progress in meeting the challenging state academic standards by: 
 

(A) developing and implementing a well-rounded program of instruction to meet the academic needs of all 
students; 

(B) identifying students who may be at risk for academic failure; 
(C) providing additional educational assistance to individual students the LEA or school determines need help in 

meeting the challenging State academic standards; and 
(D) identifying and implementing instructional and other strategies intended to strengthen academic programs and 

improve school conditions for student learning. 
 
Overuse in Discipline Practices that Remove Students from the Classroom 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

1112(b)(11) 6 (as applicable) 
 

281



Describe how the LEA will support efforts to reduce the overuse of discipline practices that remove students from the 
classroom, which may include identifying and supporting schools with high rates of discipline, disaggregated by each of 
the student groups, as defined in Section 1111(c)(2). 
 
Career Technical and Work-based Opportunities 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

1112(b)(12)(A–B) 2, 4, 7 (as applicable) 
 
If determined appropriate by the LEA, describe how such agency will support programs that coordinate and integrate: 
 

(A) academic and career and technical education content through coordinated instructional strategies, that may 
incorporate experiential learning opportunities and promote skills attainment important to in-demand 
occupations or industries in the State; and 

(B) work-based learning opportunities that provide students in-depth interaction with industry professionals and, if 
appropriate, academic credit. 

 

282



 
TITLE II, PART A 
 
Title II, Part A Activities 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

2102(b)(2)(A) 1, 2, 4 (as applicable) 
 
Provide a description of the activities to be carried out by the LEA under this Section and how these activities will be 
aligned with challenging State academic standards. 
 
 

283



 
ESSA Provisions Addressed in the Consolidated Application and Reporting System 
 
An LEA addresses the following ESSA provision as part of completing annual reporting through the Consolidated 
Application and Reporting System (CARS). 
 
TITLE I, PART A 
 
Poverty Criteria 
 

ESSA SECTION(S) STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

1112(b)(4) N/A 
 
Describe the poverty criteria that will be used to select school attendance areas under Section 1113. 
According to the, Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA), local educational agencies (LEAs) shall allocate Title I, Part A 
funds to eligible school attendance areas or eligible schools on the basis of the total number of students from low-income 
families (ESSA sections 1113[a][1] and [c][1]). Kings County Office of Education operates a Juvenile Court School (JCM) 
and Special Education School (Shelly Baird). As incarcerated students at JCM become wards of the court, they are 
considered to be 100% low-income. At Shelly Baird, 66.3% of students were deemed eligible for Free or Reduced Lunch 
in the 2021-22 school year. One exception under ESSA Section 1113 states, LEAs with less than 1,000 students are 
exempt from ESSA Section 1113[a] (ESSA Section 1113[a][6]). 
 
 
 
 

284



 
ESSA Provisions Not Addressed in the LCAP  
 
For the majority of LEAs the ESSA provisions on the following pages do not align with state priorities. Each provision 
for each program provided on the following pages must be addressed, unless the provision is not applicable to 
the LEA. In addressing these provisions, LEAs must provide a narrative that addresses the provision within this 
addendum. 
 
As previously stated, the CDE emphasizes that the LCAP Federal Addendum should not drive LCAP development. ESSA 
funds are supplemental to state funds, just as the LCAP Federal Addendum supplements your LCAP. LEAs are 
encouraged to integrate their ESSA funds into their LCAP development as much as possible to promote strategic planning 
of all resources; however, this is not a requirement. In reviewing the LCAP Federal Addendum, staff will evaluate the 
LEA’s responses to the ESSA plan provisions. There is no standard length for the responses. LEAs will be asked to clarify 
insufficient responses during the review process. 
 
TITLE I, PART A 
 
Educator Equity 
ESSA SECTION 1112(b)(2) 
 
Describe how the LEA will identify and address, as required under State plans as described in Section 1111(g)(1)(B), any 
disparities that result in low-income students and minority students being taught at higher rates than other students by 
ineffective, inexperienced, or out-of-field teachers. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 

285



The Kings County Office of Education operates 2 self-contained sites. One site services our incarcerated court school 
students. We will have 3 classroom teachers rotate students for equal amounts of time. Our other self-contained site 
services K-12 moderate-severe special education students and students who are deemed emotionally disturbed. These 
students are grouped by grade level range, special need, and Individualized Education Program (IEP) team placement. 
Most clustered classes have only 1 class per grade level span or focus. In addition, students are placed in a satellite 
class if the IEP team determines that exposure to general education peers is beneficial to the student. By law, we are 
required to place students at a satellite that is closest to their home address. Generally, the IEP team places more 
severe needs students on the main campus. We have a wide range of instructional and specialized support staff that are 
designated to work with students in this program. The format of the classes, low numbers of like classrooms, student 
needs, and laws create complications in comparisons. We collect and analyze educator data to identify disparities. There 
are no low-income or minority students at either site being taught at higher rates by ineffective, misassigned, out-of-field, 
or inexperienced teachers. Students cannot be moved between the court school, special education main campus, or 
satellites interchangeably. In theory, we are operating two self-contained sites each being similar to a single school 
district. 
Kings County Office of Education serves two distinct populations of students, serving moderate-severe special education 
students. We also have a court school, J. C. Montgomery School, serving incarcerated youth.  We continue to work to 
provide our students with appropriately assigned and credentialed teachers.  We identify ineffective, out-of-field, and 
inexperienced teachers by coordinating with our county office credential analyst staff.  Ineffective teachers have been 
defined as an individual whose assignment is legally authorized by an emergency permit that does not require 
possession of a full teaching license; OR a teacher who holds a teaching credential but does not possess a permit or 
authorization that temporarily allows them to teach outside their credentialed area (misassigned); OR an individual who 
holds no credential, permit, or authorization to teach in California. Under this definition, teachers with the following limited 
emergency permits would be considered ineffective: Provisional Internship Permits, Short-Term Staff Permits, Variable 
Term Waivers, or Substitute permits or Teaching Permits for Statutory Leave (TSPL) holders serving as the teacher of 
record. The second educator equity category is out-of-field teachers. This is defined as a credentialed who has not yet 
demonstrated subject matter competence in the subject area(s) or for the student population to which he or she is 
assigned. Under this definition, the following limited permits are considered out-of-field: General Education Limited 
Assignment Permit (GELAP), Special Education Limited Assignment Permit (SELAP), Short-Term Waivers, Emergency 
English Learner, or Bilingual Authorization Permits or Local Assignment Options. Lastly, an Inexperienced Teacher is 
defined as a teacher who has two or fewer years of teaching experience. Staff information is entered into CalPads by our 
internal staff and monitored by the county office of education.  We also use the California Commission on Teacher 
Credentialing (CTC) to monitor deadlines for staff credentials. The associated state priority (basic services) and metrics 
are included in our LCAP Goal 1: Focus on student basic needs for engagement and maintain high expectations for 
student achievement. We collect and report this data annually in our School Accountability Report Cards (SARCs).  
These reports are shared with our community during board meetings and School Site Council meetings. 
We work to address these metrics in a supportive way.  If we were to have any misassigned or out-of-field teachers, we 
would work with the county office support staff and the teacher to identify what courses need to be taken to fulfill the 
requirements needed.  Inexperienced teachers with two or fewer years of experience are enrolled in our induction 
program and provided a mentor. This mentor teacher supports our participating new teachers as they progress through 
the induction program.  We contract with our county office of education for our New Teacher Induction (NTI) program to 
support first and second-year teachers.  We ensure that all inexperienced teachers are provided with a mentor that 
works with them to plan, deliver, and reflect on instruction. Ineffective teachers will also be provided a district mentor to 
support planning observational coaching and teaching resources.  Ineffective, out-of-field, and inexperienced teachers 
are also provided with a minimum of one informal and one formal evaluation per school year by administrative staff.  
These teachers are also supported by content specialists within the curriculum and instructional program. Ongoing 
progress is monitored of each identified teacher. Overall progress for the group is reported to our board and educational 
partner groups and committees. We publicly report this in our LCAP Goal 1 and Local Indicator report. 
 
 
 

 
Parent and Family Engagement 
ESSA SECTIONS 1112(B)(3) AND 1112(B)(7) 
 
Describe how the LEA will carry out its responsibility under Section 1111(d).  
 

286



Involvement of parents, community representatives, classroom teachers, other school personnel, and secondary 
students' input is garnered using our stakeholder engagement processes. Consolidated application programs are 
reviewed at least annually during School Site Council Meetings. The School Site Council will hold meetings quarterly 
where attendees will have the opportunity to provide SPSA/LCAP  input in person or via Zoom. English Learner 
representative feedback will be solicited during the School Site Council meetings and be used to inform the SPSA/LCAP, 
as well. Stakeholder input will be considered as we collaboratively review the most recent state and local data and 
identify the potential issues regarding equitable access. We also administer a minimum of one survey per year to 
stakeholders, which are utilized to inform the planning, implementation, and evaluation of programs and services 
provided. We also describe these processes within our SPSA, LCAP Federal Addendum, LCAP in the Spring, and 
school and district engagement policies. The survey will be provided electronically to staff and students. Surveys in 
English and Spanish for parents will also be mailed home, upon request. Reminders will be sent via Blackboard and 
social media. Follow-up calls will be made to parents to solicit further input verbally. Community input will be solicited 
during a public hearing. Bargaining units meet in person to provide input. Kings County Office of Education district 
administration, the site Principal, and the Assistant Superintendent of Special Education collaborate virtually and in 
person. Ongoing information will be collected to inform the Operations Written Report. Kings County Office of Education 
believes the active partnership built between parents, students, and staff while working together sets the stage and 
encourages students to achieve more. 
 
 

 
Describe the strategy the LEA will use to implement effective parent and family engagement under Section 1116. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
The LEA provides support through Kings County Office of Education in the form of co-op support in the form of a 
Strategic Planning consultant to facilitate the coordination, technical assistance, and other support necessary to assist 
and build the capacity of all participating schools within the LEA in planning and implementing effective parent and family 
involvement activities to improve student academic achievement and school performance. This meaningful partnership 
between the county office and each site provides for the expertise in effectively engaging parents and family members in 
education. 
J.C. Montgomery and Shelly Baird will provide  surveys annually  to parents, students, and staff. The survey will be 
provided electronically to staff and students. Surveys in English and Spanish for parents will be mailed home, upon 
request. Reminders will be sent via Blackboard and social media. Follow-up calls will be made to parents to solicit further 
input. Community input will be collected during a public hearing. Bargaining units meet in-person to provide input. Kings 
County Office of Education district administration, the site Principal, and the Assistant Superintendent of Special 
Education collaborate virtually and in-person. Ongoing information will be collected to inform the Operations Written 
Report. The school site council will hold meetings where attendees will have the opportunity to provide input in-person or 
via Zoom. English Learner Representative feedback will be obtained during the school site council meeting. Stakeholder 
input will be considered as we collaboratively review the most recent state and local data and identify the potential issues 
regarding equitable access. 
 
 
 

 
 
Schoolwide Programs, Targeted Support Programs, and Programs for Neglected or Delinquent 
Children 
ESSA SECTIONS 1112(b)(5) and 1112(b)(9) 
 
Describe, in general, the nature of the programs to be conducted by the LEA’s schools under sections 1114 and 1115 
and, where appropriate, educational services outside such schools for children living in local institutions for neglected or 
delinquent children, and for neglected and delinquent children in community day school programs. 

287



Kings County Office of Education (COE) follows a set process for identifying eligible neglected or delinquent children. 
Annually, we are provided a list of agencies providing services to neglected and delinquent students within our county. 
County offices do not have traditional district boundaries.  Based on this information, we make contact with these 
agencies and report this information directly to CDE. Should our COE have a specific group home connected to our court 
school or special education program, we would search our information system for students who listed the group home 
address as their home address. For court school students, our Transition Specialist works closely with home districts as 
students leave our court school program. If students are entering a non-title I school, we will work with districts to ensure 
students are receiving program services that are similar in nature to the Title I services provided at their other sites. We 
have very few schools in the county that are not school-wide Title I. The court school program participates in Title I N/D. 
We have worked to align Title I Part A and D services to provide coordinated support. We sometimes have students 
leave our court school, and re-enter our moderate-severe special education school. Staff at both school sites work 
closely to ensure that these students receive services offered in that school-wide Title I program.  We work to ensure 
that we are gathering baseline data for students leaving our schools and entering non-title I schools. This information is 
gathered to determine the set-aside funds to support students receiving comparable services. If students are attending a 
Title 1 funded school, they already receive comparable Title 1 service per the funding provided to the school. If they 
attend a non-Title I-funded school, the district will use the set-aside funds to provide comparable services. Neglected or 
delinquent: Our court school Title I N/D program provides a full-time Transition Specialist to support court-to-home 
school transitions. The Specialist will meet regularly with students, probation, teachers, administrators, and home district 
staff. 
 
 

 
Describe how teachers and school leaders, in consultation with parents, administrators, paraprofessionals, and 
specialized instructional support personnel, in schools operating a targeted assistance school program under Section 
1115, will identify the eligible children most in need of services under this part. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
If we were operating a targeted assistance school program, we would set aside funds to support eligible students. 
Students identified in this process will receive comparable services that are aligned with the nature of our Title I program. 
The following description includes services that align with the nature of our school-wide program. If a student were to 
attend a non-title I program, we would provide them with instructional aide academic support, teacher professional 
development, coaching and modeling, staff instructional support, and literacy and math intervention. We would prioritize 
at-promise students based on identified needs. Our school district staff would coordinate and monitor services. School 
site staff would be responsible for delivering and implementing services with the support of the district. Annually, metrics 
are evaluated for effectiveness within the school plan. Data such as state and local assessments, surveys, suspension 
rates, English Learner language acquisition data, and other LCAP or SPSA-aligned metrics are used. 
 
 

 
Homeless Children and Youth Services 
ESSA SECTION 1112(b)(6) 
 
Describe the services the LEA will provide homeless children and youths, including services provided with funds reserved 
under Section 1113(c)(3)(A), to support the enrollment, attendance, and success of homeless children and youths, in 
coordination with the services the LEA is providing under the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 United States 
Code 11301 et seq.). 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 

288



The Kings County Office of Education has an updated homeless board policy that addresses the McKinney-Vento 
Homeless Assistance Act. Our foundational services department staff operates the County Services Education for 
Homeless Children and Youth Grant. The support provides ongoing professional development for districts and internal 
county office schools. We work closely with our internal site Homeless Liaisons to identify staff professional development 
needs, analyze and collect accurate data, and support students in need. The Assistant Superintendent of Educational 
Services, Assistant Superintendent of Special Education, Principal of J.C. Montgomery, Program Director of Special 
Education, and Coordinator of State and Federal programs coordinate co-op services for our internal site. We work 
collaboratively to identify needs at our schools using data, site staff input, and student needs. Annually, this process is 
used to set aside funds for students experiencing homelessness. We plan to use the set-aside funds to support students 
with food baskets before each period of school break at our special education school. This will include the day before 
fall, winter, and spring breaks. Each identified student will receive food to help during these periods when the school may 
not not be providing breakfast and lunch services. Students at our court school live at the facility. They are provided 
food, counseling, health, and clothing during their period of incarceration. We are working alongside probation staff to 
monitor student release dates. Our Principal or Transition Specialist will meet with students individually once the court 
has decided to release them. We will be garnering student needs for school supplies or items of clothing to assist with 
their transition to their home district.  Upon enrollment at our court school, the Principal or Transition Specialist assists 
office staff with the review of student enrollment forms. At our special education school, the Principal assists office staff 
with the review of student enrollment forms. Students reported as homeless during initial enrollment are immediately 
enrolled in both schools. There is no need for transportation at our court school. For special education, we normally 
provide door-to-door transportation for students. Some families prefer to bring students. Students are placed at the court 
school by court order, so there is no school of origin decision within the facility. Students at our special education school 
are placed by IEP. Students are placed based on their best interests according to their academic and behavioral needs. 
Attendance of students experiencing homelessness is monitored using regular profile assessment monitoring, daily 
collections of goal-related data, and embedded assessments within curriculum programs. This data is reviewed by 
individual teachers, at grade level team meetings, and during IEP meetings. We provide individualized support as 
academic, social, emotional, or behavioral interventions as needed. Our court school is in session for 231 instructional 
days. Our special education school offers an extended yeat program for students. In totality, these programs assist 
students in filling identified instructional gaps. 
 
 
 
Student Transitions 
ESSA SECTIONS 1112(b)(8), 1112(b)(10), and 1112(b)(10) (A–B) 
 
Describe, if applicable, how the LEA will support, coordinate, and integrate services provided under this part with early 
childhood education programs at the LEA or individual school level, including plans for the transition of participants in 
such programs to local elementary school programs. 
The Kings County Office of Education works to facilitate effective transitions for students. Our special education program 
provides services for our early childhood preschool students transitioning to elementary school. At our special education 
site, we transition students between pre-school and TK/K. Students are reassessed to ensure we are using current data. 
We invite the district of residence representative to observe how the student is functioning within our preschool 
classroom. A transition meeting is held to discuss student placement. Enrollment process is discussed with parents at 
the transition meeting. Parents are invited to visit a TK/K classrooms, and are invited to all welcome back events. District 
events often include meet and greets and TK/K Round-ups. Our special education teachers meet students right before 
the start of the school year. 
Our juvenile court school, J.C. Montgomery, does not service preschool students. We seldom have students in any 
elementary grades. If we did enroll an elementary student, we would place them according to their current grade level 
within a mixed-grade level cohort. Placements in cohorts are determined by the probation department, and depend on 
case status. Our Transition Specialist would communicate with parents, the home district, and probation to determine 
additional needs. We would work with the home district to support curriculum needs to align to elementary course work. 
We hold regular intake meetings during periods of enrollment to progress monitor student growth. Once a student is 
released, our Transition Specialist works with parents and the home district to ensure notification and support enrollment 
needs. 
 
 
 

 
Describe, if applicable, how the LEA will implement strategies to facilitate effective transitions for students from middle 
grades to high school and from high school to postsecondary education including: 

(A) coordination with institutions of higher education, employers, and other local partners; and 

289



(B) increased student access to early college high school or dual or concurrent enrollment opportunities, or career 
counseling to identify student interests and skills. 

 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Kings County Office of Education also works to facilitate effective transitions between middle school to high school and 
high school to postsecondary institutions. Our special education school works closely with our general education districts 
to integrate students as often as possible. Students integrate into recess, lunch periods, and other appropriate school-
wide activities with their general education peers. As the need arises, all students are provided tours of the middle 
school. We also provide campus photos and relay social stories to students. At this time, we also revisit and revise 
behavior plans as needed. Our special education program utilizes the same curriculum platforms between elementary 
and middle school to support learning continuity. We work very closely with home districts as we transition students from 
middle school to high school. We provide classroom and campus tours for students entering their home district in high 
school. Before school starts, the high school counselor and our staff hold a transition meeting to facilitate a smooth 
transition and consider student needs. Some of our students are on a diploma track and have transition goals from high 
school to postsecondary. These are worked on weekly and are focused on creating resumes, interviewing skills, and 
researching college and career interests. As graduation nears, they take tours of local community colleges. We support 
the completion of college applications, academic advisory meetings, and their Free Application for Federal Student Aid 
(FAFSA). Their IEP will follow them to support accommodations needed for postsecondary success. We hold exit 
meetings for students on the certificate track with parents and CVRC workers. This team collaborates to determine the 
best placement. Students tour programs throughout the year, and transitioning to the selected program is a year-long 
focus. We support all students in taking classes at our local community colleges and assist with all applications. 
J.C. Montgomery sometimes enrolls middle school students.  Middle and high school students are placed according to 
their current grade level within a mixed-grade level cohort. Placements in cohorts are determined by the probation 
department and depend on case status. Our Transition Specialist communicates with parents, the home district, and 
probation to determine additional needs. Due to the needs of our student population, the digital curriculum platforms 
would be used to support students in middle school. We hold regular intake meetings during periods of enrollment to 
progress monitor student growth. Once a student is released, our Transition Specialist works with parents and the home 
district to ensure notification and support enrollment needs. The Transition Specialist meets with students and parents if 
students transition between middle school and high school while in our program. Students are enrolled in courses as 
they align to graduation requirements, monitored using the intake process, and documented using transcripts. We are 
working to analyze CTE's Career Technical Education (CTE) needs to provide additional electives. We are also using a 
digital platform to support broader course offerings. Our Transition Specialist supports students in college applications 
and FAFSA completion. If students are within 30 credits of graduation, dual enrollment with our local community college 
is offered. In addition, graduated students in our facility are offered online college courses. 
 
 
 

 
Additional Information Regarding Use of Funds Under this Part 
ESSA SECTION 1112(b)(13) (A–B) 
 
Provide any other information on how the LEA proposes to use funds to meet the purposes of this part, and that the 
LEA determines appropriate to provide, which may include how the LEA will: 
 

(A) assist schools in identifying and serving gifted and talented students; and 
(B) assist schools in developing effective school library programs to provide students an opportunity to develop 

digital literacy skills and improve academic achievement. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
The Kings County Office of Education utilizes Title I funds at each school site. Title I Part A is being used to support the 
areas of ELA, Math, engagement, and school climate.  Our special education school is providing a Teacher on Special 
Assignment (TOSA) to assist teachers with instructional modeling, lesson design, coaching, and planning to support the 
involvement of educational student outcomes.  Our court school is utilizing their apportionment to provide a Transition 
Specialist to assistist with coordinating programs for students at JCM. These programs are differentiated for students to 
support areas of instructional needs.  Each site has chosen to focus on actions developed with stakeholders using a site 
needs assessment.  Funds are not allocated to service gifted and talented students or school library programs. 
 
 

290



 

291



 
TITLE I, PART D 
 
Description of Program 
ESSA SECTION 1423(1) 
 
Provide a description of the program to be assisted [by Title I, Part D]. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
The Kings County Office of Education Title I Neglected and Delinquent (N & D) Program services incarcerated students 
at J.C. Montgomery School.  Typically, we serve between 90-110 students per year.  Students are predominantly 9-12 
high school age students. We sometimes have middle school students and occasionally elementary students.  Students 
come to us having been incarcerated due to failure to successfully abide by the law.  Students are often challenged with 
credit deficiency, disengagement from school, local community, poverty, drug use/abuse, mental health issues, struggle 
with both social and academic skills, display a mindset of academic failure, lack of self-discipline and/or esteem, and are 
disinterested in their educational success.  Consequently, students often have general hopelessness regarding their 
futures.  Our program is often a student’s “last chance” at successfully engaging in education and securing choices for 
life as productive community citizens.  Kings County is a rural agricultural community, with some cities spread far apart.  
There is limited access to centralized services.  Further, it is home to three (3) state prison institutions.  There are 
additional struggles with gang violence, as well as some of the highest poverty, unemployment, and teenage pregnancy 
rates in the region.  Our students bring to us all of the commensurate challenges that the aforementioned details and 
demographics bring, so our students remain among the highest “at-risk” students within the county.  J.C. Montgomery 
School, which is supported by Title I program, was developed with an understanding and appreciation of the unique 
challenges our students face, as well as the limited and transient nature of their time enrolled in our programs. 
During the 2022-23 school year, N & D funds will be spent to support a  Transition Specialist.  This position coordinates 
student entrance and exit from the Court school program in the form of guidance, support, and resources.  The 
Transition Specialist works collaboratively during transition meetings with County Probation Department assigned to the 
Juvenile Services Center, Mental Health Department, Human Resources Staff, Behavioral Health, Homeless, Foster 
Youth Staff, and parents.   We work to ensure that students have ongoing services that are deemed necessary and 
beneficial.  The Transition Specialist meets with each student exiting the juvenile institution to establish learning goals for 
district enrollment, employment, and post-secondary education.  Academic, social-emotional, and behavioral support is 
provided for students, as well as crisis counseling, as needed.  One of the requirements for the Transition Specialist is to 
hold or be eligible to apply for a Pupil Personnel Services Credentials as a School Psychologist or School Counselor.  
Appropriate post-release follow-ups with released or transferred minors are provided for students as they enter other 
educational settings to prevent at-promise youth from dropping out of school.  This position continues to work with public 
and private agencies to facilitate the individual minor’s educational and vocational plans in addition to wrap-around 
services.  This position is vital to assist our student population. 
We also support other areas of identified need with this program. Students enter and exit on an ongoing basis, at varying 
grade levels, and with individual academic needs.  We need to provide custom plans for students to ensure seamless 
transitions in and out of our instructional program.  We have also started a supplemental online-based intensive literacy 
program to support identified students with targeted lessons.  Classroom teachers monitor student progress and offer 
additional support as needed. Co-op support is provided for the consolidated application reporting, online, onsite federal 
reviews, training, and professional development for Consolidated Application (ConApp) programs, technical assistance 
development, alignment of school plans, preparation, updating of the federal addendum, and financial reporting 
requirements for federal programs.  An MOU is established each school year for 10% of the allocation to provide 
ongoing technical assistance and support. 
 
 
 

 
Formal Agreements 
ESSA SECTION 1423(2) 
 
Provide a description of formal agreements, regarding the program to be assisted, between the LEA and correctional 
facilities and alternative school programs serving children and youth involved with the juvenile justice system, including 
such facilities operated by the Secretary of the Interior and Indian tribes. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 

292



The Kings County Office of Education's Alternative Education program worked with the probation department to finalize 
an MOU and is reviewed annually. It includes the five guiding principles for providing high-quality education in the 
juvenile justice system to secure settings that were jointly published by the US Department of Education and US 
Department of Justice in 2014. The five guiding principles are: Safe, healthy facility-wide climate that prioritizes 
educational needs for all students; necessary funding to support the educational needs of students; recruitment, 
employment, and retention of qualified educational staff; rigorous and relevant curricular aligned to state academic and 
career and technical education standards to promote college and career readiness; and utilize formal processes and 
procedures that includes statutes, MOUs, and practices. The MOU was created to meet AB 2276, which requires the 
county office of education and county probation departments to have a joint transition planning policy that includes 
collaboration with relevant local educational agencies relating to pupils who are being released from juvenile court 
schools. The agreement includes a shared obligation for supporting students in continuing their education once released 
from juvenile detention. The County Office of Education agrees to provide student information, transition support, 
relevant academic information, coordination, and communication with school districts within Kings County, and parent 
information and support regarding re-enrollment in public schools prior to and upon release from our court school. 
Probation staff responsibilities include providing student information that includes anticipated release dates, actual 
release dates, and school enrollment follow-up. We are working together to ensure that we assist our students in 
continuing their education uninterrupted. 
 
 
 
Comparable Education Program 
ESSA SECTION 1423(3) 
 
As appropriate, provide a description of how participating schools will coordinate with facilities working with delinquent 
children and youth to ensure that such children and youth are participating in an education program comparable to one 
operating in the local school such youth would attend. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Our court school services delinquent children and youth and provides an instructional program that includes all required 
core content areas. We have compiled a list of all of our district graduation requirements and upon entry, we complete a 
transcript evaluation for each student. These requirements are used as we enroll students in proper courses, so they 
may work to meet graduation requirements. We also offer credit recovery for those students that are credit deficient. Our 
program is Western Association of Schools and Colleges (WASC) accredited. This process included a WASC review of 
our instructional program. This assists students in successfully transferring credits gained during their enrollment in our 
program. We work with staff to provide standards-aligned professional development that includes coaching, modeling, 
and feedback. Instructional staff must submit weekly lesson plans that indicate the standards taught and the integrated 
English Language Development (ELD) strategies to be used. We have developed a tool that includes differentiated 
instructional strategies and student engagement that is used to provide instructional feedback. Monthly, Professional 
Learning Communities (PLCs) work to improve instruction as they reflect on student performance data. Our program 
staff follows up with students and families after release to collect data on credits earned, high school graduation, 
employment status, and post-secondary enrollment our program continues to strive to align to local district programs and 
ensure students receive high-quality instruction. Our Transition Specialist evaluates each student's transcripts to ensure 
they are enrolled in classes that are similar to those enrolled in their home district. We also track progress to ensure that 
students are offered intervention courses or credit recovery, as needed. We work with districts within the county on 
identifying the components of their school-wide or targeted assistance programs to ensure that the nature of our program 
offerings is comparable. 
 
 

 
Successful Transitions 
ESSA SECTION 1423(4) 
 
Provide a description of the program operated by participating schools to facilitate the successful transition of children and 
youth returning from correctional facilities and, as appropriate, the types of services that such schools will provide such 
children and youth and other at-risk children and youth. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 

293



We communicate with our schools to facilitate successful school transitions. The school secretary provides information to 
each school upon student enrollment and release. Once students are released, our Transition Specialist works with 
district counselors and staff to ensure they are provided with updated transcripts upon release to create a smoother 
educational transition for students. These transcripts are used for student placement, class assignments, graduation 
requirements, and the determination of additional student supports as offered under the participating school programs. 
Since some of our students qualify for a lesser graduation requirement, we also provide additional information pertaining 
to the student's rights per AB 2306. We also ensure that students and families are aware of their eligibility.  Our school 
Principal also participates in the county state and federal program director meetings where federal program 
requirements, district offerings, and information is presented and discussed. Each district also sends a representative. 
 
 

 
Educational Needs 
ESSA SECTION 1423(5) 
 
Provide a description of the characteristics (including learning difficulties, substance abuse problems, and other special 
needs) of the children and youth who will be returning from correctional facilities and, as appropriate, other at-risk children 
and youth expected to be served by the program, and a description of how the school will coordinate existing educational 
programs to meet the unique educational needs of such children and youth. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Our student population is weighted more heavily with high-needs student groups, where 100% of our students are low-
income. Many of our students are affiliated with gangs. We have also had a higher rate of students convicted or detained 
for adult crimes. This composition requires an intensive level of support for all academic, social-emotional, and 
behavioral needs. Our educational program includes a Resource Specialist Teacher that works with students with 
special needs. This support includes individual pull-out and classroom push-in support. We have components for 
students with learning difficulties that require additional intervention. iReady, an intervention program, is used to 
establish baselines and determine growth for ELA and Math. We have decided to increase our math intervention 
program for identified students. Our Transition Specialist and teaching staff work with students' home schools to facilitate 
enrollment and provide pertinent educational reports. We hold an exit transition meeting where all information is shared 
with district staff. We also follow up with students 90 days after enrollment. 
The facility staff works with students to ensure that students are released with necessary medication, medical referrals, 
family service referrals, and social service contacts. For example, many families need their medical or financial support 
services re-instated. Students are provided with substance abuse counseling services while in our program. All forms, 
assessments, records, and appointments are confirmed prior to student release. If it is determined that students are in 
need of anger management during their incarceration, they are provided with family, group, and individual counseling 
services. These programs are continued upon release. 
 
 
 

 
Social, Health, and Other Services 
ESSA SECTION 1423(6) 
 
As appropriate, provide a description of how schools will coordinate with existing social, health, and other services to meet 
the needs of students returning from correctional facilities, at-risk children or youth, and other participating children or 
youth, including prenatal health care and nutrition services related to the health of the parent and the child or youth, 
parenting and child development classes, child care, targeted reentry and outreach programs, referrals to community 
resources, and scheduling flexibility. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 

294



We hold a transition meeting for each student as they exit our programs. Our Transition Specialist, teaching staff, home 
district staff, probation staff, behavioral health staff, social-services staff, parents, and students are included. Referrals 
for community resources related to all areas of need are provided. Students leave the facility with medication, confirmed 
appointments, a review of court-ordered participation requirements, and additional options for support are discussed. An 
individualized student plan is created. These resources also include parenting information for teen parents and prenatal 
information for pregnant students. Probation officers review the requirements for post-release monitoring. This staff also 
goes to the home school after enrollment to discuss provisions and continues to follow up on progress. Our Transition 
Specialist supports communication between schools as needed. 
 
 

 
Postsecondary and Workforce Partnerships 
ESSA SECTION 1423(7) 
 
As appropriate, provide a description of any partnerships with institutions of higher education or local businesses to 
facilitate postsecondary and workforce success for children and youth returning from correctional facilities, such as 
through participation in credit-bearing coursework while in secondary school, enrollment in postsecondary education, 
participation in career and technical education programming, and mentoring services for participating students. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Our school staff work with local post-secondary partners to support students' continuing education. We assist all seniors 
in completing the FAFSA. We also facilitate the completion of the Math and ELA placement test for students interested in 
attending our local community college. We work with all students to complete any required forms and applications. Our 
local community college presents on program offerings such as: HVAC Repair, Culinary Arts, Bakery, EMT, and 
Welding. Our local state university, Fresno State, presents to parents regarding community college transfers. We will 
continue to work with students to complete the FAFSA to apply for available financial aide. Our Transition Specialist 
works directly with students to enroll and select college courses. We continue to work with post-secondary partners as 
students complete higher education.  In conjunction with a CTE grant that was recently awarded, the Principal will work 
closely with our Director of Student Services to continue to offer CTE courses and build sustainable CTE pathways. 
 
 

 
Parent and Family Involvement 
ESSA SECTION 1423(8) 
 
Provide a description of formal agreements, regarding the program to be assisted, between the 
 

(A) LEA; and  
(B) correctional facilities and alternative school programs serving children and youth involved with the juvenile justice 

system, including such facilities operated by the Secretary of the Interior and Indian tribes. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Kings County Office of Education (KCOE) has an existing MOU between the office and the correctional facilities. KCOE 
has a designated parent contact and provides parents with information and rights regarding school re-enrollment. We 
also participated in a multi-agency transition meeting, which includes parents. Our MOU includes language that requires 
probation staff to follow up with students and parents if KCOE notifies them the student has not enrolled in school. We 
also are given access to parents on visiting days, which is used to administer parent surveys. These surveys are used to 
provide written input into our educational program, our local indicator report, and district LCAP outcome evaluations. 
Although we do not have a formal agreement, we work cooperatively with the local Indian tribal Council and the Santa 
Rosa Department of Education. This cooperation includes sharing educational updates with staff. 
 
 
 
Program Coordination 
ESSA SECTION 1423(9–10) 
 
Provide a description of how the program under this subpart will be coordinated with other Federal, State, and local 
programs, such as programs under title I of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act and career and technical 
education programs serving at-risk children and youth. 

295



 
Include how the program will be coordinated with programs operated under the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency 
Prevention Act of 1974 and other comparable programs, if applicable. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
We coordinate our programs with other state programs by aligning goals, outcomes, actions and services within our 
LCAP. County workability staff present to students on items that include job preparedness, resumes, work ethic, and 
professionalism. Mental health services are provided to students during the school day, which requires scheduling 
coordination. We also work with probation staff, so students can access counseling services, legal services, medical 
services, or other court services during the school day, as needed. Our staff participates in all safety drills that probation 
holds. We have aligned our safety plan to that of the department of corrections. We also provide school educational 
services that are included under the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act of 1974. 
 
 

 
Probation Officer Coordination 
ESSA SECTION 1423(11) 
 
As appropriate, provide a description of how schools will work with probation officers to assist in meeting the needs of 
children and youth returning from correctional facilities. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Kings County Office of Education has a current MOU with the county probation staff. This document contains detailed 
information regarding agency roles. Specifically, item 1.6 states that probation will follow up on student's upon release. 
This facilitation includes school enrollment. Item 2.7 delineates the responsibility for probation to follow up with students 
if they are not re-enrolled in school. They also monitor students while they are in the facility. We provide educational 
information to probation while students are detained that assists probation with court reporting. This information includes 
attendance, grades, and behavior. We continue to work with the county probation officers to assist in meeting the needs 
of students in our program. 
 
 

 
Individualized Education Program Awareness 
ESSA SECTION 1423(12) 
 
Provide a description of the efforts participating schools will make to ensure correctional facilities working with children 
and youth are aware of a child’s or youth’s existing individualized education program. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Kings County Office of Education coordinates IEP programs for students enrolled at JCM. We inform probation of a 
change in placement for students once enrolled. Upon enrollment, we request all student records from previous school 
districts. This record request includes any IEP documentation and psychological evaluations. We invite district staff to all 
IEPs for students with home addresses within their boundaries. Our county school is included in the county Special 
Education Local Plan Area (SELPA). This group discusses program components, and provides additional professional 
development for support staff. Our staff uses the same special education database as other districts to minimize 
disruptions to student services. We coordinate with probation to include all parents and students in IEP meetings, which 
requires advance notification and scheduling. The MOU between the county office of education and probation includes 
student information system reports to include program participation, such as IEP. Our staff continue to work to ensure 
awareness of student's individualized education program. 
 
 
 
Alternative Placements 
ESSA SECTIONS 1423(13) 
 
As appropriate, provide a description of the steps participating schools will take to find alternative placements for children 
and youth interested in continuing their education but unable to participate in a traditional public school program. 
 

296



THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
JCM staff provides information to students and parents regarding alternative education programs. These include 
program information about charter school options, which are available as independent study or online programs. We 
provide a list of these programs at each transition meeting, as students are preparing to exit. We answer any questions 
they may have. Our leadership staff discusses the importance of continuing school, earning credit toward graduation, 
and school engagement. We work to support alternative placements that meet the needs of our diverse students. 
 
 
 

297



 
TITLE II, PART A 
 
Professional Growth and Improvement 
ESSA SECTION 2102(b)(2)(B) 
 
Provide a description of the LEA’s systems of professional growth and improvement, such as induction for teachers, 
principals, or other school leaders and opportunities for building the capacity of teachers and opportunities to develop 
meaningful teacher leadership. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Kings County Office of Education has a system for professional learning to support teachers, principals, or other school 
leaders that supports a quality learning environment for all. We use a variety of data to identify needs for professional 
learning. We garner staff input via surveys, as well as discussions in staff meetings and PLCs. We also analyze student 
data, and classroom observational data to identify professional development needs. We administer an annual 
professional development survey to all staff and use the results to plan for the following year's professional development. 
This professional development plan is included in our district LCAP and shared with all stakeholders for input. This 
information includes: aligned metrics, outcomes, planned actions, and effectiveness results. They are discussed with 
School Site Council, the Board, parents, staff, students, and district leaders to garner additional ideas and feedback. We 
have focused our professional learning based on the site and program needs. Our special education school utilizes Title 
II Part A to support the induction of new teachers. They have a high number of new teachers each year. Our juvenile 
court school plans to use funds to support staff in two ways. We will be purchasing professional development materials 
for teachers to use during coaching sessions to increase the effectiveness of instructional strategies. 
Staff is provided ongoing support throughout their careers here at JCM and Shelly Baird. Beginning teachers participate 
in New Teacher Induction (NTI) through the Kings County Office of Education. Our NTI program is designed as a two-
year, individualized, job-embedded system of mentoring support and professional learning that begins in the teacher's 
first year of teaching. KCOE NTI provides a pathway for teachers seeking to clear Preliminary Multiple Subject and/or 
Single Subject credential(s) and Preliminary or Level I Education Specialist credential(s). They are also provided with a 
site mentor teacher, which supports planning, instructional delivery, and reflection. They also participate in site-specific 
PLC meetings. All instructional staff, teachers, and principals participate in scheduled professional development or 
collaboration each month. These meetings are held on early release days. This work is supported by internal district 
instructional staff, outside support providers, and county content specialists. Priorities for professional development for 
the Principal are identified via self-reflection, district leadership guidance, Superintendent recommendation, and site staff 
needs.  Topics for professional development may include content standards, technology programs, behavioral 
interventions, or having a special education focus. The Principal also participates in staff professional development 
related to updated instructional programs, assessments, and state standards.  Participating in professional development 
activities provides staff at all levels experience that can be used for career advancement.  We have a tiered salary 
schedule that increases as certificated staff obtains additional units. These units must be approved by the 
Superintendent to align with school and student needs. When planning, we include support for all phases of 
implementation and evaluation or analysis. Alignment is achieved by ensuring that the district and site goals and actions 
are driven by a shared belief, input, and a comprehensive review of all pertinent data outcomes related to priorities. 
 
 
 
 
Prioritizing Funding 
ESSA SECTION 2102(b)(2)(C) 
 
Provide a description of how the LEA will prioritize funds to schools served by the agency that are implementing 
comprehensive support and improvement activities and targeted support and improvement activities under Section 
1111(d) and have the highest percentage of children counted under Section 1124(c). 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 

298



Fiscal resources (state and federal) are prioritized based on the analysis of student needs, staff survey feedback, 
professional learning resources, and staff time. We utilize the formula provided by CDE to calculate each site's 
allocation. This includes the use of student enrollment based on California Basic Educational Data System (CBEDS) 
day. Currently, staff needs are prioritized based on student needs, the comprehensive needs assessment, ongoing data 
analysis, and educational partner input.  An analysis of the adequacy of funds to support identified professional learning 
needs is completed as part of the planning process. The resources we allot may be fiscal (state and federal), time, or 
staff to support the learning. Resources are used strategically with other funding streams to support identified activities 
and a comprehensive professional learning plan. The alignment of resources and focused consistency assists our district 
in creating implementation sustainability. We are not eligible this school year for comprehensive support and 
improvement or targeted support and improvement. 
 
 

 
Data and Ongoing Consultation to Support Continuous Improvement 
ESSA SECTION 2102(b)(2)(D) 
 
Provide a description of how the LEA will use data and ongoing consultation described in Section 2102(b)(3) to continually 
update and improve activities supported under this part. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Professional learning is an integral part of our instructional planning process.  We include professional development in 
district strategic plans. Specific actions supported by Title II funds are used to support the induction of special education 
teachers and the inclusion of instructional strategies to aid in effective differentiated instruction. We have implemented 
PLCs to focus on analyzing student group achievement data. We are also working to plan engaging standards-based 
lessons that include higher-level questioning. We are also providing professional learning in the area of math and 
integrated and designated ELD. We are using other funds to support these areas of professional development. Cycles of 
professional learning will include content knowledge building, modeling, observational coaching, feedback, and planning 
support. We work with our county categorical coordinator to ensure that all activities fall within the uses of Title II Part A 
funding.  Our LCAP includes Goal 1: Focus on student basic needs for engagement and maintain high expectations for 
student achievement. (Priorities 1, 2, 4, 5, 7, and 8). The district LCAP includes professional development in this goal, 
which is evaluated for effectiveness using aligned metrics. The aligned data is collected and analyzed several times per 
year. We use it as we develop and analyze our Local Indicator Report, Professional Development Plan, and LCAP. The 
information is reported and discussed with all educational partner groups, site, and district committees. Educational 
Partner groups include teachers, principals, other school leaders, specialized instructional support personnel, parents, 
community partners, and experts in related programs and activities. The data is monitored to ensure improvement 
towards expected outcomes, and modified if needed. Observational data is used to create and adjust planned PLC 
sessions. We also compare student group data to identify any disparities. This evidence-based approach allows us to 
monitor impacts on student learning. We feel that site and district alignment contribute to a coherent system of learning 
that supports identified priorities, metrics, and positive outcomes. 
 
 

 
 

299



ACTION ITEM 
 

 

 

 
DATE: June 22, 2022 
 
 
TOPIC: Review and approval of the Kings County Office of 

Education Annual System of Support Report 
 
ISSUE: The county superintendent of schools will support 

the continuous improvement of all school districts 
within the county, including steps the county 
superintendent of schools plans to take to 
collaborate with the California Collaborative for 
Educational Excellence, the department, the lead 
agencies, and other county superintendents of 
schools to support school districts 

 
BACKGROUND: Beginning with the 2018–19 fiscal year and in each 

fiscal year thereafter, a county superintendent of 
schools shall prepare a summary of how the county 
office personnel plans to support school districts 
and schools within the county in implementing the 
provisions of a system of support and present the 
summary to the county board of education 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Recommend the Kings County Board of Education 

review and approve the 2022-2023 COE Annual 
System of Support Report 

  
 
RESOURCE: Joy Santos 

      Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services 

      joy.santos@kingscoe.org 

      559-589-7068 

 

300

mailto:joy.santos@kingscoe.org


 2022-2023 
 COE Annual Report 
 System of Support 

301



 Summary 

 The Kings County Office of Education Superintendent of Schools will support all districts and schools 
 within Kings County by providing the following Level 1 Supports: 

 ●  Curriculum framework training 
 ●  Accountability Updates 
 ●  Leadership Network 
 ●  WASC participation and writing support 
 ●  Technical Assistance for Content Areas, State/Federal programs, Local Control & Accountability 

 Plan (LCAP), and School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) 
 ●  Curriculum updates and professional development 
 ●  Coordinating services for Foster Youth and students experiencing homelessness 
 ●  Charter school support 
 ●  College and Career Readiness resources and support 
 ●  Tobacco Use Prevention Education program support 
 ●  Data and Assessment resources and support 
 ●  Transforming School Culture 
 ●  In-class educator coaching 
 ●  Professional Learning Community (PLC) support and training 
 ●  Literacy Across all content areas 
 ●  Computer Science for educators 
 ●  Social Emotional Learning training 
 ●  Stories with Style - Storytelling through Hip Hop 
 ●  Culturally Responsive Teaching training 
 ●  Positive Discipline in the Classroom 
 ●  Trauma Informed Teaching training 
 ●  EL RISE! Offerings 
 ●  English Learner (EL) updates and professional development 

 The Kings County Office of Education Superintendent of Schools will support districts identified for 
 technical assistance by proving the following Level 2 Supports: 

 ●  Differentiated Assistance (DA) support 
 ●  Meet with district teams for shared learning to understand gaps and underlying causes 
 ●  Create action plan for implementation of PDSA cycles 
 ●  Provide support to help district implement and give feedback on the action plan 
 ●  Support during a year-long process from dashboard to dashboard 
 ●  Support districts and school sites in Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) and 

 additional targeted support and improvement (ATSI) 
 ●  Provide districts with targeted content area support 
 ●  Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) implementation and training 
 ●  Building Relationships with Disengaged Youth 
 ●  Supporting Special Education 
 ●  Federal Progress Monitoring (FPM) support 

302



 The following plan to support districts in implementing LCAPs adheres to the provisions/ 
 requirements of  Ed Code 52066. 

 Goal One: Approve all LCAPs 

 Component  Objective  Metrics/ 
 Indicators 

 Action 

 LCAP 
 Support 

 Completing 
 the review 
 of LCAPs 
 submitted 
 by school 
 districts  [  Ed 
 Code 52070  ] 

 1. Provide ongoing 
 informational 
 updates and 
 training to 
 superintendents 
 and other school/ 
 district leaders 
 related to LCAPs, 
 State Priorities, and 
 student groups. 

 Meeting presentation 
 materials and sign in sheets. 

 A. Agendize LCAP items and 
 updates for State & Federal 
 Director Meetings and CBO 
 Meetings. 

 B. Provide professional learning 
 opportunities focused on Budget 
 Overview for Parents, State and 
 Local Indicators, LCAP Annual 
 Update, and LCAP template 
 components. 

 2. Provide all 
 districts with 
 technical support 
 and feedback on 
 initial drafts prior to 
 their LCAP public 
 hearings. 

 LCAP draft review and 
 feedback on any drafts 
 received prior to district 
 hearing and approval. 

 Review submitted LCAP drafts and 
 provide feedback between April- 
 June 

 3. Approval of all 
 LCAPs. 

 1. Any LCAP clarifications 
 sent to districts by August 15. 

 2. If a county superintendent 
 of schools does not approve 
 a district’s LCAP on or before 
 September 15, the county 
 superintendent of schools 
 may not approve a district’s 
 annual budget. As such, the 
 recommended approval date 
 is September 15 to coincide 
 with budget approval 
 deadlines. 

 3. LCAP approval is required 
 by October 8. 

 4. District approved LCAPs 
 uploaded to the county 
 home webpage. 

 Review Board Approved LCAPs in 
 June, July and August, and work 
 with district leaders to ensure that 
 all LCAPs are approvable by the 
 County Superintendent. 

303

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52066
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=52070.&lawCode=EDC
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=52070.&lawCode=EDC


 Goal Two: Utilize the cycle of continuous improvement to provide technical assistance to 
 schools and districts based on need. Technical assistance is provided to districts who are 
 identified as needing assistance as well as those that volunteer for assistance. 

 Component  Objective  Metrics/ Indicators  Action 

 Technical 
 Assistance 

 Providing 
 technical 
 assistance 
 to school 
 districts 
 pursuant to 
 subdivision 
 s (a) and (b) 
 of  Ed Code 
 52071  . 

 1. Support districts 
 with initial data 
 analysis and 
 identification of 
 strengths and areas 
 of growth. 

 1. Review of the Areas of 
 Success, Identified Needs, 
 and Performance Gaps 
 sections of LCAPs. 

 2. District progress on the CA 
 Dashboard. 

 A. Work with district leaders to 
 review the current year Dashboard 
 data to determineAreas of Success, 
 Identified Needs, and Performance 
 Gaps. 

 B. In conjunction with districts, 
 KCOE Differentiated Assistance 
 team  will analyze district data and 
 provide targeted improvement 
 professional development . 

 2.  Support districts 
 with systems 
 analysis and 
 identification of 
 systems level 
 strengths and areas 
 of growth 

 1. Review of local data. 

 2. LEA Self-Assessment 
 results. 

 A. Work with district leaders to 
 review and analyze local data. 

 B. Provide district leaders with 
 support on conducting the LEA 
 Self-Assessment to identify 
 systems level strengths and areas 
 of growth. 

 3. Support districts 
 with identifying a 
 problem of practice 
 and completing a 
 root cause analysis. 

 1. Completion of root cause 
 analysis tools. 

 2. Completion of the 
 identification of a problem of 
 practice (Aim Statement) 

 A. Work with district leaders to 
 identify causes using the 
 Improvement Science tools 
 (Fishbone Diagram, The 5 Whys 
 Protocol). 

 B. Assist districts in surveying 
 educational partners, drafting 
 empathy interviews, and analyzing 
 data to identify root cause focus. 
 (Pareto Analysis) 

 C. Introduce the Continuous 
 Improvement Cycle to districts and 
 PDSA to determine root causes. 

304

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=52071.&lawCode=EDC
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=52071.&lawCode=EDC


 4. Support districts 
 with a synthesis of 
 findings and action 
 planning. 

 1. Completion of 
 PDSA cycles. 

 2. Review and analyze  local 
 data included in 
 district PDSA. 

 A. Work with district leaders to 
 identify aim statements, primary 
 and secondary drivers to address 
 identified root causes. 

 B. Work with district leaders to 
 draft LCAP actions that align to 
 PDSA. 

 C. Survey and meet regularly with 
 district Differentiated Assistance 
 teams to share successes and 
 challenges with implementation, 
 review data, and determine next 
 steps. Meet with identified districts 
 to support them in addressing the 
 new DA requirements. 

305



 Goal Three: Provide support to all districts in implementing their LCAP. 

 Component  Objective  Metrics/ 
 Indicators 

 Action 

 Other 
 Support 
 Providing 
 any other 
 support to 
 school 
 districts and 
 schools 
 within the 
 county in 
 implementi 
 ng the 
 provisions 
 of  Ed Code 
 52071  . 

 1. Provide 
 opportunities for 
 school and district 
 leaders to network 
 and learn together. 

 Attendance at County led 
 Leadership meetings. 

 A. Provide opportunities for district 
 leaders to come together for state 
 and local updates related to 
 curriculum, instruction, 
 accountability, and assessment, as 
 well as structured opportunities to 
 share best practices and learn from 
 each other. 

 B. Provide triannual newsletter 
 updates and a dedicated website to 
 highlight professional 
 development opportunities 

 2.  Provide district 
 leaders with 
 opportunities to 
 understand and 
 apply the 
 continuous 
 improvement 
 framework and 
 tools. 

 1. Participation in the DA 
 process. 

 2. Continuous improvement 
 evidence/artifacts. 

 A. Model and practice the use of 
 continuous improvement 
 resources and tools. 

 B. Provide opportunities for district 
 leaders to share continuous 
 improvement practices and 
 processes utilized in their districts 

 3. Assist districts in 
 implementing and 
 monitoring impact 
 of actions 
 identified in their 
 LCAP. 

 1. Review of District Annual 
 Updates. 

 2. Assist districts with local 
 data collections in absence of 
 state data. Assist districts in 
 monitoring progress on the 
 CA Dashboard, when 
 available. 

 A. The LCAP Team will review all 
 LCAPs, to provide support with 
 future implementation in the form 
 of updates, technical assistance, 
 and contracted days, upon request. 

 B. Review local data and district 
 progress on the CA Dashboard. 

306

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=52071.&lawCode=EDC
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=52071.&lawCode=EDC


 Collaboration 

 The Kings County Superintendent of Schools will collaborate with the California Collaborative 
 for Educational Excellence (CCEE), the California Department of Education (CDE) other county 
 superintendents (CCSESA), Geographic Lead (Geo Leads) Agencies as well as System of Support 
 (SOS) Lead Agencies to support school districts and schools within the county implementing 
 LCAPs in the following ways: 

 Actions  CCEE  CDE  CCSESA  Geo 
 Leads 

 SOS 
 Leads 

 Kings County Superintendent of Schools 
 participates in meetings required to support 
 districts’ continuous improvement process. 

 X  X  X  X  X 

 Assistant Superintendent of Educational 
 Services participates in all meetings required 
 to support districts’ continuous improvement 
 process and is part of the LCAP team. 

 X  X  X  X  X 

 Director of Leadership Services and Director 
 of Student Services participate in monthly 
 Geographic Lead Meetings and are part of the 
 LCAP team. 

 X  X  X  X  X 

 Coordinator of State and Federal Programs 
 attends statewide meetings.  Also participates 
 in the Continuous Improvement,  LCAP/Fiscal 
 Advisory subcommittees, and is part of the 
 LCAP team. 

 X  X  X  X  X 

 The Differentiated Assistance Team 
 participates in collaborative meetings.  X  X  X 

307



 Budget - COE 

 Differentiated Assistance  2022-2023 Estimated Costs 

 Certificated & Classified Staff - salaries and benefits  $526,609 

 Materials & Supplies  $3,000 

 Travel/Conferences  $22,250 

 General Mileage & Motor Pool  $2,300 

 Equipment Replacement  $1,675 

 Dues & Memberships  $2,570 

 Copy Charges  $5,700 

 Direct Fixed Costs  $8,151 

 Other services (contracts)  $2,500 

 Communication  $912 

 Total Estimated Cost  $575,667 

 LCAP Support Plan  2022-2023 Estimated Costs 

 Certificated & Classified Staff - salaries and benefits  $142,545 

 Materials & Supplies  $1,000 

 Travel/Conferences  $5,500 

 Equipment Replacement & Communications & Cell Phone  $1,405 

 Dues & Memberships  $300 

 Copy Charges  $500 

 Direct Fixed Costs  $2,228 

 Total Estimated Cost  $153,478 

 ESSA: School Improvement Funding  2022-2023 Estimated Costs 

 Certificated & Classified Staff - salaries and benefits  $72,024 

 Materials & Supplies  $1,204 

 Travel/Conferences  $4,000 

 General Mileage & Motor Pool  $1,000 

 Indirect  $6,328 

 Total Estimated Cost  $84,556 

308



Kings County Office of Education 

Kings County Board of Education 
Board Bylaw 
 
BB 9240 

Board By-Law 

BOARD DEVELOPMENT 
 

 Citizens elected to the Governing Board are entrusted with the responsibility of governing 
district schools.  The Board recognizes that its members need training that helps them understand 
their responsibilities, stay abreast of new developments in education, and develop boardmanship 
skills. 
 

The county board of education of each county may select a member or members of the board 
to attend meetings of any society, association, or organization for which the board has subscribed for 
membership, or any convention to which the governing board of a school district or a community 
college district may pay the expenses of any employee (Ed Code 1096). 
 

All Board members may attend conferences for the purpose of Board development.  Board 
business shall not be discussed at conferences. Such activities may include state, regional, and 
national workshops, conferences, conventions, and seminars such as those offered by the California 
School Boards Association. 

 
Board members shall report to the Board, orally or in writing, as soon as possible at a regular 

Board meeting. 
 
 The actual expenses of the member or members shall be allowed and paid out of the county 
general fund with prior budgetary approval (Ed code 1096). These funds for Board development shall 
be budgeted annually, for each Board member, at the budget approval meeting. 
 
 If a board member elects to attend conferences or events that are over their allotted proportion 
of the professional development budget for that fiscal year, board approval is required.  
 
 Reimbursement to Board members for conference/workshop expenses and travel shall be 
consistent with policy and regulations governing reimbursement to other County Office personnel. 
 
 
Reference: Education Code Section 1096 
 Education Code Sections 33360  
 Government Code 54950-54963 
 
Adopted by Board: July 6, 1988  
 
Reviewed by Board: July 3, 1991  
 
Reviewed by Board: November 2, 1994  
 
Revised by Board: May 7, 1997  
 
Reviewed by Board: June 2, 1999  
 
Reviewed by Board: April 13, 2005  
 
Revised by Board: June 22, 2022  

309



DISCUSSION ITEM 
 

 

 

 
DATE: June 22, 2022 
 
 
TOPIC: 2022 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection 
 
ISSUE: Annual Review of SBE-adopted Local Performance 

Indicator self-reflection  
 
BACKGROUND: An LEA uses the SBE-adopted self-reflection tools 

to report its progress through the California School 
Dashboard. Local indicator data shows LEA 
progress on Priority Indicators. This data is used for 
local planning and improvement. Data gathered 
from these indicators is also used to inform the 
LCAP. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Discussion item. No action is necessary.  
  
 
RESOURCE: Joy Santos 

      Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services 

      joy.santos@kingscoe.org 

      559-589-7068 

 

310

mailto:joy.santos@kingscoe.org


 

2022 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Kings County Office of Education Page 1 of 14 

 
 

Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection  
 

Local Educational Agency (LEA) 
Name 

Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 
Kings County Office of Education            Joy Santos           

Assistant Superintendent of 
Educational Services 

joy.santos@kingscoe.org           
(559)589-7068 

 

Introduction 
 
The State Board of Education (SBE) approved standards for the local indicators that support a local educational agency 
(LEA) in measuring and reporting progress within the appropriate priority area. The approved performance standards 
require an LEA to: 
 

• Annually measure its progress in meeting the requirements of the specific Local Control Funding Formula 
(LCFF) priority. 

• Report the results as part of a non-consent item at a regularly scheduled public meeting of the local governing 
board/body in conjunction with the adoption of the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP). 

• Report results to the public through the Dashboard utilizing the SBE-adopted self-reflection tools for each 
local indicator. 

 
This Quick Guide identifies the approved standards and self-reflection tools that an LEA will use to report its progress 
on the local indicators. 

311



 

2022 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Kings County Office of Education Page 2 of 14 

 

Self-Reflection Tools 
 
An LEA uses the self-reflection tools included within the Dashboard to report its progress on the local performance 
indicator to educational partners and the public. 
 
The self-reflection tools are embedded in the web-based Dashboard system and are also available in Word document 
format.  In addition to using the self-reflection tools to report its progress on the local performance indicators to 
educational partners and the public, an LEA may use the self-reflection tools as a resource when reporting results to its 
local governing board. The approved self-reflection tools are provided below. 
 
Appropriately Assigned Teachers, Access to Curriculum-Aligned Instructional 
Materials, and Safe, Clean and Functional School Facilities (LCFF Priority 1) 
 
LEAs will provide the information below: 
 

• Number/percentage of misassignments of teachers of ELs, total teacher misassignments, and vacant teacher 
positions 

• Number/percentage of students without access to their own copies of standards-aligned instructional materials 
for use at school and at home 

• Number of identified instances where facilities do not meet the "good repair" standard (including deficiencies and 
extreme deficiencies) 

 
   

Teachers  Number Percent 

Misassignments of Teachers of English Learners 0 0% 

Total Teacher Misassignments 0 0% 

Vacant Teacher Positions 0 0% 

 
Access to Instructional Materials Number Percent 

Students Without Access to Own Copies of Standards-Aligned Instructional 
Materials for Use at School and at Home 

0 0% 

 
Facility Conditions Number 

Identified Instances Where Facilities Do Not Meet The “Good Repair” Standard (Including 
Deficiencies and Extreme Deficiencies) 

0 

 

312



 

2022 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Kings County Office of Education Page 3 of 14 

OPTION 2: Reflection Tool 
 
Recently Adopted Academic Standards and/or Curriculum Frameworks 
 
1. Rate the LEA’s progress in providing professional learning for teaching to the recently adopted academic 

standards and/or curriculum frameworks identified below. 
 

Rating Scale (lowest to highest) -  
1 - Exploration and Research Phase 
2 - Beginning Development 
3 - Initial Implementation 
4 - Full Implementation 
5 - Full Implementation and Sustainability 

 
Academic Standards 1 2 3 4 5 

ELA – Common Core State Standards for ELA     
X 

5       

ELD (Aligned to ELA Standards)    
X 

4        

Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for Mathematics    
X 

4        

Next Generation Science Standards    
X 

4        

History-Social Science    
X 

4        
 
2. Rate the LEA’s progress in making instructional materials that are aligned to the recently adopted academic 

standards and/or curriculum frameworks identified below available in all classrooms where the subject is 
taught. 

 
Rating Scale (lowest to highest) -  

1 - Exploration and Research Phase 
2 - Beginning Development 
3 - Initial Implementation 
4 - Full Implementation 
5 - Full Implementation and Sustainability 

 
Academic Standards 1 2 3 4 5 

ELA – Common Core State Standards for ELA     
X 

5       

ELD (Aligned to ELA Standards)     
X 

5       

Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for Mathematics     
X 

5       

Next Generation Science Standards     
X 

5       

History-Social Science    
X 

4        
 

313



 

2022 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Kings County Office of Education Page 4 of 14 

3. Rate the LEA’s progress in implementing policies or programs to support staff in identifying areas where 
they can improve in delivering instruction aligned to the recently adopted academic standards and/or 
curriculum frameworks identified below (e.g., collaborative time, focused classroom walkthroughs, teacher 
pairing). 

 
Rating Scale (lowest to highest) -  

1 - Exploration and Research Phase 
2 - Beginning Development 
3 - Initial Implementation 
4 - Full Implementation 
5 - Full Implementation and Sustainability 

 
Academic Standards 1 2 3 4 5 

ELA – Common Core State Standards for ELA     
X 

5       

ELD (Aligned to ELA Standards)     
X 

5       

Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for Mathematics     
X 

5       

Next Generation Science Standards     
X 

5       

History-Social Science    
X 

4        
 
Other Adopted Academic Standards 
 
4. Rate the LEA’s progress implementing each of the following academic standards adopted by the state board 

for all students. 
 

Rating Scale (lowest to highest) -  
1 - Exploration and Research Phase 
2 - Beginning Development 
3 - Initial Implementation 
4 - Full Implementation 
5 - Full Implementation and Sustainability 

 
Academic Standards 1 2 3 4 5 

Career Technical Education   
X 

3         

Health Education Content Standards    
X 

4        

Physical Education Model Content Standards    
X 

4        

Visual and Performing Arts    
X 

4        

World Language    
X 

4        
 

314



 

2022 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Kings County Office of Education Page 5 of 14 

Support for Teachers and Administrators 
 
5. Rate the LEA’s success at engaging in the following activities with teachers and school administrators 

during the prior school year (including the summer preceding the prior school year). 
 

Rating Scale (lowest to highest) -  
1 - Exploration and Research Phase 
2 - Beginning Development 
3 - Initial Implementation 
4 - Full Implementation 
5 - Full Implementation and Sustainability 

 
Academic Standards 1 2 3 4 5 

Identifying the professional learning needs of groups of teachers or staff as a whole     
X 

5       

Identifying the professional learning needs of individual teachers     
X 

5       

Providing support for teachers on the standards they have not yet mastered     
X 

5       
 
 Optional Narrative (Limited to 1,500 characters) 
6. Provide any additional information in the text box provided in the Dashboard that the LEA believes is 

relevant to understanding its progress implementing the academic standards adopted by the state board. 
 
Parental Involvement and Family Engagement (LCFF Priority 3) 
 
Introduction 
Family engagement is an essential strategy for building pathways to college and career readiness for all students and 
is an essential component of a systems approach to improving outcomes for all students. More than 30 years of research 
has shown that family engagement can lead to improved student outcomes (e.g., attendance, engagement, academic 
outcomes, social emotional learning, etc.). 
 
Consistent with the California Department of Education’s (CDE’s) Family Engagement Toolkit: 1 
 

• Effective and authentic family engagement has been described as an intentional partnership of educators, 
families and community members who share responsibility for a child from the time they are born to becoming 
an adult.  

• To build an effective partnership, educators, families, and community members need to develop the knowledge 
and skills to work together, and schools must purposefully integrate family and community engagement with 
goals for students' learning and thriving.   

 
The LCFF legislation recognized the importance of family engagement by requiring LEAs to address Priority 3 within 
their LCAP. The self-reflection tool described below enables LEAs to reflect upon their implementation of family 
engagement as part of their continuous improvement process and prior to updating their LCAP. 
 
For LEAs to engage all families equitably, it is necessary to understand the cultures, languages, needs and interests of 
families in the local area. Furthermore, developing family engagement policies, programs, and practices needs to be 
done in partnership with local families, using the tools of continuous improvement. 
 
Instructions 
This self-reflection tool is organized into three sections. Each section includes research and evidence-based practices 
in family engagement: 
 

1. Building Relationships between School Staff and Families  
2. Building Partnerships for Student Outcomes  
3. Seeking Input for Decision-Making 

315



 

2022 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Kings County Office of Education Page 6 of 14 

 
Based on an evaluation of data, including educational partner input, an LEA uses this self-reflection tool to report on its 
progress successes and area(s) of need related to family engagement policies, programs, and practices. This tool will 
enable an LEA to engage in continuous improvement and determine next steps to make improvements in the areas 
identified. The results of the process should be used to inform the LCAP and its development process, including 
assessing prior year goals, actions and services and in modifying future goals, actions, and services in the LCAP. 
 
LEAs are to implement the following self-reflection process: 
 

1. Identify the diverse educational partners that need to participate in the self-reflection process in order to ensure 
input from all groups of families, staff and students in the LEA, including families of unduplicated students and 
families of individuals with exceptional needs as well as families of underrepresented students.  
 

2. Engage educational partners in determining what data and information will be considered to complete the self-
reflection tool. LEAs should consider how the practices apply to families of all student groups, including families 
of unduplicated students and families of individuals with exceptional needs as well as families of 
underrepresented students.  

 
 

3. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, identify the number which best indicates the 
LEA’s current stage of implementation for each of the 12 practices using the following rating scale (lowest to 
highest): 
 
1 – Exploration and Research  
2 – Beginning Development  
3 – Initial Implementation  
4 – Full Implementation  
5 – Full Implementation and Sustainability 
 

4. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, respond to each of the prompts pertaining to 
each section of the tool. 

 
5. Use the findings from the self-reflection process to inform the annual update to the LCAP and the LCAP 

development process, as well as the development of other school and district plans. 
 
Sections of the Self-Reflection Tool  
 
Section 1: Building Relationships Between School Staff and Families 
 
Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, identify the number which best indicates the LEA’s 
current stage of implementation for each practice in this section using the following rating scale (lowest to highest): 
 

Rating Scale (lowest to highest) -  
1 - Exploration and Research Phase 
2 - Beginning Development 
3 - Initial Implementation 
4 - Full Implementation 
5 - Full Implementation and Sustainability 

 
Building Relationships 1 2 3 4 5 

1. Rate the LEA’s progress in developing the capacity of staff (i.e., 
administrators, teachers, and classified staff) to build trusting and 
respectful relationships with families. 

   
X 

4        

2. Rate the LEA’s progress in creating welcoming environments for 
all families in the community. 

  
X 

3         

316



 

2022 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Kings County Office of Education Page 7 of 14 

Building Relationships 1 2 3 4 5 
3. Rate the LEA’s progress in supporting staff to learn about each 

family’s strengths, cultures, languages, and goals for their 
children. 

  
X 

3         

4. Rate the LEA’s progress in developing multiple opportunities 
for the LEA and school sites to engage in 2-way 
communication between families and educators using 
language that is understandable and accessible to families. 

   
X 

4        

 
Building Relationships Dashboard Narrative Boxes (Limited to 3,000 characters) 
 
1. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, briefly describe the LEA's current strengths and 

progress in Building Relationships Between School Staff and Families.  
 
An area of strength is related to the Title I and Schools Site Council (SSC)/School Plan for Student Achievement 
(SPSA) work surrounding communication we have completed.  We have worked diligently to promote parent 
communication and the opportunity to provide input as we work together to advance student achievement.        

 
2. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, briefly describe the LEA’s focus area(s) for 

improvement in Building Relationships Between School Staff and Families. 
 
An area of improvement where we would like to continue to focus on is the LEA’s progress in implementing policies 
or programs for teachers to meet with families and students to discuss student progress and ways to work together 
to support improved student outcomes. To strengthen these relationships teachers will reach out to parents a 
minimum of once per quarter to discuss student progress and build relationships.        

 
3. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, briefly describe how the LEA will improve 

engagement of underrepresented families identified during the self-reflection process in relation to Building 
Relationships Between School Staff and Families. 

 
The LEA will improve partnerships by soliciting feedback for all student achievement plans. Parents will be surveyed 
via digital means and phone calls. Improving partnerships with parents will be strengthened by continued outreach. 
Parent / teacher conferences at the end of each marking period.  Staff were provided with professional development 
around culturally relevant practices, which included learning about local cultures.        

 
Section 2: Building Partnerships for Student Outcomes 
 
Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, identify the number which best indicates the LEA’s 
current stage of implementation for each practice in this section using the following rating scale (lowest to highest): 
 

Rating Scale (lowest to highest) -  
1 - Exploration and Research Phase 
2 - Beginning Development 
3 - Initial Implementation 
4 - Full Implementation 
5 - Full Implementation and Sustainability 

 
Building Partnerships 1 2 3 4 5 

5. Rate the LEA’s progress in providing professional learning and 
support to teachers and principals to improve a school’s capacity 
to partner with families. 

   
X 

4        

6. Rate the LEA’s progress in providing families with information 
and resources to support student learning and development in 
the home. 

  
X 

3         

317



 

2022 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Kings County Office of Education Page 8 of 14 

Building Partnerships 1 2 3 4 5 
7. Rate the LEA’s progress in implementing policies or programs for 

teachers to meet with families and students to discuss student 
progress and ways to work together to support improved student 
outcomes. 

   
X 

4        

8. Rate the LEA’s progress in supporting families to understand and 
exercise their legal rights and advocate for their own students 
and all students.  

  
X 

3         

 
Building Partnerships Dashboard Narrative Boxes (Limited to 3,000 characters) 
 
1. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, briefly describe the LEA’s current strengths and 

progress in Building Partnerships for Student Outcomes.   
 
An area of strength where we would like to continue to improve is the LEA’s progress in creating welcoming 
environments for all families in the community. Parent/teacher conferences were implemented.  A parent 
engagement night was scheduled, however no families signed up for this event.   Due to COVID, in-person parent 
meetings were difficult, however, we worked diligently to provide a virtual space for school leaders and parents to 
work together.        

 
2. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, briefly describe the LEA’s focus area(s) for 

improvement in Building Partnerships for Student Outcomes. 
 
An area of improvement where we would like to continue to focus is the LEA’s progress in developing the capacity of 
staff (i.e. administrators, teachers, and classified staff) to build trusting and respectful relationships with families. To 
strengthen these relationships teachers will reach out to parents on a more regular basis. Currently, the goal is to call 
parents to share positive messages.        

 
3. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, briefly describe how the LEA will improve 

engagement of underrepresented families identified during the self-reflection process in relation to Building 
Partnerships for Student Outcomes. 

 
The LEA will improve the engagement of underrepresented families via the implementation of technology to regularly 
reach out to families. Reminders to be sent out to families and reinforced via community partners such as probation 
officers. We will look into incentives regarding family registrations to encourage participation.        

 
Section 3: Seeking Input for Decision-Making 
 
Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, identify the number which best indicates the LEA’s 
current stage of implementation for each practice in this section using the following rating scale (lowest to highest): 
 

Rating Scale (lowest to highest) -  
1 - Exploration and Research Phase 
2 - Beginning Development 
3 - Initial Implementation 
4 - Full Implementation 
5 - Full Implementation and Sustainability 

 
Seeking Input 1 2 3 4 5 

9. Rate the LEA’s progress in building the capacity of and 
supporting principals and staff to effectively engage families in 
advisory groups and with decision-making. 

   
X 

4        

318



 

2022 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Kings County Office of Education Page 9 of 14 

Seeking Input 1 2 3 4 5 
10. Rate the LEA’s progress in building the capacity of and 

supporting family members to effectively engage in advisory 
groups and decision-making. 

   
X 

4        

11. Rate the LEA’s progress in providing all families with 
opportunities to provide input on policies and programs, and 
implementing strategies to reach and seek input from any 
underrepresented groups in the school community. 

   
X 

4        

12. Rate the LEA’s progress in providing opportunities to have 
families, teachers, principals, and district administrators work 
together to plan, design, implement and evaluate family 
engagement activities at school and district levels. 

  
X 

3         

 
Seeking Input for Decision-Making Dashboard Narrative Boxes (Limited to 3,000 characters) 
 
1. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, briefly describe the LEA’s current strengths and 

progress in Seeking Input for Decision-Making. 
 
An area of strength where we would like to continue improving is the LEA’s progress in building the capacity of and 
supporting principals and staff to effectively engage families in advisory groups and decision-making. Parents are 
invited to participate in regularly scheduled SSC meetings. We continue to provide materials in English and Spanish 
and have moved to a virtual platform in light of the Pandemic. The site Transition Specialist actively works to ensure 
continuous parent participation on the School Site Council, including input from parents of English Learners. Parent 
surveys are conducted via telephone with translation services available to ensure that the majority of families 
completed site surveys.        

 
2. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, briefly describe the LEA’s focus area(s) for 

improvement in Seeking Input for Decision-Making. 
 
An area of improvement where we would like to continue to focus on is the LEA’s progress in providing all families 
with opportunities to provide input on policies and programs and implementing strategies to reach and seek input 
from any underrepresented groups in the school community. District and site staff worked together to plan a family 
engagement night, however no families signed up for the event. A student panel was held in place of this event, so 
that their stakeholder input could be gathered. Community members were invited to this event as well.  Our goal is to 
explore other ways to reach out to parents to attend engagement meetings. Tapping into community groups as a way 
to better reach out to families would be a way to explore and solicit feedback.        

 
3. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, briefly describe how the LEA will improve 

engagement of underrepresented families identified during the self-reflection process in relation to Seeking Input for 
Decision-Making. 

 
The LEA will improve stakeholder input of key decision-making by exploring new ways to gain feedback. Ways 
include the use of technology to reach out to stakeholders and/or the implementation of community partnerships to 
form lasting and meaningful relationships.        

 

319



 

2022 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Kings County Office of Education Page 10 of 14 

School Climate (LCFF Priority 6) 
 
LEAs will provide a narrative summary of the local administration and analysis of a local climate survey that captures a 
valid measure of student perceptions of school safety and connectedness in at least one grade within the grade span 
(e.g., K–5, 6– 8, 9–12) in a text box provided in the California School Dashboard (response limited to 3,000 characters). 
LEAs will have an opportunity to include differences among student groups, and for surveys that provide an overall 
score, such as the California Healthy Kids Survey, report the overall score for all students and student groups. This 
summary may also include an analysis of a subset of specific items on a local survey and additional data collection tools 
that are particularly relevant to school conditions and climate. 
 

1. DATA: Reflect on the key learnings from the survey results and share what the LEA learned. 
 

2. MEANING: What do the disaggregated results (if applicable) of the survey and other data collection methods 
reveal about schools in the LEA, such as areas of strength or growth, challenges, and barriers? 

 
3. USE: What revisions, decisions, or actions has, or will, the LEA implement in response to the results for 

continuous improvement purposes? Why? If you have already implemented actions, did you see the results you 
were seeking? 

 
1. DATA: Reflect on the key learnings from the survey results and share what the LEA learned. 
Findings: We have administered a local climate survey to students enrolled at our court school for the last several 
years, and have found that student responses are a valuable part of the impact on our LCAP. The Spring 2022 
survey responses showed 100% of students felt very or somewhat safe at school, which was a 14.2% increase from 
the Spring 2020 survey. 94% of students indicated they felt strongly or somewhat connected to school, which was a 
22.5% increase over last year. Regarding social and emotional need support 88% of students felt very or somewhat 
supported. 
 
2. MEANING: What do the disaggregated results (if applicable) of the survey and other data collection methods 
reveal about schools in the LEA, such as areas of strength or growth, challenges, and barriers? 
The analysis of survey results identifies both strengths and areas of need. The 14.2% increase surrounding school 
safety was an improvement over the previous year’s data. The 22.5% increase in regards to “feeling connected to 
the school” was another positive point of growth. In light of challenges created by the pandemic, we would like to 
continue our focus on ways to increase the 88% of students who feel very or somewhat supported.  A barrier we face 
is, as a court school, we have a high turnover of students as they enter and leave the facility based on their offense 
which makes the data somewhat inconsistent based on population at any given time. 
 
3. USE: What revisions, decisions, or actions has, or will, the LEA implement in response to the results for 
continuous improvement purposes? Why? If you have already implemented actions, did you see the results you were 
seeking? 
Court schools serve populations of students that come into and out of programs more regularly than in other 
educational settings. We plan to continue to promote positive safety through the use of student incentives and 
access to social and emotional learning (SEL) modules and curriculum. We have employed a full-time Transition 
Specialist and increased the hours of the part-time Principal. The two roles work together to meet student needs and 
are able to meet more frequently with probation staff. We continue to focus our efforts to increase collaboration, 
connectedness, and transparency between staff. We continue to work to establish a more regular schedule for 
professional learning communities and instructional preparation. With the additional Transition Specialist support, 
students can see their credits accumulate, which allows for them to see their graduation progress at more frequent 
intervals. The Transition Specialist also supports students in exploring and applying for post-secondary academic 
and vocational opportunities. Our program continues to work towards providing a safe, secure, and engaging 
learning environment for students that is sensitive to the needs of our populations. Staff have continued to receive 
training in culturally responsive and trauma-informed practices. 
 
        

 

320



 

2022 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Kings County Office of Education Page 11 of 14 

Access to a Broad Course of Study (LCFF Priority 7) 
 
LEAs provide a narrative summary of the extent to which all students have access to and are enrolled in a broad course 
of study by addressing, at a minimum, the following four prompts: 
 
1. Briefly identify the locally selected measures or tools that the LEA is using to track the extent to which all students 

have access to, and are enrolled in, a broad course of study, based on grade spans, unduplicated student groups, 
and individuals with exceptional needs served. (response limited to 1,500 characters) 
 

2. Using the locally selected measures or tools, summarize the extent to which all students have access to, and are 
enrolled in, a broad course of study. The summary should identify any differences across school sites and student 
groups in access to, and enrollment in, a broad course of study, and may describe progress over time in the extent 
to which all students have access to, and are enrolled in, a broad course of study. (response limited to 1,500 
characters) 

 
3. Given the results of the tool or locally selected measures, identify the barriers preventing the LEA from providing 

access to a broad course of study for all students. (response limited to 1,500 characters) 
 

4. In response to the results of the tool or locally selected measures, what revisions, decisions, or new actions will the 
LEA implement, or has the LEA implemented, to ensure access to a broad course of study for all students? (response 
limited to 1,500 characters) 

 
1. Findings: JC Montgomery continues to use our master course schedule and student transcripts to ensure that 
students have access to a broad course of study. All incarcerated youth are considered unduplicated or low-income 
students. Our English Learners are enrolled in designated ELD for one period a day and are working in programs 
targeted to their individual language needs. English learners are progress monitored using local curriculum 
assessments. In order to protect student privacy, ELPAC data was suppressed because 10 or fewer students tested. 
As such, we used Designated ELD scores to show growth.  Our baseline GPA in the 2020-21 school year was 
3.33%/B+, whereas students average GPA was 2.6%/ B- in the 2021-22 school year.  Students with exceptional 
needs are supported during whole group and one-on-one instruction and receive individualized educational plans 
that are targeted towards their specific needs. 
 
2. The Kings County alternative schools program consists of one school, JC Montgomery.  All of our courses are 
aligned to A-G expectations. 100% of students, including unduplicated students, have access to required courses. All 
English learners have access to integrated and designated ELD. 100% of students with exceptional needs have an 
IEP that includes access to services provided both through the educational program and the department of 
corrections. 
 
3. Upon entry into our instructional programs, student transcripts are evaluated. Students are placed into courses 
based on their progress towards meeting graduation requirements. We continue to provide a variety of courses via 
our credit recovery program. This allows virtual access to a wide range of courses within a singular classroom. The 
in-person courses are taught by a limited number of teaching staff, which is based on student enrollment. We have 
experienced fluctuating enrollment for the past several years. Overall, we have continued to decline in enrollment, 
especially due to the health and safety concerns brought about by the pandemic. The increase in course offerings 
through Edgenuity has allowed students to obtain more credits based on student achievement rather than a time-
based model. We are also limited in our ability to offer a variety of physical education activities and science 
laboratories based on our facilities and access to physical space. We continue to work with our agency partners to 
provide opportunities for students that increase access to a broad course of study. 
 
4. Our staff has worked to use student academic data to identify specific needs. We have implemented a new 
designated ELD curriculum that will target students’ language needs and proficiency levels. We are continuing to 
provide additional professional learning opportunities that are focused on integrated and designated ELD to scaffold 
student content learning. For Edgenuity, students are required to complete study guides before attempting course 
assessments in their credit recovery courses. We continue to take a more focused look at student results from local 
assessments, iReady ELA/Math assessments, and data from one-on-one support to adjust instruction and access 
accordingly. 

321



 

2022 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Kings County Office of Education Page 12 of 14 

 
        

 
Coordination of Services for Expelled Students – COE Only (LCFF Priority 9) 
 
Assess the degree of implementation of the progress in coordinating instruction for expelled students in your 
county. 
 

Rating Scale (lowest to highest) -  
1 - Exploration and Research Phase 
2 - Beginning Development 
3 - Initial Implementation 
4 - Full Implementation 
5 - Full Implementation and Sustainability 

 
Coordinating Instruction 1 2 3 4 5 

1. Assessing status of triennial plan 
for providing educational services 
to all expelled students in the 
county, including: 

[No response 
required] 

[No response 
required] 

[No response 
required] 

[No response 
required] 

[No response 
required] 

a. Review of required outcome 
data. 

  
X 

3         

b. Identifying existing educational 
alternatives for expelled pupils, 
gaps in educational services to 
expelled pupils, and strategies 
for filling those service gaps. 

  
X 

3         

c. Identifying alternative 
placements for pupils who are 
expelled and placed in district 
community day school 
programs, but who fail to meet 
the terms and conditions of 
their rehabilitation plan or who 
pose a danger to other district 
pupils. 

   
X 

4        

2. Coordinating on development and 
implementation of triennial plan 
with all LEAs within the county. 

   
X 

4        

3. Establishing ongoing collaboration 
and policy development for 
transparent referral process for 
LEAs within the county to the 
county office of education or other 
program options, including 
dissemination to all LEAs within 
the county a menu of available 
continuum of services for expelled 
students. 

   
X 

4        

4. Developing memorandum of 
understanding regarding the 
coordination of partial credit 
policies between district of 
residence and county office of 

 
X 

2          

322



 

2022 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Kings County Office of Education Page 13 of 14 

Coordinating Instruction 1 2 3 4 5 
education. 

 
 
Coordination of Services for Foster Youth – COE Only (LCFF Priority 10) 
 
Assess the degree of implementation of coordinated service program components for foster youth in your 
county. 
 

Rating Scale (lowest to highest) -  
1 - Exploration and Research Phase 
2 - Beginning Development 
3 - Initial Implementation 
4 - Full Implementation 
5 - Full Implementation and Sustainability 

 
Coordinating Services 1 2 3 4 5 

1. Establishing ongoing collaboration 
and supporting policy development, 
including establishing formalized 
information sharing agreements with 
child welfare, probation, Local 
Education Agency (LEAs), the 
courts, and other organizations to 
support determining the proper 
educational placement of foster 
youth (e.g., school of origin versus 
current residence, comprehensive 
versus alternative school, and 
regular versus special education). 

   
X 

4        

2. Building capacity with LEA, 
probation, child welfare, and other 
organizations for purposes of 
implementing school-based support 
infrastructure for foster youth 
intended to improve educational 
outcomes (e.g., provide regular 
professional development with the 
Foster Youth Liaisons to facilitate 
adequate transportation services for 
foster youth). 

   
X 

4        

3. Providing information and 
assistance to LEAs regarding the 
educational needs of foster youth in 
order to improve educational 
outcomes. 

   
X 

4        

323



 

2022 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Kings County Office of Education Page 14 of 14 

Coordinating Services 1 2 3 4 5 

4. Providing direct educational 
services for foster youth in LEA or 
county-operated programs provided 
the school district has certified that 
specified services cannot be 
provided or funded using other 
sources, including, but not limited to, 
Local Control Funding Formula, 
federal, state or local funding. 

  
X 

3         

5. Establishing ongoing collaboration 
and supporting development of 
policies and procedures that 
facilitate expeditious transfer of 
records, transcripts, and other 
relevant educational information. 

   
X 

4        

6. Facilitating the coordination of post-
secondary opportunities for youth by 
engaging with systems partners, 
including, but not limited to, child 
welfare transition planning and 
independent living services, 
community colleges or universities, 
career technical education, and 
workforce development providers. 

    
X 

5       

7. Developing strategies to prioritize 
the needs of foster youth in the 
community, using community-wide 
assessments that consider age 
group, geographical area, and 
identification of highest needs 
students based on academic needs 
and placement type. 

   
X 

4        

8. Engaging in the process of 
reviewing plan deliverables and of 
collecting and analyzing LEA and 
COE level outcome data for 
purposes of evaluating effectiveness 
of support services for foster youth 
and whether the investment in 
services contributes to improved 
educational outcomes for foster 
youth. 

   
X 

4        

 

324



BOARD DISCUSSION ITEM 
 
 
 

  
 
 
TOPIC: Program Self-Evaluation Annual Report 
 
 
DATE OF MEETING: June 22, 2022 
 
 
ISSUE: Funding for the California State Subsidized Preschool 

grant requires information to be shared with the board.  
Action is not required. Please consider the Kings 
Superintendent of Schools Preschool Program Self-
Evaluation Annual Report for informational purposes only. 

 
 
BACKGROUND: Each year the California State Subsidized Preschool 

programs engage in a self-evaluation process to determine 
areas for growth and consideration.  At the end of the 
program year, we are required to present the data 
collected, set goals and action steps, and then convey it in 
an annual report. 

 
 
RESOURCE: Joy Santos 
 Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services 
 joy.santos@kingscoe.org 
 (559)589-7068 
 
 Rebecca Villa 
 Director, Early Childhood Education 
 rebecca.villa@kingscoe.org  
 (559)589-7075 
 

 
 

 

325

mailto:joy.santos@kingscoe.org


326



327



328



329



330



331



332


	Minutes from the 060822 Regular Meeting
	LocalControlAccountabiliyPlan
	2022 LCAP KCOE Draft 6.1.22 Public Hearing (1).pdf
	LCFF Budget Overview for Parents
	Budget Overview for the 2022-23 School Year
	Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in the LCAP for the 2022-23 School Year

	Update on Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in 2021-22

	Supplement to the Annual Update to the 2021–22 Local Control and Accountability Plan
	Instructions for the Supplement to the Annual Update for the 2021–22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Year
	Introduction
	Instructions


	Local Control Accountability Plan
	Plan Summary [2022-23]
	General Information
	Reflections: Successes
	Reflections: Identified Need
	LCAP Highlights
	Comprehensive Support and Improvement
	Schools Identified
	Support for Identified Schools
	Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness


	Engaging Educational Partners
	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Actions
	Goal Analysis [2021-22]

	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Actions
	Goal Analysis [2021-22]

	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Actions
	Goal Analysis [2021-22]

	Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students [2022-23]
	Required Descriptions

	2022-23 Total Expenditures Table
	2022-23 Contributing Actions Table
	2021-22 Annual Update Table
	2021-22 Contributing Actions Annual Update Table
	2021-22 LCFF Carryover Table
	Instructions
	Introduction and Instructions
	Plan Summary
	Purpose
	Requirements and Instructions

	Engaging Educational Partners
	Purpose
	Requirements and Instructions

	Goals and Actions
	Purpose
	Requirements and Instructions
	Focus Goal(s)
	Broad Goal
	Maintenance of Progress Goal
	Required Goals
	Measuring and Reporting Results:
	Goal Analysis:


	Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students
	Purpose
	Requirements and Instructions

	Action Tables
	Data Entry Table
	Contributing Actions Table
	Annual Update Table
	Contributing Actions Annual Update Table
	LCFF Carryover Table
	Calculations in the Action Tables
	Contributing Actions Table
	Contributing Actions Annual Update Table
	LCFF Carryover Table





	Kingscountyofficeofeducationbudget22-23
	PUBLIC NOTICE - KCOE.pdf
	2022 LCAP KCOE Draft 6.1.22 Public Hearing (1).pdf
	LCFF Budget Overview for Parents
	Budget Overview for the 2022-23 School Year
	Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in the LCAP for the 2022-23 School Year

	Update on Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in 2021-22

	Supplement to the Annual Update to the 2021–22 Local Control and Accountability Plan
	Instructions for the Supplement to the Annual Update for the 2021–22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Year
	Introduction
	Instructions


	Local Control Accountability Plan
	Plan Summary [2022-23]
	General Information
	Reflections: Successes
	Reflections: Identified Need
	LCAP Highlights
	Comprehensive Support and Improvement
	Schools Identified
	Support for Identified Schools
	Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness


	Engaging Educational Partners
	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Actions
	Goal Analysis [2021-22]

	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Actions
	Goal Analysis [2021-22]

	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Actions
	Goal Analysis [2021-22]

	Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students [2022-23]
	Required Descriptions

	2022-23 Total Expenditures Table
	2022-23 Contributing Actions Table
	2021-22 Annual Update Table
	2021-22 Contributing Actions Annual Update Table
	2021-22 LCFF Carryover Table
	Instructions
	Introduction and Instructions
	Plan Summary
	Purpose
	Requirements and Instructions

	Engaging Educational Partners
	Purpose
	Requirements and Instructions

	Goals and Actions
	Purpose
	Requirements and Instructions
	Focus Goal(s)
	Broad Goal
	Maintenance of Progress Goal
	Required Goals
	Measuring and Reporting Results:
	Goal Analysis:


	Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students
	Purpose
	Requirements and Instructions

	Action Tables
	Data Entry Table
	Contributing Actions Table
	Annual Update Table
	Contributing Actions Annual Update Table
	LCFF Carryover Table
	Calculations in the Action Tables
	Contributing Actions Table
	Contributing Actions Annual Update Table
	LCFF Carryover Table






	LocalControlAccountabiliyPlanFederalAddendum
	Instructions
	Strategy
	Alignment

	ESSA Provisions Addressed Within the LCAP
	TITLE I, PART A
	Monitoring Student Progress Towards Meeting Challenging State Academic Standards
	Overuse in Discipline Practices that Remove Students from the Classroom
	Career Technical and Work-based Opportunities

	TITLE II, PART A
	Title II, Part A Activities


	ESSA Provisions Addressed in the Consolidated Application and Reporting System
	TITLE I, PART A
	Poverty Criteria

	ESSA Provisions Not Addressed in the LCAP
	TITLE I, PART A
	Educator Equity
	Parent and Family Engagement
	Schoolwide Programs, Targeted Support Programs, and Programs for Neglected or Delinquent Children
	Homeless Children and Youth Services
	Student Transitions
	Additional Information Regarding Use of Funds Under this Part

	TITLE I, PART D
	Description of Program
	Formal Agreements
	Comparable Education Program
	Successful Transitions
	Educational Needs
	Social, Health, and Other Services
	Postsecondary and Workforce Partnerships
	Parent and Family Involvement
	Program Coordination
	Probation Officer Coordination
	Individualized Education Program Awareness
	Alternative Placements

	TITLE II, PART A
	Professional Growth and Improvement
	Prioritizing Funding
	Data and Ongoing Consultation to Support Continuous Improvement


	ReviewandapprovaloftheKCOEannualsystemofsupportreport
	Updated BB 9240 BoardDevelopment -Revised June22
	LocalPerformanceIndicatorSelfreflection
	Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection
	Introduction
	Self-Reflection Tools
	Appropriately Assigned Teachers, Access to Curriculum-Aligned Instructional Materials, and Safe, Clean and Functional School Facilities (LCFF Priority 1)
	OPTION 2: Reflection Tool
	Recently Adopted Academic Standards and/or Curriculum Frameworks
	Other Adopted Academic Standards
	Support for Teachers and Administrators


	Parental Involvement and Family Engagement (LCFF Priority 3)
	Introduction
	Instructions
	Sections of the Self-Reflection Tool
	Section 1: Building Relationships Between School Staff and Families
	Building Relationships Dashboard Narrative Boxes (Limited to 3,000 characters)

	Section 2: Building Partnerships for Student Outcomes
	Building Partnerships Dashboard Narrative Boxes (Limited to 3,000 characters)

	Section 3: Seeking Input for Decision-Making
	Seeking Input for Decision-Making Dashboard Narrative Boxes (Limited to 3,000 characters)



	School Climate (LCFF Priority 6)
	Access to a Broad Course of Study (LCFF Priority 7)
	Coordination of Services for Expelled Students – COE Only (LCFF Priority 9)
	Assess the degree of implementation of the progress in coordinating instruction for expelled students in your county.

	Coordination of Services for Foster Youth – COE Only (LCFF Priority 10)
	Assess the degree of implementation of coordinated service program components for foster youth in your county.




	ProgramSelfEvaluationAnnualReport



